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The School Board of Miami-Dade County, Florida

1450 Northeast Second Avenue
Miami, Florida 33132

December 14, 2011

Members of the School Board and Citizens of Miami-Dade County:

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of The School Board of Miami-
Dade County, Florida (the “School Board,” the “District,” “Miami-Dade County
Public Schools” or “M-DCPS”) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 is
hereby submitted. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data, and the
completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests
with the School Board. To the best of our knowledge and belief, the enclosed
data is accurate in all material respects and is reported in a manner designed
to present fairly the financial position and results of operations of the District.
All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of
the District’s financial activities have been included.

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report is presented in sections.
The financial section includes the Management’s Discussion and Analysis
(MD&A), immediately following the independent auditor’s report, that
provides a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis of the basic financial
statements. MD&A compliments this letter of transmittal and should be read
in conjunction with it.

The District is the fourth largest school district in the nation. Itis responsible for
the operation, control, and supervision of all District schools and is considered
a primary government for financial reporting purposes. This report includes
all funds of the District, the Miami-Dade County School Board Foundation,
Inc., the Foundation for New Education Initiatives, Inc., and District sponsored
charter schools, which are reported discretely as component units, thus all
combined comprise the reporting entity. The District provides a full range
of educational services appropriate to students in early childhood, grade
levels Pre-K through 12, and adult/vocational education programs. These
include basic, regular and enriched academic education, special education
for handicapped children, vocational education, and many individualized
programs, such as special instruction for disadvantaged students and those
with limited English proficiency. The District's mission, as a team, is to
provide and support the highest quality education for our diverse community
of children and adult learners.

Alberto M. Carvalho
Superintendent of Schools

“This past year has been
one of remarkable gains
for Miami-Dade County
Public Schools (M-DCPS).
While public education
has been under siege,
M-DCPS has been able
to streamline our budget
while boosting academic
standards, enhancing
academic programs, and
raising student performance.
Our Department of Food
& Nutrition has reported
a staggering $15 million
surplus to its budget, which
was largely due to cost
controls such as staff and
purchase streamlining.
Increased participation in
the free and reduced price
lunch also contributed to
the surplus. Overall, we
have provided a consistent
educational environment
to ensure that we are truly
building a greater Miami,
one student at a time.”

Alberto M. Carvalho




ECONOMIC
CONDITIONS
AND OUTLOOK

Miami-Dade County is known as the “Gateway to the Americas.” Trade is increasingly
vital to the economy. Its close proximity to Latin America and the Caribbean make
it the center of international trade with those areas. The city’s international trade
infrastructure is vast and varied. This infrastructure includes the Port of Miami,
which is the busiest port for pleasure cruise ships in the world, coupled with the
Miami International Airport, which is the nation’s top airport for international freight
and third for international passengers. Miami’s tourism continues to be the principal
industry; however, the city’s economy has become more diversified. International
banking is another growing segment of the economy. Miami has become a major
banking and commerce center in the southeast United States, dominating trade and
finance.

Tourism remains a major industry for the area, as well as the state. Its mild climate,
miles of beaches and attractions lure vacationers to the Greater Miami area.

Thirty-six municipalities, including the cities of Miami, Miami Beach, Hialeah, and
Coral Gables, as well as unincorporated areas, comprise the county of Miami-Dade,
which covers approximately 2,000 square miles and is inhabited by over 2.4 million
citizens. Miami-Dade County Public Schools remains the area’s largest employer
and the second in the state, employing over 44,000 full and part-time employees.
Full-time employees numbered approximately 36,000 during 2010-11, including
more than 22,000 instructional professionals. The District’s annual operating budget
for fiscal year 2011-12 is in excess of $2.8 billion to serve an estimated enrollment
of 349,945 students. Beginning in 2002, student enroliment gradually decreased
by nearly 25,000 students. In 2009-10, it began a slight increase and that trend
continues in 2011-12.

During fiscal year 2010-11, the District saw its tax revenues continue the downward
trend that began in previous years. Property tax collections continue to decline
affected by the weight of the national economy and a weak local housing market.
Unemployment in Miami-Dade County was 11.5% in September 2011 compared to
12.2% in the prior year.

Long-Term Financial Planning Providing
world class educational opportunities for the
children of Miami-Dade County in the face
of ongoing economic challenges is reflected
in the District’s priorities and values.

Reorganization Plan Saves Millions In
June 2010, the Miami-Dade County School
Board approved a reorganization plan that
saved the school district $8 million. The plan
protected teachers’ jobs and preserved arts
and music education, while maintained the
financial viability of the school district. Under
the reorganization, more than 200 central
and regional employees were deployed to
teach in District schools, in order to help




meet Class Size Amendment requirements.
The deployment of employees to schools
resulted in a re-distribution of funding to
schools of up to $12 million.

As part of a debt restructuring initiative to
provide structural balance to the capital §
budget, the District issued $139.1 million :
Series 2011A Certificates of Participation, {
refinancing the Series 2003B and $137.7
million Series 2011B Certificates of .
Participation to partially refinance Series §
2007A, 2007B, and 2009B Certificates of |
Participation. '

Internal Control Structure The internal
control structure is subject to periodic
evaluation by management and the internal audit staff. In accordance with
Government Auditing Standards, the independent auditors have issued
a report dated November 22, 2011 on their consideration of the District’s
internal control structure. The purpose of their report is to describe the scope
of their testing of internal control and the results of that testing, and not to
provide an opinion on internal control. The administration is responsible for
establishing and maintaining an internal control structure designed to ensure
that the assets of the District are protected from loss, theft or misuse, and to
ensure that adequate accounting data is compiled and recorded properly to
allow for the preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles. The internal control structure is designed
to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these objectives are
met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: (1) the cost
of control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and (2) the
evaluation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by the
administration.

The accompanying financial statements demonstrate that even under a
period of changing operational conditions, the District continues to achieve
a policy of sound financial management.

Budgetary Controls The District maintains budgetary controls. The
objective of these budgetary controls is to ensure compliance with legal
provisions embodied in the annual appropriated budget approved by the
School Board. Activities of the General Fund, Special Revenue Funds,
Debt Service Funds, Capital Projects Funds, Proprietary Fund, and the
Fiduciary Funds, except the schools’ Internal Fund, are included in the
annual appropriated budget. Project-length financial plans are provided for
the Capital Projects Funds, but budgets are adopted for only one year.

Budgetary control is maintained for individual accounts or groups of accounts
within each school or department through the use of an encumbrance
accounting system. The process uses a test for availability of funds which




precludes any requisition for services, equipment, supplies or materials
from becoming a purchase order, if the account would be overspent.
Encumbrances are reappropriated as part of the following year’s budget.
The District issues a publicly available Annual Budget Plan for planning
purposes and an Executive Summary for adoption by the School Board.

In addition, in order to control salaries effectively, a centralized Position
Authorization Control (PAC) system governs salary expenditures,
whereby full-time employees are not paid unless they are fully processed
and fill a slot in the PAC system that also identifies the account structure
to charge.

Independent Audit State law permits an outside independent audit of
school districts by a firm of certified public accountants in lieu of an audit
performed by the State of Florida, Office of the Auditor General. The
auditing firm McGladrey & Pullen, LLP was selected by the School Board
to perform the annual audit. In keeping with the minority firm utilization
program established by the School Board, McGladrey & Pullen, LLP was
assisted by Sharpton Brunson & Company, and Rodriguez, Trueba &
Company, PA.

As an additional oversight review and control, the School Board Audit
Committee, which includes individuals from the private sector with
extensive knowledge in accounting and municipal finance, monitors
the independent audit process. This includes reviewing the scope of
the audit and the progress of the audit. Furthermore, the Committee
evaluates the financial statements, the auditors’ report and the
administration’s response. The Committee also reviews all internal
audit reports and administrative staff responses, placing an emphasis
on timely implementation of the recommendations made by the auditors.
The Committee meets regularly, at least six times per year, and operates
independently of the administration. It oversees the overall audit function
and issues an annual report to the School Board.

Relevant Financial Policies The intent
of the School Board is to ensure that the
District manages its budget and finance
in a fiscally prudent and responsible
way by establishing financial policies
~about the Budget, Fund Balance and the
maintenance of adequate reserves.

The government-wide financial
statements are reported using the
economic resources measurement focus
and the accrual basis of accounting.
Revenues are recorded when earned
and expenses are recorded when the
liability is incurred.




Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.
Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues except for certain
grant revenues, are recognized when susceptible to accrual, that is when
they become measurable and available. Property taxes, interest and certain
General Fund revenues are the significant revenue sources considered
susceptible to accrual.

FIU, M-DCPS Join Forces Leaders from Miami-Dade County Public Schools
(M-DCPS) and Florida International University (FIU) formed a task force to
identify and leverage each organization’s strengths for the benefit of students
and families throughout Miami-Dade County. Through the partnership, the
leadership teams of M-DCPS and FIU focus on promoting student success
through increased dual enrollment activities, streamlined articulation, clinical
internships and violence prevention. The school district and the university
also collaborate on enhanced teacher preparation techniques, with a special
focus on STEM (Science, Technology, Engineering, and Mathematics)
development.

M-DCPS Celebrates Race to the Top Funding In August 2010, Miami-
Dade County Public Schools celebrated Florida’s winning bid for federal
Race to the Top funding. Florida is eligible to receive $700 million dollars
over four years. The Funds will be used to increase student achievement;
decrease achievement gaps between subgroups in reading/language arts
and mathematics; increase high school graduation rates; and increase college
enrollment and the number of students who complete at least a year’s worth
of college credit that is applicable to a degree within two years of enrollment
in an institution of higher education.

Innovative, Interactive Academy Opens
In fall 2010, M-DCPS opened a high
school for the new millennium. The iPrep
Academy opened its doors to incoming 11"
grade students, debuting its technology-
rich environment and rigorous curriculum
consisting of honors and advance placement
courses, and dynamic instruction focusing
on leadership and problem-solving skills.
iPrep gives students direct connection to
Miami’s vibrant business community, which
will allow for many internship opportunities
in private industry and local government.

MAST @ Homestead Opens The Medical
Academy for Science and Technology,
MAST @ Homestead, opened its doors
August 2010 to incoming 9" grade students.
An all academy magnet high school, MAST @ Homestead offers students
the opportunity to access an elite senior high school with advance programs

MAJOR
INITIATIVES




MASTE®@HOMESTEAD

PROGRAM
HIGHLIGHTS

in the fields of Biomedical, Pharmaceutical Sciences, and Physical Therapy.
Students are also able to study in a state-of-the-art facility and have access to
the latest research in the medical field.

Children’s Covenant In April, the district held a Children’s Covenant
Signing Ceremony with more than a dozen municipal mayors to reaffirm the
community’s commitment to public education.

Youth Empowerment Senior high schools across the district held the Speak
Your Peace: Youth Empowerment Summit to encourage students, parents,
and other interested community stakeholders to come together and learn more
about the available school safety programs and initiatives of the district.

Superintendent’s Benefit Concert Series During the 2010-11 school year,
musical concerts, featuring talented Miami-Dade public school students, were
held to benefit the district’s Cultural Passport Program. The program provides
all K-12 students with a different cultural field experience each school year.
In the course of their education, students will visit museums and art galleries,
and experience live musical, theatrical, and dance performances.

Presidential Visits Both a sitting U.S. President and a former U.S. President
have visited Miami-Dade County Public Schools to applaud the school district’s
achievements and successes. InMarch 2011, President Barack Obama, joined
by U.S. Secretary of Education Arne Duncan and former Florida Governor
Jeb Bush, congratulated students, parents, teachers, school and district staff,
and community leaders, for exceptional student achievement gains at Miami
Central Senior High School. Just two months prior to President Obama’s
visit, former U.S. President Bill Clinton visited Miami Edison Middle School
and praised the efforts of the district in promoting better nutrition and physical
education for students.

First Lady Kicks Off Healthy Food Initiative First Lady Michelle Obama
launched her Let's Move! salad bar initiative in November 2010 at Riverside
Elementary School. The goal of the initiative is to place salad bars in 6,000
schools across the nation. Riverside Elementary received the first salad bar
of the campaign.

Excellence in School Nutrition Earlier this year, M-DCPS was recognized
as a District of Excellence Distinction in School Nutrition by the School
Nutrition Association (SNA). The prestigious distinction recognizes school
districts receiving self-assessment scores of 80 percent or higher in all four
“key” areas in the Keys to Excellence program. This high score demonstrates
knowledge and application of national best practices in nutrition and nutrition
education, communications and marketing, administration, and operations.

Two M-DCPS Principals Receive Gold Two Miami-Dade County school
principals, Roxana Herrera of Palm Springs Elementary and Dr. David Moore
of Miami Southridge Senior High, were named Gold Medallion Award winners
of the 8" Annual Leonard Miller Principal Leadership Award. The award is

\"



named for Leonard Miller, a well-known advocate for education. It recognizes
exemplary school leadership in three areas: student achievement, parent/
community involvement, and empowering school-based leadership.

National Magnet Schools of Merit Eight Miami-Dade County schools
are among the 133 schools nationwide that were named winners of the
prestigious Magnet Schools of America (MSA) Merit Awards. The awards
recognize magnet schools that show a commitment to high academic
standards, curriculum innovation, successful desegregation/diversity efforts,
specialized teaching staffs, parent and community involvement. The MSA
Merit Awards are granted in two categories - Schools of Excellence and
Schools of Distinction. Schools of Excellence: Coral Reef Senior High,
Design & Architecture Senior High, George Washington Carver Middle, and
North Dade Center for Modern Languages. Schools of Distinction: Ada
Merritt K-8 Center, Air Base Elementary, Frank C. Martin International K-8
Center, and John F. Kennedy Middle.

High Schools Choosen As Distinguished Academies Two Miami-Dade
County high schools were among seven National Academy Foundation
(NAF) academies from across the nation to be designated as Distinguished
Academies. Miami Springs High School’s Academy of Hospitality and Tourism
and Southwest Miami High School’s Academy of Banking and Finance were
recognized for their exemplary career-themed curricula.

M-DCPS Advanced Placement Participation Lifts State Profile Four
Miami-Dade senior high schools were among the five Florida schools that
helped the State achieve a number one ranking in the nation for percentage
of 2010 seniors taking Advanced Placement (AP) exams while in high school.
The schools, Barbara Goleman, Coral Reef, Design & Architecture, and Miami
Killian senior high schools, are highlighted in the 7" Annual AP Report to the
Nation for their exemplary programs to increase access to AP courses among
traditionally underserved students.

Academic Achievement In 2010-11, schools in Miami-Dade County received
more “A” and “B” grades despite the special challenges faced by the district,
including a decline in funding, new standards, and a more rigorous assessment
and equated scores. The number of schools receiving School Performance
Grades of “A” and “B” increased, while the number of schools receiving “F”
decreased by 50 percent. Indeed, less than one percent of traditional schools
in Miami-Dade received a grade of “F.” More than 82 percent of all schools
in the District either improved or maintained their School Performance Grade
for 2011.

The Parent Academy Meaningful parent and family involvement is a
powerful predictor of high student achievement. M-DCPS offers parents
a number of opportunities for involvement, including The Parent Academy.
This year-round initiative is designed to help parents become full partners in
their child’s education by providing them with workshops and other learning
opportunities. Since its inception in 2005, The Parent Academy has served

NATIONAL

cademy

FOUNDATION
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thousands of parents. Over the past six years,
the number of parents who have participated in
events sponsored by The Parent Academy has
increased from 19,000, to over 250,000, with
more than 46,000 parents attending workshops
in the 2010-11 school year alone. Among its
~ recent programs, The Parent Academy has
focused on the District's lowest-performing
schools, presenting a workshop series, The
Parent Plan for Success, to support parents in
those schools to become more engaged in their
children’s academic success. In addition, to
meet the needs of today’s working parents, The
Parent Academy has added online programs,
including the College Bound program for
parents of children in Kindergarten through
fifth grade. Over 250,000 parents have taken
advantage of these and other resources on The Parent Academy’s website.

Financial Awards The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) of the
United States and Canada awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in
Financial Reporting to The School Board of Miami-Dade County for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2010. This was the twenty-fifth consecutive year that the District
has received this prestigious award.

The School Board of Miami-Dade County also received the Association of School
Business Officials (ASBO) International Certificate of Excellence in Financial
Reporting for the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2010. This is the twenty-sixth consecutive prestigious award that the
District has received from ASBO.

These awards are for one year only and signify that the financial report conforms
to generally accepted accounting principles, legal requirements and standards of
reporting required by the organization granting the award.

We believe that our current Comprehensive Annual Financial Report continues
to meet the Certificate Programs’ requirements, and we are submitting it to both
GFOA and ASBO, to determine its eligibility to receive, once more, their respective
prestigious awards.

The District also received the GFOA's award for Distinguished Budget Presentation
for its annual adopted budget dated September 7, 2010. In order to qualify for
the Distinguished Budget Presentation Award, the District's budget document
was judged to be proficient in several categories, including policy documentation,
financial planning and organization. The award encourages and assists state and
local governments in preparing budget documents of the very highest quality that
reflect both the guidelines established by the National Advisory Council on State
and Local Budgeting and the GFOA's best practices on budgeting.

VI



Acknowledgment The preparation ofthis report could nothave beenaccomplished
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system.

We look forward to the opportunity, with your guidance and support, of building
a better, more effective and efficient school system that provides a learning
environment that adapts to the ever changing needs of our students - the citizens
of tomorrow.

Respectfully submitted,
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for Excellence
in Financial
Reporting

The School Board
of Miami-Dade County
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For its Comprehensive Annual
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June 30, 2010

A Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial
Reporting is presented by the Government Finance Officers
Association of the United States and Canada to
government units and public employee retirement
systems whose comprehensive annual financial
reporis (CAFRs) achieve the highest
standards in government accounting
and financial reporting.
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This Certificate of Excellence in Financial Reporting

is presented to

The School Board of Miami-Dade County, Florida
=S
For its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010
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McGladrey & Pullen, LLP

Certified Public Accountants

McGladrey

Independent Auditor’s Report

Chairperson and Members of
The School Board of Miami-Dade County, Florida

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the aggregate
discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of
The School Board of Miami-Dade County, Florida (the School Board), as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2011, which collectively comprise the School Board's basic financial statements as listed in the
table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the School Board’s management.
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not
audit the financial statements of the discretely presented component units. Those financial statements
were audited by other auditors whose reports thereon have been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar
as it relates to the amounts included for the discretely presented component units indicated above, is
based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a
basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the School Board’s internal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit and the reports of other auditors
provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors, the financial statements referred to
above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the School Board of Miami-Dade County, Florida, as of June 30, 2011, and
the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then
ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued, under separate cover, our
report dated November 22, 2011 on our consideration of the School Board’s internal control over financial
reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide
an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part
of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in
assessing the results of our audit.

As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, the School Board adopted the recognition and
disclosure requirements of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No.54, Accounting for
Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions, during fiscal year 2011.

1

: Pullen, LLP serve clients’ business needs. Member of RSM International network, a network of

McGladray is the brand under which RSM McGladrey, Inc. and McGladre
The two firms operate as separate legal entities in an alternative practice structure. independent accounting, tax and consulting firms.



The management’s discussion and analysis and the Required Supplementary Information as listed on the
table of contents are not a required part of the basic financial statements but are supplementary
information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We
and the other auditors have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of
management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary
information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the School Board’'s basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining and
individual fund financial statements and schedules, and statistical section are presented for purposes of
additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The combining and
individual nonmajor fund financial statements and schedules have been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied by us and the other auditors in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our
opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors, are fairly stated in all material respects in
relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The introductory and statistical sections have
not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied by us and the other auditors in the audit of the
basic financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

/%M/&é&%/ e~

Miami, Florida
November 22, 2011
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THE SCHOOL BOARD OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A)
JUNE 30, 2011
(Unaudited)

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) of The School Board of Miami-Dade County, Florida
(the District) is intended to provide an overview of the District’s financial position and changes in financial
position for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011.

Since the focus of the Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is on the current year activities,
resulting changes and currently known facts, it should be read in conjunction with the District’s financial
statements, including the accompanying notes. Additionally, as a required part of the MD&A, comparative
information for the current year and the prior year is presented for financial analysis to enhance the
understanding of the District’s financial performance.

Financial Highlights

At June 30, 2011, the General Fund had a total fund balance of $221.7 million, representing an increase
of $90 million or 68% from the previous year. This increase reflects the District’'s commitment to be fiscally
sound by exercising prudent fiscal management to preserve fund balance despite declining revenues.

During the fiscal year, the District was awarded $73 million as part of the Race to the Top (RTTT) Grant
funded by the ED Recovery Act as part of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009. RTTT
is a $4.35 billion United States Department of Education program designed to spur reforms in state and
local districts K-12 education.

As part of the Education Jobs Fund (ED Jobs Fund), a new Federal program was created on August 10,
2010 to provide funding assistance to states to save or create education jobs for the 2010-11 school year
through September 30, 2012. The District received in ED Jobs Fund grant awards of $72.9 million.

The District also received $122.1 million in State Fiscal Stabilization Funds and $84.4 million in Federal
Economic Stimulus Funds for Title I, Part A and IDEA, Part B as part of the American Recovery and
Reinvestment Act of 2009. Receipt of the stimulus funds allowed the District to maintain programs that
serve the educational needs of the students of Miami-Dade County and avert layoffs. These funds sunset
on June 30, 2011 with the exception of Title | and IDEA that will sunset September 30, 2011.

The District issued $139.1 million Series 2011A, Certificates of Participation refinancing the Series
2003B Certificates of Participation, which had a mandatory put on May 1, 2011. In addition, the District
partially advance refunded the Series, 2007A, 2007B, & 2009B by issuing $137.7 million of Series 2011B,
Certificates of Participations. Under both Series, the principal and interest obligations in fiscal years
2011, 2012, and 2013 on the refunded bonds were refinanced to mature in fiscal years 2029 through
2032, resulting in cash flow savings of $27.7 million in fiscal year 2011, $50.0 million in fiscal year 2012,
and $59.8 million in fiscal year 2013, totaling $137.5 million. The restructuring of the District Certificate
of Participation lease payments provided structural balance to the district’s capital budget in coordination
with strategic reductions in facilities and maintenance services that salvage core essential maintenance
services.

Both Moody’s Investor Services and Standard & Poor’s maintained the District’s stable outlook and cited
the District’s track record and demonstrated willingness to adjust budgets to maintain or enhance financial
strengths.




USING THIS COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

This comprehensive annual financial report is comprised of different sections. The following graphic is provided to
facilitate the understanding of the format and its components:

Basic Financial Statements

Government-Wide Financial Statements
Fund Financial Statements

MD&A Other Required Supplementary Information
Management Discussion & Analysis | Required Supplementary Information
(required supplementary information) (other than MD&A)

Notes to the Financial Statements

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The District’'s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report consists of a series of financial statements and accompanying
notes, with the primary focus being on the District as a whole. The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of
Activities are government-wide financial statements that provide both short-term and long-term information about
the District’s overall financial position. The fund financial statements report the District's operations in more detail
by providing information as to how services are financed in the short-term, as well as the remaining available
resources for future spending. Additionally, the fund financial statements focus on Major Funds rather than fund
types. The proprietary fund statements offer short-term and long-term financial information about the activities of
the District as it relates to the group health insurance program. The remaining statements, the Fiduciary Funds
Statements, provide financial information for those activities in which the District acts solely as a trustee or agent
for the benefit of others. The accompanying notes provide essential information that is not disclosed on the face of
the financial statements. Consequently, the notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities - Most of the activities of the District are reported
in these statements, including instruction, instructional support services, operations and maintenance, school
administration, general administration, pupil transportation, and food service. Additionally, all state and federal
grants, as well as capital and debt financing activities are reported in these statements.

The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities present a view of the District’s financial operations
as a whole, reflect all financial transactions and provide information helpful in determining whether the District’'s
financial position has improved or deteriorated as a result of the current year’s activities. Both of these statements
are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting similar to that used by most private-sector companies. The
Statement of Net Assets includes all assets and liabilities, both short and long term.

The Statement of Activities reports all of the current year’s revenues and expenses regardless of when cash is
received or paid. The two government-wide statements report the District's Net Assets (assets minus liabilities)
and the changes that resulted from the District’'s operations. The relationship between revenues and expenses
indicates the District’s operating results. Over time, increases and decreases in the District's Net Assets are an
indicator of whether the District’s financial position is improving or deteriorating. However, as a governmental entity,
the District’s activities are not geared towards generating profits as are the activities of commercial entities. Other
factors, such as the safety of schools and quality of education, must be considered in order to reasonably assess
the District’'s overall performance, particularly because of the limited resources available.
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Fund Financial Statements

The District’s fund financial statements provide a detailed short-term view of the District’s operations, focusing
on its most significant or “major” funds. Certain funds are required by law while others are created by legal
agreements, such as bond covenants. The District establishes other funds to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance-related legal requirements and prudent fiscal management. The District has three
kinds of funds - governmental funds, a proprietary fund and fiduciary funds.

Governmental Funds - The accounting for most of the District’s basic services is included in the governmental
funds. The measurement focus and basis of accounting continue to be reported using the modified accrual basis
of accounting, which measures inflows and outflows of current financial resources and the remaining balances
at year-end that are available for spending. Furthermore, under this basis of accounting, changes in net
spendable assets normally are recognized only to the extent that they are expected to have a near-term impact.
Inflows of financial resources are recognized only if they are available to liquidate liabilities of the current period.
Similarly, future outflows are typically recognized only if they represent a depletion of current financial resources.
The District’'s major governmental funds are the General Fund, Federal Economic Stimulus Funds, American
Recovery and Reinvestment Act (ARRA) Economic Stimulus Debt Service Fund, Capital Improvement-Local
Optional Millage Levy (LOML) Funds, Certificates of Participation (COPs) Funds, and American Recovery and
Reinvestment Act (ARRA) Economic Stimulus Capital Projects Funds. The differences in the amounts reported
between the fund statements and the government-wide financial statements are explained in the reconciliations
provided on Pages 25 and 28.

Proprietary Fund - The District maintains an Internal Service Fund as its only proprietary fund. Internal service
funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among the District’s various
functions. The District uses the internal service fund to report the activities of the group health self-insurance
program. Since these services predominantly benefit governmental rather than business-type functions,
the internal service fund has been included within governmental activities in the government-wide financial
statements. The District’s proprietary fund activity is reported in the Statement of Net Assets, the Statement of
Revenues Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets, and the Statement of Cash Flows - Proprietary Funds
on Pages 29 through 31.

Fiduciary Funds - The District is the trustee, or fiduciary, for resources held for the benefit of others, such as the
student activities fund and the pension trust fund. The District’s fiduciary activities are reported in the Statement
of Fiduciary Net Assets on Page 32 and the Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets on Page 33. The
resources accounted for in these funds are excluded from the government-wide financial statements because
these funds are not available to finance the District’s operations. Consequently, the District is responsible for
ensuring that these resources are used only for their intended purposes.

Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes provide disclosures and additional information that are essential to a full understanding of the financial
information presented in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

Other Information

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also provides certain required
supplementary information on pages 86 through 93, as well as combining and individual fund statements and
schedules beginning on Page 96.

Component Units

The discretely presented component units included in this report consist of the Foundation for New Education
Initiatives, Inc., and those Charter Schools that meet the criteria as set forth by generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP) in Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 14 as amended by
Statement No. 39, and the Florida Department of Education. Please refer to Note 1A.




GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS
Statement of Net Assets

The following table provides a comparative analysis of the District's Net Assets for the fiscal years ended June
30, 2011 and 2010.

CONDENSED STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS - GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
June 30, 2011 and 2010
($ in millions)

Difference %
Increase Increase
Categories 2010/11 2009/10 (Decrease) (Decrease)
Current and Other Assets $ 1,0103 $ 11253 $ (115.0) (10.2) %
Capital Assets, Net 4,804.6 4,856.9 (52.3) (1.1) o
Total Assets $ 58149 $ 59822 $ (167.3) (28) %
Current Liabilities $ 471.7 $ 588.7 $ (117.0) (19.9) %
Long-term Liabilities 3,660.2 3,688.3 (28.1) (0.8) %
Total Liabilities 4,131.9 4,277.0 (145.1) 34) %
Net Assets
Invested in Capital Assets,

Net of Related Debt 1,670.6 1,830.1 (159.5) 8.7) %
Restricted 180.7 109.0 71.7 658 %
Unrestricted (deficit) (168.3) (233.9) 65.6 280 %

Total Net Assets $ 1,683.0 $ 1,705.2 $ (22.2) (1.3) %

The District’s total assets were $5.8 million and total liabilities were $4.1 million as of June 30, 2011. Both
assets and liabilities declined as result of the use of resources to reduce liabilities.

The District’'s net assets totaled approximately $1.7 billion. Most of this amount represents the District's
investment in capital assets (land, buildings, furniture, fixtures & equipment), net of depreciation and less
any outstanding debt used to construct or acquire those assets. Restricted net assets in the amount
of $180.7 million are reported separately to show legal constraints, from debt covenants and enabling
legislation. The $(168.3) million unrestricted deficit in net assets reflects the shortfall the District would face
in the event it would have to liquidate all of its non-capital liabilities,
including insurance claims payable, compensated absences,
and other post employment benefits, at June 30, 2011. A deficit
in unrestricted net assets should not be considered, solely, as
evidence of economic financial difficulties, but rather as a result
of different measurement focuses; long term compared to short
term perspectives.

The District is required to include all of its capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation, and of related debt, as well as all of its
long term liabilities. Consequently, these long term considerations
= have asignificant impact on the resulting Net Assets.




Statement of Activities

The following table summarizes the changes in the District's Net Assets from its activities for the fiscal years
ended June 30, 2011 and 2010.

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS - GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
For Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2011 and 2010
($ in millions)

Difference %
Increase Increase
Revenues 2010/11 2009/10 (Decrease) (Decrease)
Program Revenues:
Charges for Services $ 59.8 62.8 $ (3.0) 4.8) %
Operating Grants & Contributions 120.2 111.9 8.3 7.4 %
Capital Grants & Contributions 51.0 40.5 10.5 25.9 %
Total Program Revenues 231.0 215.2 15.8 7.3 %
General Revenues:
Ad Valorem Taxes 1,582.7 1,766.5 (183.8) (104) %
Grants & Contributions Not
Restricted to Specific Programs 1,677.3 1,466.5 210.8 14.4 %
Investment Earnings 6.1 6.8 (0.7) (10.3) %
Miscellaneous Revenues 41.7 19.1 22.6 118.3 %
Total General Revenues 3,307.8 3,258.9 48.9 1.5 %
Total Revenues 3,538.8 3,474.1 64.7 1.9 %
Expenses
Instructional Services 2,016.8 1,933.4 83.4 4.3 %
Instructional Support Services 287.5 315.0 (27.5) B8.7) %
Pupil Transportation 83.9 84.5 (0.6) 0.7) %
Operations & Maintenance of Plant 351.5 372.9 (21.4) b5.7) %
Food Service 140.6 134.8 5.8 4.3 %
School Administration 165.6 166.1 (0.5) 03) %
General Administration 12.6 13.0 (0.4) 3.1 %
Business/Central Services 66.4 68.5 (2.1) B.1) %
Facilities Acquisition and Construction 103.6 84.1 19.5 23.2 %
Administrative Technology Services 24 1.0 1.4 140.0 %
Interest on Long-Term Debt 144 1 148.2 (8.1) 55 %
Community Services 33.2 32.9 0.3 0.9 %
Unallocated Depreciation 152.8 133.0 19.8 14.9 %
Total Expenses 3,561.0 3,487.4 69.6 2.0 %
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets (22.2) (13.3) (4.9) (36.8) %
Net Assets Beginning, as restated 1,705.2 1,718.5 (13.3) (0.8) %
Net Assets Ending $ 1,683.0 1,705.2 $ (18.2) 1.1 %

General Revenues for Ad Valorem Taxes decreased by $(183.8) million or (10.4)% from the previous fiscal year as
a result of decreases in property values. Grants & Contributions Not Restricted to Specific Programs increased by
$210.8 million or 14.4% primarily attributed to the receipt of Federal Economic Stimulus Funds and increased state
revenues. The increased state and Federal Stimulus Funds provided for an increase in instructional services of $83.4
million or 4.3%.




Governmental Activities

The Statement of Activities reports gross expenses, offsetting program
revenues and the resulting net expense (cost) by functions for the current year.
The net cost of each of the District’s functions represents the expenses that
must be subsidized by general revenues, including tax dollars. As reflected in
the Statement of Activities, total expenses for governmental activities totaled
$3,408.2 million, excluding unallocated depreciation expense, of which $231.0
million were financed by charges for services and other program revenues.
The resulting net costs of $3,177.2 million, excluding unallocated depreciation
expense, were financed primarily by Florida Education Finance Program (FEFP)
dollars and property taxes.

The table below, presents a comparative analysis of the cost and the net cost of each of the District’s functions:
School Level Services include Instruction, Student Services (counselors, psychologists, and visiting teachers),
Transportation, Custodial and Maintenance (including utilities), School Administration and Community Services;
Instructional Support Services include Curriculum Development and Staff Training; Business/Central Services
include Accounting, Budget, Payroll, Accounts Payable, Cash and Debt Management, Purchasing, Personnel,
Data Processing, Risk Management, and Warehousing; General Administration; and Facilities Acquisition &
Construction.

NET COST OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
For Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2011 and 2010
($ in millions)

Difference %
Increase Increase
2010/11 2009/10 (Decrease) (Decrease)

Total Cost of Services
School Level Services $ 27916 $ 27246 $ 67.0 25 %
Instructional Support Services 287.5 315.0 (27.5) 8.7) %
Business/Central Services 212.9 217.7 (4.8) (22) %
General Administration 12.6 13.0 (0.4) 3.1) %
Facilities Acquisition & Construction 103.6 84.1 19.5 232 %
Total Cost of Services * $ 3,408.2 $ 33544 $ 53.8 16 %

Net Cost of Services

School Level Services $ 25830 $ 25302 $ 52.8 21 %
Instructional Support Services 287.5 315.0 (27.5) 8.7) %
Business/Central Services 199.4 204.2 (4.8) (24) %
General Administration 12.6 13.0 (0.4) 3.1) %
Facilities Acquisition & Construction 94.7 76.8 17.9 233 %
Net Cost of Services * $ 31772  $ 3,139.2 §$ 38.0 12 %

* Excluding unallocated depreciation expense

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT’S FUNDS

As noted earlier, the District uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related
legal requirements. Financial information is presented separately in the Balance Sheet, and in the Statement of
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances for the District's major funds: General Fund, Federal
Economic Stimulus Funds, ARRA Economic Stimulus Debt Service Fund, Capital Improvement-Local Optional
Millage Levy (LOML) Funds, Certificates of Participation (COPs) Funds, and ARRA Economic Stimulus Capital
Projects Funds. Financial information for the non-major governmental funds is aggregated and presented in a
single column. Individual fund data for each of the non-major governmental funds is presented in the combining
statements beginning on Page 96.




GENERAL FUND

The General Fund is the primary operating fund for the District. Presented below is an overall analysis of the
General Fund as compared to the prior year.

CHANGES IN GENERAL FUND ACTIVITY
For Fiscal Years 2010/11 and 2009/10
($ in thousands)

Difference %
Increase Increase
Categories 2010/11 2009/10 (Decrease) (Decrease)
Revenues $ 2,428,179 $ 2,381,679 $ 46,500 20 %
Other Financing Sources 153,777 175,122 (21,345) (12.2) %
Beginning Fund Balance 131,732 81,223 50,509 622 %
Total $ 2,713,688 $ 2,638,024 $ 75,664 29 %
Expenditures $ 2,491,976 $ 2,506,292 $ (14,316) (0.6) %
Ending Fund Balance 221,712 131,732 89,980 68.3 %
Total $ 2,713,688 $ 2,638,024 $ 75,664 29 %

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the District. Revenues increased by $46.5 million or 2.0%
from the prior year.

Expenditures decreased by $(14.3) million or (0.6)%. The most significant decrease was in salaries resulting
from the continued efforts of the administration to reduce costs by creating efficiencies and the ability to fund
programs with monies received from the Federal Economic Stimulus Funds including the Education Jobs
Funds.

Ending Fund Balance increased by $90 million or 68% primarily as a result of the administration’s resolve to
bring financial stability to the District and the flexibility provided by the receipt of Federal Economic Stimulus
Funds.

CHANGES IN GENERAL FUND ACTIVITY
For Fiscal Years 2010/11 and 2009/10
($ in millions)
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GENERAL FUND (continued)
Revenues By Source

Revenues - Overall revenues increased by $46.5 million or 2.0% as follows:

REVENUES BY SOURCE
For Fiscal Years 2010/11 and 2009/10
($ in thousands)

B Feciera Difference %
o Increase Increase
B Lo Sources 2010/11 2009/10 (Decrease) (Decrease)
Federal $ 16,507 $ 18,327 $ (1,820) 9.9 %
State 1,112,586 950,422 162,164 171 %
Local 1,299,086 1,412,930 (113,844) 8.1) %
Total $ 2,428,179 $ 2,381,679 $ 46,500 20 %

Federal sources decreased by $(1.8) million or (9.9)%.

State sources increased by $162.2 million or 17.1% from the prior year. The increase in state funding was primarily due to
an increase in state dollars as a result of a reduction in the Required Local Effort and an increase in student population.

Local sources decreased by $(113.8) million or (8.1)%. This decrease was primarily a result of a reduction in the collection
of property taxes due to the real estate market decline together with reductions in overall local revenues.

Expenditures By Function

Expenditures - Overall expenditures decreased by $(14.3) million or (0.6)% as follows:

EXPENDITURES BY FUNCTION
For Fiscal Years 2010/11 and 2009/10
($ in thousands)

Difference %
Increase Increase
Functions 2010/11 2009/10 (Decrease) (Decrease)
School Level Services $ 2,351,056 $ 2,367,352 $ (16,296) 07) %
Instructional Support
Services 54,965 52,992 1,973 37 %
Business Services/
Central Adm. 67,677 68,377 (700) (1.0) %
School Board 6,107 6,467 (360) (56) %
General Administration 6,299 6,356 (57) 0.9) %
Facilities & Other
Capital Outlay 5,872 4,748 1,124 237 9% B Focites & Other
Copol Outiay
Total $ 2,491,976 $ 2,506,292 $ (14,316) (0.6) %

Salaries and fringe benefits represent the most significant expenditures of the District specifically as it relates to school
level expenditures. During the 2010-11 fiscal year, the administration continued its efforts to meet the financial challenges
by creating efficiencies that reduced administrative salaries, and continued the moratorium on the purchases of items
deemed non-essential. Additionally, expenditures were reduced due to the flexibility provided by the Federal Economic
Stimulus Funds and the Education Jobs Fund which were established to save jobs and maintain programs that serve the
students of our community.
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FEDERAL ECONOMIC STIMULUS FUNDS

The American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 (ARRA) which President Barack Obama signed into
law on February 17, 2009 provided approximately $100 billion for education. The Act, intended to stimulate the
economy, creates a historic opportunity to save jobs, support states and school districts, and advance reforms
and improvements in key educational areas, such as the instruction of students with disabilities, services for
low income students and the stabilization of local school district funding. During the fiscal year ended June
30, 2011, the District received $122.1 million in State Fiscal Stabilization Funds and $84.4 million in Federal
Economic Stimulus Funds.

During the 2010-11 fiscal year the District received $72.9 million for The Education Jobs Fund (Ed Jobs). This
program was created on August 10, 2010, to provide funding assistance to states in order to save or create
education jobs for the 2010-11 school year through September 30, 2012. Additionally, the District was awarded
$73 million in Race to the Top (RTTT) grant. RTTT is a $4.35 billion United States Department of Education
program designed to spur reforms in state and local districts K-12 education.

AMERICAN RECOVERY AND REINVESTMENT ACT (ARRA) ECONOMIC STIMULUS DEBT
SERVICE FUND

The American Recovery and Reinvestment Act (ARRA) Economic Stimulus Debt Service Fund was established
for Debt Services for American Recovery and Reinvestment Act school construction bonds.

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT-LOCAL OPTIONAL MILLAGE LEVY (LOML)

Capital Improvement - Local Optional Millage Levy (LOML) funds constitutes the primary source of revenue in
the Capital Budget. The Florida Legislature decreased the maximum allowable millage to be used for capital
purposes from 1.75 mills to 1.50 mills in the 2009-10 fiscal year with the flexibility of shifting 0.25 mills back
to the operating budget. For the 2010-11 fiscal year the District availed itself of 0.5 of the 0.25 mills flexibility
provided in the 2009-10 Legislative Session. Total fund balance of $65.7 million represents a reduction of
$(60.7) million or (48.0)% from the previous year related to the reduction in property tax revenues. The total

$65.7 million fund balance is restricted for capital projects.

CERTIFICATES OF PARTICIPATION (COPs) FUNDS

Certificates of Participation (COPs) Funds are a funding mechanism that provides funds for the construction
of new facilities or for the purchase of vehicles, furniture and fixtures. Ending fund balances in the fiscal year
2010-11 totaled $71.6 million compared to $130.1 million in the previous year representing a reduction of $58.5
million or 45.0% primarily due to a significant reduction in the construction program resulting from decreased
revenues and debt limitations. The $71.6 million fund balance is restricted for capital projects according to legal
restrictions imposed by the COPs Master Lease Agreement and Trust Indenture.

AMERICAN RECOVERY AND REINVESTMENT ACT (ARRA) ECONOMIC STIMULUS
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

The American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 (the “Act”) was issued in order to stimulate economic
growth through federal spending in the areas of education, health, and housing and transportation. The Act
created two new categories of direct subsidy debt for school Districts: Qualified School Construction Bonds
(QSCBs) and Build America Bonds (BABs). Proceeds from the issuance of these bonds are for construction,
rehabilitation, or repair of public schools or for the acquisition of land for such facilities.

SLO9L L0906
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BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

Most District operations are funded in the General Fund. The majority of the General Fund revenues are distributed
to the District through the Florida Education Finance Program (FEFP), which uses formulas to distribute state funds
and an amount of local property taxes (i.e., required local effort) established each year by the Florida Legislature. The
purpose is to substantially equalize educational funding among the sixty-seven school districts in Florida, irrespective
of differences in wealth among the districts.

Each school district retains its local property taxes, which is reported as local revenue. However, the required local
effort portion is deducted from the district revenue generated by the State FEFP formulas. The resulting net revenue
is reported as state revenue.

Total General Fund revenues and other financing sources during 2010-11 were $51.6 million less than the adopted
budget as follows:

Federal funds were $1.0 million lower than anticipated due primarily to a decrease in the Medicaid reimbursements of
$1.9 million, a decrease in R.O.T.C. revenue of $0.2 million, and an increase in federal reimbursement for Community
Schools of $1.1 million.

State funds were $40.5 million less than the adopted budget primarily due to the elimination of McKay Scholarships
$31.2 million, a decrease in the FEFP funds received due to changes in enroliment of $7.8 million, transfer of funding for
the Excellent Teaching Program in the amount of $2.5 million, decrease in the Class Size Reduction state categorical in
the amount of $4.7 million due to a change in student FTE and miscellaneous net increases of $.7 million.

Local revenues were $23.8 million lower than the adopted budget. The decrease in local revenues from the adopted
budget is primarily due to reductions in net property taxes $30.9 million, Community School Programs $1.7 million,
and other accounts $1.6 million. The decreases were partially offset by increases in Post Secondary Fees $2.0 million,
E-Rate $1.3 million, Federal Indirect Cost reimbursement $1.5 million, interest $.1 million and grants of $5.5 million.

Ending fund balance as of June 30, 2011 was $221.7 million comprised of nonspendable fund balances totaling $8.6
million, representing inventories and prepaid items, restricted fund balance totaling $8.4 million in state categorical
programs, assigned fund balance $33.8 million, which included rebudgets and outstanding purchase orders and
unassigned fund balance totaling $170.9 million.

In the fiscal year 2010-11 tentative budget, the District made budgetary reductions to manage increases in costs that
exceed $108 million. In the future the District will continue to review the budget, focusing on maintaining essential
educational services as we anticipate continuing revenue declines.

12



CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets - At June 30, 2011, the District had $4,804.6 (in thousands) invested in different categories of
capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, as shown in the table below.

CAPITAL ASSET ACTIVITY
At June 30, 2011 and 2010
($ in thousands)

Difference %

Categories 2010/11 2009/10 (Dooronce)  (Decrance)

Land $ 336,499 $ 336,629 $ (130) (0.03) %
Land Improvements 231,151 215,689 15,462 72 %
Construction in Progress 39,592 97,076 (57,484) 59.2) %
Software Development in Progress 21,692 14,818 6,874 46.4 %
Building and Improvements 3,970,680 3,963,328 7,352 02 %
Furniture, Fixtures & Equipment 101,675 107,316 (5,641) 5.3) %
Computer Software 41,490 53,345 (11,855) (22.2) %
Motor Vehicles 61,796 68,751 (6,955) (10.1) %
Total $ 4804575 $ 4,856,952 § (52,377) 1.1) %

The major changes in the capital asset activity is reflected in a decrease in Construction in Progress and an
increase in Buildings and Improvements, these changes reflect the District’s winding down the Capital Construction
Program, primarily due to reduced State revenues and diminishing debt capacity.

Detailed information reflecting the District’s capital asset balances and activity for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2011 is provided in Note 4 to the Financial Statements.

CAPITAL ASSET ACTIVITY
At June 30, 2011
($ in millions)
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CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION (continued)

Debt Administration - The following table represents the changes in the District’s outstanding long-term liabilities at
fiscal year end.

CHANGES IN LONG TERM LIABILITIES
At June 30, 2011 and 2010
($ in thousands)

Difference %

Categories 2010/11 2009/10 (lljlf;‘ff;‘z) (llj';f;i?;)

Bonds Payable $ 292,329 $ 353,019 $ (60,690) (17.2) %
Ceggﬁ:&‘fj é’; parioation 3,007,360 2,967,739 39,621 13 %
Derivative Instrument Liability 23,703 28,421 (4,718) (16.6) %
Capital Leases 125,213 157,509 (32,296) (20.5) %
Insurance Claims Payable 121,589 135,365 (13,776) (10.2) %
Retirement Incentive Benefits 4,012 4,837 (825) 17.1) %
Compensated Absences Payable 270,727 275,754 (5,027) (1.8) %
Other Post Employment Benefits 19,171 23,390 (4,219) (18.0) %
Total $ 3,864,104 $ 3,946,034 $ (81,930) (21) %

The Districtissued $139.1 million in Series 2011A Certificates of Participation refinancing the Series 2003B Certificates of
Participation. Additionally, the District advance refunded the Series 2007A, 2007B, and 2009B by issuing $137.7 million
of Series 2011B Certificates of Participation. These transactions restructured the District’'s Certificate of Participation
lease payments resulting in cash flow savings and structural balance to the capital budget.

Detailed information relating to changes in long-term liabilities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 is provided in
Note 14 to the Financial Statements.

I | 5oncs Payable

I Certificates of Participation

LONG TERM LIABILITES
At June 30, 2011
($ in millions)

| | Derivative Instrument Liability

D Capital Leases
I Insurance Claims Payable

| | Retirement Incentive

I Compensated Absences Payable

$121.6  $40

$270.7 $19.2

. Other Post Employment Benefits
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ECONOMIC FACTORS

The State of Florida, by constitution, does not have a state personal income tax and therefore, the state operates
primarily using sales, gasoline and corporate income taxes. Despite a slow economic recovery and continued
funding challenges, the District, through prudent fiscal management, maintains a healthy financial position to provide
the quality education deserved by every child.

CONTACTING MANAGEMENT

The District’s financial statements are designed to present citizens, taxpayers, investors, and creditors with a general
overview of the District’s finances and to show the District’'s accountability for the money it receives. Additional
information can be requested at:

The School Board of Miami-Dade County
School Board Administration Building
Office of the Controller
1450 N.E. 2nd Avenue
Room 664
Miami, Florida 33132
or visit our website at:

http://www.dadeschools.net

/= Miami-Dade County Public Schools - Windows Internet Explorer

e 3 |__’E h sy dadeschools. net V‘ | K |'-T' e dadeschools et ‘ 2=
Faa Ed\t Wigw  Favorites  Tools Helpi N ] I X %.:_]Convert - @Selact -
T Favorites | 5 == v @ | Free Hotmail @ | toshiba copier @ | Web Slice Gallery v
Ei;Miami-Dade County Public S_Ehnnls ) -ii | @} T E] = Li._.] = Page - Safety - Tools -~ @'v 4

Discover M-DCPS  Calendars Committees Directories  Schools  School Board Superintendent  Portal

Students rents Employees Community
Grades. .. HR, payroll... Events...

'Asking Saves Kids" Campai

Ch L Wiami™ Dade Schools Police Departme nate about spreading the word on gun

safety to the stude arents, and community of Miami - Dad

Highlights Resources
Welcome to Miami-Dade County Public Schools S ——

010-11 Statistical Highlights

|~

8:’ 4 Local intranet ¥, *

‘4 start
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THE SCHOOL BOARD OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

JUNE 30, 2011

{amounts expressed in thousands}

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and investments
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and investments with fiscal agents
Total cash and invesiments (Note 3)

Taxes receivable, net (Note 16)

Accounts and interest receivable

Due from other agencies {Nota B)

Inventories

Deferred charges - debt refunding

Prepaid and other current assets
Total current assets

Non-current assets:
Investments with fiscal agents
Deferred debt issuance costs
Deferred outflow of resources

Capital assets {(Note 4):
Non-depreciable capital assets
Depreciable capital assets

Less accumulated depreciation
Total net capital assets

Total non-current assets

Total assets

Primary
Government
Total Total
Governmental Component
Activities Units

3 465,543 § -

226,394 61,592
35,105 -
797,042 61,592
92,765 -
2118 7,358
67,299 9,871
13,030 -
1,337 -
20,938 3,741
924,525 82 562
33,054 -
29,036 -
23,703 -
628,934 3,388
5,894,932 103,494
(1,719,201) (28.817)
4,804,575 78,065
4,890,368 78,085
$ 5814897 $ 160,627

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements



LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts and contracts payable and accrued
expenses
Accrued payroll payable
Due to other agencies (Note €)
Unearned revenues
Accrued interest payable
Estimated liability for arbitrage rebate
Retainage payable on contracts
Current portion of ieng-term liabilities {(Note 14)
Total current liabilities

Non-current liabilities:
Non-current portion of long-term liahilifies
{Note 14)
Unearned revenues
Total non-current liahilities

Total liabilities

NET ASSETS

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted for:

State required carryover programs

Food service

Debt service

Capital projects

Other purposes
Unrestricted (deficit)

Total net assets

19
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Frimary
Government
Total Total
Governmental Component
Activities Units

$ 44 796 $ G,998
143,855 7.815
5,642 3,318
778 1,551
52545 -
384 -
12,002 -
210,676 1,105
471,678 20,787
3,653,428 46,204
6,799 -
3,660,227 48,204
4,131,905 665,991
1,670,562 32,271
8 409 -
15,043 -
37.693 -
105,236 530
10,320 4,653
{188,271} 56,182
I 1,682,592 b 93 636




THE SCHOOL BOARD OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011
{amounts expressed in thousands)

Program Revenues

Operating
Charges for Grants and
Expenses Services Contributions
Primary government:
Governmental Activities:

Instructional services $ 2,018,750 3 29,438 $ -
Iinstructional support services 287,551 - -
Pupil transportation services 83,804 760 -
Operation and maintenance of plant 351,511 - -
Schoaol administration 165,566 - -
General administration 12,604 - -
Business/central services 86,430 - -
Administrative technology services 2,401 - -
Food services 140,639 29 647 120,257
Community services 33,2449 - -
Facilities acquisition and construction 103,581 - -
Intarast on long-term debt 144 112 - -

Unallocated depreciationfamontization (*}
{Note 43 152,779 - -
Total governmental activities 3 3,561,047 $ 59,845 ¥ 120,257

Component Units:

Charter schools/Foundation 3 230,287 % 10,800 $ 20,545
Total Component Units 3 230,287 $ 10,800 ¥ 20,545

1 Thig amount excludes depreciaianfamortization that is included in the direct expenses of the various functions.

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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Program Revenues

Exhibit 2

Net (Expenses) Revenues and
Changes in Net Assels

Primary
Government
Capital Total Total
Grants and Governmental Component
Contributions Activities Units
3 - 5 {1,987.312) 3 -
- {287,551) -
- (53,134) -
28,529 (322,982) -
- (165 566) -
- {12 804} -
- {66,430) -
- {2,401) -
- 9,265 -
- {33,249) -
8,880 {94.701) -
13,512 (130,600} -
- {152,779) -
¥ 50,801 (3,330,044} -
$ 14 354 - {184 588)
3 14,354 - {184 ,588)
General Revenues;
Taxes (Note 16):
Froperty Taxes, Levied for Operational Purposes 1,222,023 -
Property Taxes, Levied for Debt Service 72,052 -
Property Taxes, Levied for Capital Projects 288,595 -
Grants and Contributions Not Restricted to Specific Programs 1,677,325 199,715
investment Eamings 6,145 4
tiscellaneous 41,673 4,767
Total General Revenues 3,307,813 204 4386
Change in Net Assets (22,2313 19,898
Net Assets - Beginning of Year 1,705,223 73,738
Net Assets - End of Year i 1.682 992 $ 93,636
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THE SCHOOL BOARD OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 2011
(amounts expressed in thousands}

Federal ARRA
Economic Economic
Stimulus Stimulus
General Funds Debt Service
ASSETS
Equity in pooled cash and investments 3 136.081 % 852 % 24
Cash and cash equivalents 161,327 - -
Cash and investments with fiscal agents {Note 12) - - -
Taotal cash and investments (Mote 3} 247 408 852 24
Taxes receivable, nat (Note 16) 72,599 - -
Accounts and interest receivable 1,820 - -
Due from other agencies (Note 6) 18,727 11,188 -
Due from other funds {Note 5) 22 205 1,389 -
Inventones 9,307 - -
Frepaid and other assets 637 - -
Total assets ¥ 422 803 B 13426 % 24
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts and contracts payable and accrued
expenditures $ 19,707 $ 1,350 % 24
Accrued payroll and compensaied absencas
{Notes & and 14) . 149,732 8G7 -
Due tg other funds (Note 5} 8,156 14,212 -
Due to other agencies (Note &) 4234 - -
Deferred/unearnad revenues 16,827 - -
Accrued interest payable - - -
Estimated liability for arbitrage rebate - - -
Estimated liability for insurance risks and pending
claims {Nates 13 and 18} 2435 - -
Retainage payable or contracts - - -
Total liabilities 201,091 13428 24
Fund batances:
Nonspendable £8.580 - -
Restricied 8408 - -
Aszigned 33.815 - -
Unassigned 170,908 - -
Total fund balances 221712 - -
Total liabilties and fund balances § 422 803 b 13,429 ¥ 24

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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Local ARRA
Optional Cedificates Economic Non-major Total
Miltage of Stimulus Governmental Governmentat
Levy Funds Participation Capital Projects Funds Funds
24,880 % £1.868 $ 108,201 ] 102,977 $ 458 583
14,138 - - 46 070 221,535
- - - 2,123 2123
38.M8 81,868 109,901 151,170 680241
15,950 - - 4216 92,785
62 o 23 71 2.085
- - - 37.384 67,299
- 22 28 1,583 25237
. - - 3723 13,030
20,301 - - - 20,938
75.331 5 81,899 b 109,852 3 198,157 3 401,595
2653 $ 4 538 ] 7.6498 5 7.764 3 43,734
- - - 1,341 161,940
75 1 17.031 36475
- - - 2408 5542
3,879 - - 1,320 22126
- - - 12,938 12,938
- - - 138 138
- - - - 2420
2,581 5,712 1,570 1,759 12,002
0 B6B 10,250 9 289 44 695 288 430
20,3M - - 3723 32604
45,362 71,649 100,683 140 985 367,088
- - - 8,750 42 565
- - - - 170,808
65 663 71,649 100,683 153 458 £13.165
75,331 g 81,899 ¥ 108,952 b 168 157 ] 801 545
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THE SCHOOQL BOARD OF M:AMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET

TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2011
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Total Fund Balances — Governmental Funds

Amounts reparted for governmental activities in the statement of net assets
are different as a result of.

Investments with fiscal agent for future interest payments are nol reported
in the govemmental funds.

Capitat gssets used in aciivities are not financial resources and
therefore are not reported as assets in the govermmental funds.,

Capital assets
Agrurnulated depreciation

Propery taxes recefvable will be collected within one year, but are nol
available soon enough to pay for the current pened's expenditures, and
therefore are not recorded as revenue in the governmental funds,

Recewables dueg frorm olher agencies are not available soon enough to pay for
the cument pericd's expenditures, and therefore are ot recorded 28 revenue in
the governmental funds.

An intermal service fund is used by manageament 0 charge the costs of health
premiums ta individual funds. The assets and liabilities of Lhe intemal service
fund are included in governmental aclitvities in the statemant of net assets

% 6,523 06868
{1,712, 291}

Assets 25,090
Liabilities {31,280}
Met Assets (Deficit)
Deferred charges for refunding of capital outlay bonds are not financial
resources and therefare are nol repared 25 2ssets in the govemnmental funds.
Deferred chamgas for issuance costs are not financial resources and therefore
are not repored as assets in the gavernmenlal funds,
Deferred cutfiow of resqurces are reported as a result of changes in farr value
of hedging dervative instrumenls in Lhe staterment of net assets.
Current liabilities which are accrued as a fiabilily in the govermment-wide
statements but are nel recognized i the govemmental funds unlil due:
Salaries & benefits payvabie {1,782
Estimaled Lability far arbitrage rebate (246}
Intarest payable {39,607}
Long-term liabilities are nol due and payable in the current period and
therefore are not reported as liabilities in the governmental funds.
Long-term liabilities al year-end consist of the following:
Bonds pavable (292.329)
Capital leases (126,213)
Compensated absences (261 BEZ2)
Retirement incentive benafits {4,012}
Othet past-employment benefits obligation {18,171}
Certificates of paricipation (3.007,360)
Denvative instruments Liability {23,703
Claims payablg {89 027}

Uneamead revenue on Forward Purchase and Broadband Lease Agreements is
treated as proceeds in the govermmental funds, but is defemed to futura
periods in the Statement of Net Assets {amortized over the life of the

Total Net Assets - Governmental Activitios

See accompanying notes to the basic financial stalemenls
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86,037

4.804.575

19,652

1,788

(6,190}

1.337

28,035

23703

{#1.635)

(3,621 BTT)

(F.098

5 1,682,992
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THE SCHOOL BOARD OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUUND BALANCES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011
{amounts exprassad in thousands)

Federal ARRA
Economic Economic
Stimulus Stimuius
General Funds Debt Service
Revenues;
Local sources:
Ad valgrem taxes (Note 16) $ 1,224 841 5 - $
Food service sales - -
Interest income 1.602 -
Net increase {decrease] in fair value of investmeants 15 -
Local grants and other 72 528 -
Total local sources 1,298,086 -
State sources (Note 15);
Florida education finance program 603,780
Fublic education capital cutlay - -
Food services - -
State grants and other 508,806 -
Total state sources 1,112,586 -
Federal sources:
Federal grants and cther 16,567 281 417
Food services - -
Total faderal saurces 16,507 281 417
Total revenues 2428178 281,417
Expenditures:
Current:
Instructional services
Basic programs 1,313,067 100,342
Exceptional child programs 257,014 55 686
Adult and vocationaktechnical programs 93,150 2,529
Total instructional services 1,663,231 167,457
instructional support services 120,254 91,801
Pupil transportation services 79,696 102
Operation and maintenance of plant 349577 513
School administration 163,150 1,883
General administration 78 604 8.083
Food services - -
Community services 30,084 452
Capital outlay 5871 10,026
Debt service (Notes B, 14, 11 and 12}
Principal retirement 757 - -
nterest and fiscal charges 632 - 1.987
Total expenditures 2491976 281417 1,887
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over {under)
expendiures {63,787} - {1.987)
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in {Note 5} 153 545 - 1.987
Transfers out {Note 5) - -
Issuance of debt (Notes 16 and 11) -
Fremium on issuance of debt - -
tssuance of debt for refunding (Notes 10 and 11) - -
Premium on refunding of dent - -
Payments ta refunded bond escrow agent - -
Proceeds from sale of capital asseats 130 -
Proceeds from Ipansfleases 102 - -
Total other financing sources {uses) 153 777 - 1,687
Net change in fund balances 89 980 -
Fund balances - heginning of year 131,732 -
Fund balances - end of year & 221.712 3 - b3

See gccompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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Locai ARRA
Qptional Certificates Economic Non-major Togal
Millaga of Stmulus Governmental Governmental
Levy Funds Participation Capitai Projects Funds Funds
5 280818 $ - 3 - ¥ 71,683 & 1.586.242
- - - 25547 29.647
514 219 307 1.757 4.43%
& - - 4 25
- - - 14,013 BB, 541
290,238 218 307 117.104 1,706,954
- - - 603,780
- - 14,805 14,895
- - 2136 2,136
- - - 28725 527,531
- - - 45 756 1,158.342
- - 274 928 &72.850
- - 110,212 110,212
- - 385.138 843,062
290,238 219 g7 547,908 3,548,358
- - - 121,983 1.544.392
- - - 43 811 356.411
- - - 8,807 104,486
- - - 174,601 2,005,289
- 70212 282,357
- - - 4,108 83,908
- 267 350,357
- - 114 165,147
- - - §379 06,156
- - 142, 048 142,048
- - - 1,827 32,353
36,123 68,020 62,204 48,297 231,541
- - - 151,602 152.360
168 84 - 136,268 139,147
36,291 68,114 62 204 TI7.722 23,680,711
253,947 (68.885] [61.887) {189.724) (132,353}
- - - 210.665 366,201
{314,634) (14.066) {178) (37,323, {366,201)
- 24, 4B0 - &40 25120
- - - &7 57
- - - 278,155 278,155
- - - 8479 8.479
- - (284,284) {284 294)
- - - 3.520 3,650
- - - - 102
(314 634 10,414 {178) 178,903 31,269
{60,687} {35.481) (62.075) 9.821) (101,084}
126,250 130,130 162.758 163,279 714,249
$ 55.663 ] 71,649 3 100,683 $ 153 458 g 613,165
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Exhibit &

THE SCHOGQL BOARD OF MIAMI-DADE CQUNTY, FLORIDA
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT QF REVENLES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FLIND BALANCES
OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011
{amounts expresaed in thousends}

Tokil Net Change i Fund Balances - Gavernemenital Furds ¥ {101,064
Amaunis repored {or qoeernmental Bohilies 0 the Stalemant of Activiizs are diffarent a2 & resul of
Frraperty taxec thal Bre not colected wittan S0 days are not conswdesed avalable erd tharefore are nat recorded

as ravenuas  Howewar Tor the govemment-wide statemends property tasas are racordac when thare is an
erforceabh: in. Addiliorally, thy govemmental funds refiect revenues thal comespond o e prsar yoar.

Pricr year evenues recorded thes vear 5 122,520
Revenuas neat racrged this year that e Qovemiment Las (egal clam o 1e05y (5AT

Revenues thet do not provide currert financial reapurces ane rab resarded m e govermmental furds
Howewer. for the govermment-wide statements revenues are recorded when samed T o8

an memal service ung 15 used by managermenl ko charge the costs of Fealth Dremuumg @ ndeadua lrds.
The ret 1055 af the iIntemal secvice fung 15 repated with govemmeantal a2vmes (4.718)

The rot effecd of vanous miscellaneous bansacions nvelving tapital assets (ie. change m capitalization

ihreshold, sales dSDosHs eeovenes and donalms) § [ merease net assets £184
Capital outlay disbursemenis 1o purchase or build capral ssels are repartad Bs expanditures. in the
govertmenial fureds. in e Statament of Med Assets, tese costs are caprishzed and deprasatand cear their
edimated usetul ives  |m ihe Statement of Activibes the geprocabon i neflecked as an expense Mr tne penod.
Capitai outlay sxpaenditures for the fiecal year 140,508
Depracialion expanse for iha fistal year {198 048 (57.540;
Sorte of thy capda’ assas acqueed during e year were inanced with debt irstruments. The amourl Ananced
by these insiruments are recorded 2 olher finencing sourses in the gowemmertal funds, however in the
govemment-wide =talemeniz they are recorded 85 8adibons 1o long-lemm liskifies. Proceans from debt
instrumards waa e as fobkows,
Proseeds frarm Stabe Baard of Education Capital Oulay Borxds 40
Lremedm an State Bozrd of Edwcation Lapdal Cullay Boads 1571
Proceeds fram refunding of Stabe Board of Edecahon Camtal Qutiey Bands 1,440
Premium on refundirg of State Board of Educatan Capdal Qwdlay Bonds [230)
Pireeeds from rafunding of Certficalas of Participalicn [27E 716)
Frefriwm on refurding of Cetificates of Participaiicn [B248]
Frocesds from Qualfied Zone Atadarny Sonds {24 4670)
Froceeds from L pans/Lepses H5d) 1311 8655)
The govermmanial funds only ir@de those abdties. thal will be peid with coment finencial resources. Expenaes
racordad in the Statamernt of Acthilies excead e smourd recorded mihe gowammental funds due tohe
diffarenl mgasireswnt fuius uied. Adddicnally, the govemmeral funds reflect expanses that comespond bo
B0 yar,
Dacraase in othar post-emgaloyment bansfie liailicg 4,219
Armount of compenzated absenoes paid in excess of the amount samed 442
Decredse i accrued salaries amd bansdits 21
Dacreass N Nsurance clasms payabie > Rog 15 205
Repayment of debt principal is eflecied a5 an expanditure in the govemmernta: funde, however. in the
Siaeurnerd of Mel Asses it & refléciad as a raducton of kabilities and does rot affect e Statarment of Adivibas,
repaymant of dabl pnnopal far Cenhcates o Paicpalon 3677
Repayment of deot pnnapal for General Obigation Bands 513588
Repayment of deat principal for Capne Leasas 32450
Repaymeanl &f debt princips| for State Beard of Educaton BEonds 5,788 152,380
Reyernae resuling from an adpsiment 1w the e5lmaled Labili for arbrrege refabe s no a aurment financial
resoure and merslore 15 ot repaned mine govermmaiial lunos. s B22
Repayment of dek1 e reflecied 3z an other financing use in the govemmental furds, hewsver in the Statament
of Met 25515 115 reflected as a reduclion o” kabilities ard doe: nol afient the Staement of Activiliez 2i4.0ar
Issuance casl resated to the sale of Cerificates of Pamapeban, Gereral Obrgation Schos Bones and SEE
Bods are reporied a: exparditures. in the govemrmeaniel fanas., hoeewver these cosis are capielzed and
ararized avar the like of the bords. Ir the Statemem of Aolivities, amedization. is recored as aoditonal
Interes] Expense for the penod
|ssuance casts 2488
Amorlizalion of issuance coste {2 5290 [
Il sl e |emg-lern debd différs frorn L armount 1epored in the govamimental Turds, Im the gavemmental
hunds mileresl on ng-tamm debt s recorded a5 ar eapendlbang wnens oue and payable  n e Starernent of
Actwdies, Inlerest is secorded a5 b accrues 10 addiion, premyms and uneamed reventss are amartized over
the life of the dekd and are recormed as 8 reduchion of jmeres! expense an the Stetement af Adlivibes | osoes
incurred B & rasult of advance 1afurdings are also amortized owver the Ife of the debt and are recorded as ar
incraase iointares axpanse oo e Statameant of Alivibes.
Atcrusd inbarast pavable (39,607
Amoriizatior of premium cn State Buand of Educabon Capaal Oullay Boreds (SBES) il
amartizabion of premium on Cemficales of Patcipalon (2OPs) &8M
Amartization of premiym en General Qihgabion Schoo Bends (0B 177G
Amartizatian of Uneamed Revenue on Fomard Purghase dgresment Ba
Amartizatran of lase relaied to advence refunding of SEEs [l
Armartizabon of fos: relaled 1o advanca refunding of COFs jd.891]
Arnartabon of boss related 10 advanca refumding of GOBe 1242]
Paymant af Inesest ralaled 1o advance reunding of COPs (5 509)
Priar year inlerast paid durirg cument fiscel wear A8 578 i4,561]
Total Change In Net Assets of Governmental Aclivities 3 [22 231)

Hee accampanying nokes 1o the basic financial slatements

28



Exhibit 7

THE SCHOOL BOARD OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

PROPRIETARY FUND
JUNE 30, 2011

{amounts expressed in thousands)

Health
Insurance
Fund
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 3 4,859
Investments 8,980
Accounts and interest receivable 33
Due from other funds 11.238
Total assets 3 25,080
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 3 1,062
Uneamed revenues 81
Estimated unpaid claims 30,127
Total liabilities 31,280
NET ASSETS
Unrestricted {deficit) 3 {6,190)

See accompanying notes to the basic financial staiements
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THE SCHOOL BOARD OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Health
Insurance
Fund
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services $ 334,297
Other operating revenues 201
Total operating revenues 334,498
OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries 133
Employee benefits 34
Purchased services 249
Claims 327 592
Cther 11,217
Total operating expenses 339,225
OPERATING INCOME {LOSS) (4,727)
NONOPERATING REVENUES {EXPENSES)
interest revenue 2
Total nonoperating revenues {expenses) g
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS (4,718)
NET ASSETS - Beginning of year {1,472}
NET ASSETS - End of year 3 (6,190

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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Exhibit 9

THE SCHOOL BOARD OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011
{(amounts expressed in thousands)

Health
Insurance
Fund
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers and interfund services provided ] 326,651
Payments for claims (338,731)
Payments to suppliers for goods and services {11,363}
Payments to employees (187)
Other receipts {payments} 20
Net cash used by operating activilies {23,209)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Recetpts from interest $ g
Purchase of investments (8.960)
Net cash used by investing activities {8,951}
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (32,160}
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 37,019
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 3 4,858

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME {LOSS) TO
NET CASH USED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating income {loss) $ (4,727)
Adjustments to reconcile operating ioss to
net cash provided (used) by operating activities:

{Increase) decrease in accounts receivable g7
(Increase) decrease in interest receivable (2)
{Increase} decrease in due from other funds (7.632)
{Increase) decrease in accounts payable 103
{Increase) decrease in unearned revenues a1
{Increase) decrease in estimated unpaid claims {11,139)
Total adjusments {18,482)
Net cash provided {used} by operating activities $ (23,209}

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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THE SCHOOL BOARD OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA

ASSETS

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

JUNE 30, 2011

(amounts expressed in thousands)

Cash and cash equivalents

Investments
Bonds

Commercial paper

Equity mutual funds

Money market mutuat funds
Total cash and investments

Interest receivable

Due from other agencies

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable

Due to other agencies
Due to student organizations

Total liabilities

NET ASSETS

Assets held in trust for pension benefits

Total net assats

Exhibit 10

Agency Fund
Pension Schools’
Trust Internal
Fund Fund
3 - 5 8,023
9.262 10,784
3,000 -
12,739 -
104 4,034
25,105 22 841
- 34
- 2
3 25,105 % 22,877
$ - 3 64
- 3,943
- 18 870
- 3 22 877
25,105
3 25105

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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THE SCHOOQOL BOARD OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011
(amounts expressed in thousands}

ADDITIONS:
Employer contributions {Note 17)
Interest on investments
Net increase in the fair vatue of investments
Less investment expenses
Total additions

DEDUCTIONS:
Retirement benefits
Trustee services

Total deductions

Net increase

Net assets held in trust for pension benefits at beginning of year

Net assets held in trust for pension benefits at end of year

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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Pension
Trust
Fund

$ 2125
208
3,089

5

5417

4.039
18

4118

1,299

23,806

$ 25,105




1.

THE SCHOOL BOARD OF MIAMI-DADE COLNTY, FLORIDA
NOTES TQ THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

A,

Reporting Entity

The School Board of Miami-Dade County, Florida {the “School Board” “Board” or the
“District") is composed of nine members elected from single-member districts within the legal
boundary of Miami-Dade County, Florida (the “Couniy™). The appointed Superintendent of
Schools is the executive officer of the Board. The School Board is part of the state systern of
public education under the general direction of the State Board of Education and is financially
dependent on state support. However, the Beard is considered a primary government for
financiat reporting purposes because it is directly responsible for the operation and control of
District schools within the framework of applicable state law and State Board of Education
rules and it is not considered to be an agency or component unit of the State of Florida.

The general operating authority of the Schoot Board and the Superintendent is contained in
Chapters 1000 through 1013, Florida Statutes. Pursuant to Section 1010.01, Florida Statutes,
the Superintendent of Schools is responsible for keeping records and accounts of all financial
transactions in the manner prescribed by the State Board of Education.

The accompanying financial statements inciude those of the District (the primary government)
and those of its component units. Component units are legally separate organizations which
should be included in the District's financial statements because of the nature and significance
of their relationship with the primary government.

The decision to include a potential component unit in the District's reporting entity is based on
the criteria stated in Government Accounting Standards Board ("GASB") Statement No. 14,
The Financial Reporfing Enfity, as amended by GASB Statement No. 39, Deterrnining Whether

Cerfain Organizations are Component Units. The application of this criteria provides for
identification of any entities that the Board is financially accountable for and other

organizations that the nature and significance of their relationship with the Scheol Board are
such that exclusion would cause the District’s basic financial statements to ba misleading or
incomplete.

Blended Component Units

The Miami-Dade County School Beard Foundation, Inc. {the "Foundation™, a Florida not-for-
profit corporation, was created solely to facilitate financing for the acquisition and construction
of District school facilities and related costs. The members of the School Board saerve as the
Board of the Foundation, therefore, the Schoot Board is considered financially accountable for
the Foundation. The financial activities of the Foundation have been blended {reported as if it
were part of the District) with those of the District,

Discretety Presented Component Uniis

The component unit columns in the government-wide financial statements include the financial
data of the District’'s component units that are required to be presented separately. These
component units consist of charer schoolg and the Foundation for New Education Initiatives,
Inc. The charter schools and the Foundation for New Education Initistives, inc. are reported, in
the aggregate, in separate columns in the basic financial statements to emphasize that they
are legally separate from the District.
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1.

THE SCHOOL BOARD OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued:

A

Reporting Entity — continued

All charter schools are recognized as public schools within the District, as such, charter
schools are funded on the same basis as the District  Additionally, Florida Statutes
Section 1002.33, states that the School Board shall monitor revenues and expenditures
of the charer schools. Charter schools are funded from public funds based on
membership, and can also be eligible for grants in accordance with the state and federal
guideiines, including food service and capital outlay. Additionally, all students enrolled in
charter schools are included in the District's total enrollment. Charter schools can
accept private donations and incur debt in the operation of the school for which the
charter school is responsible.

A total of ninety-two charter schools were approved to operate during fiscal year 2010-
11. All of the charter schools are considered component units of the District or another
legal entity. For financial reporting purposes, eighty-four of the charter schools should
ke included in the financial statements of the District as discretely presented component
units because of their fiscal dependency on the District, for a majority of their funding.
While it would be misleading {0 exclude them from the District's financial staternents,
nane of the individual component units are considered to be major. The audited financial
statements of the individual component units can be obtained by contacting the following
schools.

Telephone
Schoal School Address Number
. th
Academir Charter Schoal West (0410} 14580 SW 25" Street 305-485-861 1

Miami, FL 33185

5855 MW 171 Street
Miami, FL 33015

Advanced Leaming Charter School (1014) 305-231-4888

12425 SW 72™ Street
Miami, FL 33183

Archimedean Academy {0510} 305-279-6572

12425 SW 72™ Street
Miami, FL 33183

Archimedean Middie Conservatary (5008} 305-270-6572

12425 SW 72" Street
Miami. FL 33183

Archimedean Uppet Conservatory (7265 205.270-6572

10875 Quail Roest Drive
Miami, FL 33157

Balere Language Academy {0113) 2015-232-9707

Ben Gamla Charter School (Miami Beach) 11155 SW 112" Avenue
(5022 Miami, FL 33176 305-596-6266
10700 SW 58" Street
Miami, FL 33165

Bridgepoint Academy (2003) 305-271-3109

Coral Reef Montesson Academy Charter
School (0070}

Doctors Charter School of Miami Shores
(G0a0;
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10853 SW 218" Street
Cutler Bay, FL 33170

11301 Nw Fifth Avenug
Miami Shores, FL 33168

305-255-0064

305-754-2381



THE SCHOOL BOARD OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued:

A,

Reporting Entity — continued
Doral Academy {3030}
Daral Academy Charter Middle School (8030)
Uoral Academy Charter High School {7020)

Coral Performing Arts & Entertainment
Academy (700

Downtown Miami Charter School (3600}

Excelsior Academy High School {7054)

Excelsicr Charter Academy {5032) ®

Excelsior Language Academy of Hialeah
{5029)

Florida Internattonal Academy {8010)

Florida International Elementary Academy

(3024)

Integrated Science & Asian Culture Acadamy
{2004)

International Studies Charter Middie School
{5045}

International Studies Charter High School
(7007}

Keys Gate Charter School (3610)

Keys Gate Charter High Schogl (7050)

Lawrence Academy Elementary Charter
(0215)

Lawrence Academy Middle (6008)

Lawrence Acadermy Senior High (7036)
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2450 NW 97" Avenue
Dorai, FL 33172

2601 Nw 112" Avenue
Doral, FL 33172

11100 Nw 27" Streat
Doral, FL 33172

11100 Nw 27" Street
Doral, FL 33172

305 NW Third Avenue
Miami, FL 33128

500 West 20" Streat
Hialeah, FL 33010

3460 NW 1917 Street
Miami Gardens, FL 33058

600 West 20™ Street
Hiateah, FL. 33010

13400 Nw 28" Avenua
Opa Locka, FL 33054

13400 NW 28" Avenue
Opa Locka, FL 33054

5876 Sw 8™ Street
South Miami, FL 33143

2480 Swv 8™ Street
Miami, FL 33135

2480 SW 8™ Street
Miami. FL 33135

2000 & 2355 SE 28™ Ave.
Homestead, FL 33035

2325 5E 28™ Avenus
Homestead, FL 33035

713 West Palm Drive
Flonda City, FL 33034

713 West Palm Dnve
Florida City, FL 33034

713 West Palm Dnve
Florida City, FL 33034

305-597-9999

305-591-0020

305-597-9850

305-597-0950

305-579-2112

305-B83-8359

305-722-1355

305-883-8358

305-685-8190

305-685-8190

3J05-740-0509

305-643-2955

305-643-26055

305-230-16186

305-230-5630

305-247-4800

305-247-4800

305-247-4800



1.

THE SCHOOL BOARD OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued:

A.

Reporting Entity — continued
Life Skills Center Miami-Dade County (7015}
Life Skills Center Opa Locka (7017)

Linceln-Maiti Charter School (Hialeah
Campus) (5007}

Lincoln-Manrti Charter School {Intemational
Campus) (5043)

Lincoln-Martt Charter School (Little Havana
Campus) {5025)

Mater Academy {0100)

Mater Academy (Miami Beach) (5047)

Mater Academy Charter Middle Schoal (6012)

Mater Academy Charter High School {7160)
Mater Academy East Charter School (3100}
Mater Academy East Charter High {70373
Mater Academy of Intemational Siudies

(1017)

Mater Academy Middle School of Int'l
Studies {6047)

Mater Acadamy High Schoal of Intl Studies
(7024)

Mater Academy Lakes Middle School (8033}

Mater Academy Lakes High Schoaol {7018}

Mater East Academy Middle Schosl (5009

Mater Gardens Academy {0312)
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7900 NW 27" Avenue #F-20
Miami, FL 33147

3400 Nw 135" Strest
{Opa Locka, FL 33054

3500 W 84" Sireet
Hialeah, FL 33018

103 East Lucy Street
Florida City, FL 33034

&70-084 West Flagler Street
Miarmi, FL 33130

7700 Nw 98" Street
Hialeah Gardens, FL 33015

8625 Byron Avenue
Miami Beach, FL 33141

7901 NW 103" Street
Hialeah Gardens, FL 33016

7601 NW 103™ Strest
Hialeah Gardens, FL 33016

450 SW Fourth Street
Miami, L 33130

998 SV First Street
Miami, FL 33130

785 NW 32™ Street
Miami. FL 33127

795 Nw 32™ Strest
Miami, FL 33127

998 3W First Street
Mizmi, FL 33130

17300 NW 87™ Avenue
Hialeah, FL 33015

17300 NwW 87™ Avenue
Hialeah, FL 33015

998 5WW First Strest
Miami, FL 33130

9010 NW 178" Lane
Hialeah, FL 33018

305-693-2273

305-585-1415

305-827-8080

305-242-3330

305-325-1001

305-698-8900

305-864-2886

305-528-1886

J05-828-1886

305-324-4667

305-324-6863

305-834-0445

305-634-0445

305-324-6963

305-512-3917

305-512-3017

305-324-6963

305-512-9775



THE SCHOOL BOARD OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

Reporting Entity — continued

Mater Gardens Academy Middle (6042)
Mater Performing Arts & Entertainment
Academy {7014)

Mavericks High of North Miami-Dade
(7062) '

Mavericks High of South Miami-Dade
(7065)

Miami Arts Charter School (7059)
Miami Children's Museumn Charter School
(4000)

Miami Community Charter {0102)

Miami Community Charter Middle School
(6048}

Miami Cornmunity Charter High School
{7058)

Oxford Academy of Miami {5010}

Pinecrest Academy (North Campus) (5048}

Finecrest Acagemy {Scuth Campus) {0342)

Finecrest Academy Charter Middle Scheol
(6022}

Pinecrest Preparatory Academy {06500}

Pinecresi Freparatory Academy Charter
High Schooi (7053)

Renaissance Elementary Charter Schooi
{0a00)
Renaissance Middle Charter School {5028}

Richard Allen Leadership Academy {20048)
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued:

9010 NW 178" Lane
Hialeah, FL 33018

7901 NW 103™ Street
Hialeah Gardens, FL 33016

16150 NE 17" Avenue
No. Miami Beach, FL 33162

698 N. Homestead Bivd.
Homestead, FL 33030

34900 Biscayne Blvd.
Miami, FL 33137

980 McArthur Causeway
Miami, FL 33132

101 South Redland Road
Florida City, FL 33034

18720 SW 352 Street
Florida City, FL 33034

18720 SW 352 Street
Flerida City, FL 33034

10870 SW 113™ Place
Miami, FL 33178

10207 West Flagler Street
Miami, FL 33174

15130 SW 80" Street
Miami, FL 33193

14901 SW 42™ Street
Miami, FL 33185

14301 SW 42™ Strest
Miami, FL 33175

14901 SW 42™ Straat
Miami. FL 33185

10651 NW 18" Street
Daral, FL 33122

R360 NW 33" Street
Doral, FL 33122

17800 NW 25™ Avenue
Miami Gardens, FL 33056

305-512-9775

305-82B-1886

TB6-629-7053

305-909-6307

305-763-8257

305-329-3758

305-245-2552

305-245-2552

305-245-2552

305-588-4494

305-553-9762

305-356-0800

205-559-8583

305-207-1027

305-559-8583

305-501-2225

305-728-4622

305-623-3174



THE SCHOOQIL BOARD OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended Juneg 30, 2011

SUMMARY OF SIGRIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued:

Reporting Entity — continued

River Cities Community Charter Schoaol
(6049)

Sandor Wiener School of Opportunity (5710)
Sandor Wiener School of Opportunity, South
{5030)

SlATech (School for Integrated Academics &
Technologies) {7030)

Somerset Academy (0520)
Somerset Academy (Silver Palms) (0332}
Somerset Academy Charter Middle Schooal

(6004)

Somerset Academy Charter High School
(7042)

Somerset Academy Charter High School
{South Campus) (7038}

Somerset Academy Charier Elementary
Schoot {South Homestead) (0339) el

Somerset Academy Charter Middle School
(South Homestead) (6013)

Somerset Academy Elementary
(South Miami Campus) (2007}

Somerset Academy Charier Middle
{South Miamt Campus) (6053)

Somerset Academy Middle School
{Country Palms) (5043)

Somerset Arts Academy (2012}

Somerset Grace Academy (5008)

South Flonda Autism Charter Schoal {(1070)

Summerville Advantage Academy (0072}
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3405 NW 27" Avenue
hiami, FL 33142

20000 Nwy 477 Ave,, Bldg. 7

Miami Gardens, FL 33055

11025 Sw 84" $t., Bldg. 5
Miarmi, FL 33173

12350 SW 285" Street
Homestead, FL 33033

18491 SW 134" Avenue
Miami, FL 33177

23255 SW 115" Avenue
Homestead, Fi. 33032

18491 SW 134" Avenue
Miami, FL 33177

23255 SW 115" Avenue
Homestead, FL 33032

23255 SW 115" Avenue
Homestead, FL 33032

300 SE First Dnve
Homestead, FL 33030

300 SE First Drive
Homestead, FL 33030

5876 SW 65" Street
South Miami, FL 3143

5875 SW 658" Street
South Miami, FL 3143

1700 Krome Avenue
Homestead, FI. 33030

1700 Krome Avenue
Homestead, FL 33030

624 Anastasia Avenue
Coral Gables, FL 33134

7400 W 24" Avenue (2" FI)

Hialeah, FL 33016

11575 SW 243" Street
Homestead, FL 33032

786-634-5090

305-623-9631

305-279-3064

305-258-9477

305-D69-6074

305-257-3737

305-4969-6074

305-257-3737

305-257-3737

305-254-8108

305-254-6108

305-740-0509

305-740-0509

305-245-4049

305-248-4949

305-442-8626

305-823-2700

305-253-2123



THE SCHOOL BOARD OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued:

A.

Reporting Entity - continued

The Charter School at Waterstone (1010) 855 Waterstone Way e
Homestead, FL 33033 305-248-6206

Theodore B. & Thelma A. Gibson Charter 1628 NW Fourth Avenue
Schoel (2060) Miami, FL 33136 305-438-0895

ia) Previously named Excelsior Language Academy Charter Schoal.

(b)  Schooi ceased operations in mid-year, as such its financial statements were not included in Non-major
Component Units Schedule F.

{c}  Incorporated under the name of New Alternative Education High School of Miami-Dade County. Inc.

{d} Previausly named Somerset Country Palms.

On January 16, 2008 the Schaool Board authorized the establishment of the Foundation
for New Education Initiatives, Inc., a Florida not-for-profit 501{c}{3) Direct Support
Organization {DS0). The DSC was formed to support academic achievernent by
receiving, holding, investing, and administering property and making expenditures for
the benefit of public education programs in the District. The DSO is organized and
operated exclusively in accordance with Schoel Board Rule 86GX13-18-1.08, School
Board Direct Support Organization, and Florida Statutes 1001.453, Direct Support
Organization. Due to the nature and significance of the relationship with the District, the
Foundation for New Education Initiatives, Inc. is included in the financial statements of
the District as a discretely presented component unit. The audited financial statements
of the Foundation for New Education Initiatives, Inc. can be obtained at the District's
administrative offices.

Basis of Presentation

The Gistrict's accounting policies conform with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United S{ates applicable to state and local governmental units. Accordingly, the
basic financial statements include both the government-wide and fund financial
statements,

Government-Wide Financial Statements — The Statement of Net Asseis and the
Statemeant of Activities present information about the financial aclivities of the District as
a whole, and its component units, excluding fiduciary activities. Eliminations have been
made from the statements to remove the “doubling-up® effect of interfund activity.

The Statement of Activities reports expenses identified by specific functions, offset by
program revenues, resuiting in @ measurement of ‘net (expense) revenue® for each of
the District's functions. Program revenues that are used to offset these expenses
include charges for services, such as food service and tuition fees, operating grants,
such as the National Schoel Lunch Program, Federal Grants, and other state
allocations; and capital grants specific to capital outlay. In addition, revenues not
classified as program revenues are shown as general revenues,



1.

THE SCHOOL BOARD OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued:

Basis of Presentation — continued

Fund Financial Statements — The fund financial statements provide information about
the District's funds, including proprietary and fiduciary funds. Separate staternents for
governmental, proprietary and fiduciary funds are presented. The emphasis of the fund
financial statements is on the major funds which are presented in & separate column
with all non-major funds aggregated in a single column,

The District reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund is the District's primary operating fund and accounts for all financial
resources of the District, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

Federal Economic Stimulus Funds account for and report on funds received from The
American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 and the Education Jobs Fund to
stimulate the economy, save jobs and improve education. Given the importance of the
American Recovery and Reinvesiment Act {ARRA) Funds, management has elected to
consider these funds as a major fund.

ARRA Economic Stimulus Debt Service Fund accounts for and reports on Debt Service
for American Recovery and Reinvestment Act school construction bonds. Given the
importance of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act (ARRA)} Funds,
management has elected o consider this fund as a majar fund.

Capital improvement — | ocal Optional Millage Levy (LOML) Funds account for and
report on funds levied by the school district, as authorized by Capital Improvement,
Section 1011.71, Florida Statutes, for capital outlay purpeses.  Given the impartance of
the LOML Funds, management has elected to consider these funds as a major fund.

Cerlificates of Participation (COPs) Funds account for and report on funds received from
the issuance of Certificates of Participation, used for the acguisition and construction of
schools and ancillary schools. Also included are the Qualified Zone Academy Baonds
used for renovations on existing schools. Given the importance of the COPs Funds,
management has elected to consider these funds as a major fund.

ARRA Economic Stimulus Capital Projects Funds account for and report on procesds
received from the issuance of Qualified School Construction Bonds (QSCBs) and Build
America Bonds (BABs) used for the construction, rehabiiitation or repair of school
facilities. Given the importance of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act
(ARRA)} Funds, management has elected to consider these funds as a major fund.

Additionaliy, the District reparts separately the following proprietary and fiduciary fund
types:

internal Service Fund accounts for and reperts on the activities of the District's group
health self-insurance program.

Agency Fund — Schoo!'s intemal Fund accounts for resaurces of the schools’ Intermal
Fund which is used to administer monies collected at the schools in connection with
school, student athletics, class, and ciub activities.

Pension Trust Fund accounts for resources used to finance the District's Supplemental
Early Retireament Plan.
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1.

THE SCHQOL BOARD OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued:

C.

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined by its
measurement focus. The basis of accounting refers to when revenues ang expenditures
are recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial statements. Basis of
accounting relates to the timing of the measurement made, regardless of the
measurement focus applied.

The government-wide financial staternents are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when
earned and axpenses are recorded when the liability is incurred, regardiess of the timing
of related cash fiows. Revenues from non-exchange fransactions are reported
according to Governmental Accounting Standards Board [GASB) Statement No. 33,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Non-Exchange Transactions, as amended by
GASB Statement No. 36, Recipiert Reporting for Cerfain Shared Non-Fxchange
Revenues, they include, taxes, grants and donations. On the accrual basis, revenue
from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied.
Revenues from grants and donations are recognized in the fiscal year in which all
eligihility requirements have been satisfied.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the
modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues except for certain grant revenues, are
recognized when susceptible to accrual, that is, when they become measurable and
available. "Measurable” means the amount of the fransaction can be determined;
“available” means collectible within the current pericd or soon thereafier to be used to
pay liabilities of the current period. Property taxes, interest and certain General Fund
revenues are the significant revenue sources considered susceptible to accrual. The
Schocol Board considers property taxes as available if they are coliected within 60 days
after fiscal year-end. Florida Education Finance Program revenues are recognized
when received. A one-year availability period is used for revenue recognition for all
other governmental fund revenues. When grant terms provide that the expenditure of
funds is the prime factor for determining eligibility for federal, state, and other grant
funds, revenue is recognized at the time the expenditure is made. Under the madified
accrual basis of accounting, expenditures are generzlly recognized when the related
fund liability is incurred. The principal exceptions to this general rule are: (1) interest on
general long-term debt is recognized as expenditures when due; and (2) expenditures
related to liabilities reported as general iong-term debt are recegnized when due.

Proprietary Fund — Proprietary funds are accounted for as proprietary activities under
standards issued by the Financial Accounting Standard Board (FASB) through
November 1989, and applicable standards issued by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board. During the fiscal year 2009-10, the District established an Internal
Service Fund to acceunt for the group health self-insurance program. The Intemal
Service Fund is accounted for on a flow of economic resources measurement focus.
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nen-operating
items. The principal operating revenues of the District's Internal Service Fund for self-
insurance are charges to the District for health insurance. The principal operating
expenses include insurance claims, administrative expenses and fees. Al revenuas and
expenses not meeting these definitions are reported as non-operating revenues and
expenses.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued:

C.

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting — continued

The Pension Trust Fund is accounted for on a flow of economic resources measurement
focus. With this measuremnant focus, all assets and all liahiiities associated with the
operation of this fund are included cn the Staterment of Fiduciary Net Assets. The
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Met Assets presents increases (revenues) and
decreases {expenses) in fund equity (totat net assets).

Component Units — The charter schools are accounted for as governmental
organizations and follow the same accounting model as the District's governmental
activities. The Foundation for New Education Initiatives, Inc. follows FASB standards of
accounting and financial reporting for not-for-profit organizations.

New Pronouncements

GASB 54, Fund Balance Reporiing and Governmental Fund Tvpe Definitions. The
ohjective of this staterment is to improve the usefulness, including the understandability
of governmental fund balance information. This statemert establishes fund balance
classifications, provides for a hierarchy of spending constraints for spendable resources
and requires disclosure of nonspendable and spendable resources. The adoption of
GASB 54 is reflected in the fund financial statements, as well as in Note 19 in the Motes
to the Financial Staternents.

The GASB issued Statement No. 57, OFPEB _Measurements by Agent Employers and
Agent Multiple-Employer FPlans in December 2009, This statement amends Statement
No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Emplovers for Postemplovment Benefits
Other Than Pensions. Provisions related to the use and reporting of the altemative
measurement method are effective immediately. The provisions related to the
frequency and timing of measurements are effective for actuarial valuations first used to
report funded status information on OFEB plan financial statements for periods
beginning after June 13, 2011,

The GASB issued Statement No. 59, Financial Insfruments Omnibus in June 20130, The
requirements of the related Statement are effective far financial statements for periods
beginning after June 15, 2010. The adoption of GASE 5% did not have an impact on the
District's financial position or results of operations.

The GASB issued Statement No. 61, The Financial Feporfing Entity. Omnibus — an
amendment of GASE Statements No. 14 and No. 34 in November 2010. The
requirements of the related Statement are effective for financial statements for periods
beginning after June 15, 2012.

The GASE issued Statement No. 82, Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting
Guidance Confained in Pre-November 30 1988 FASS and AICPA Pronouncements in
December 2010, The requirements of the related Statement are effective for financial
staterments for periods beginning after December 15, 2011.  The provisions of this
Statement generally are required to be applied retroactively for all periods presented.

The GASB issued Statement No. 63, Firancial Reporting of Deferreq Quifiows of
Resources, Deferred inflows of Resources, and Net Position in June 2011, The objective
of this Statement is to provide guidance for reporting deferred outflows of resources,
deferred inflows of resources, and net position in a statement of financial positicn and
related disclosures. The requirements of the related Statement are effective for financial
staterents for periods beginning after December 15, 2011, The provisions of this
statement generally are required to be applied retroactively for all pericds presented.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued:

D.

New Pronouncements — continued

The GASB issued Statement No. 64 Derivative Instruments Application of Hedge
Accounting Termination Provisions (an amendment of GASE Staternent No. 53} in June
2011. The objective of this Statement is to improve financial reporting for state and local
governments by clarifying whether an effective hedging relationship continues after the
replacement of 2 swap counterparty or a swap counterparty's credit support provider. The
requirgments of the related Statement are effective for financial statements for periods
beginning after June 15, 2011. The provisions of this statement generally are required to
be applied retroactively for ali periods presented.

The impact on the District's financial position or results of operations has not yet been
determined for the unadopted standards.

Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments

The District maintains an accounting system in which substantially all general School
Board cash, investments, and accrued interest are reccrded and maintained in a
separate group of accounts. Investment income is allocated based on the proportionate
balances of each fund's equity in pooled cash and investments. The cash and
investment pool is available for all funds, except the State Board of Education Bonds,
Certificates of Participation and other debt related funds requiring separate accounts.

Cash deposits are held by banks qualified as public depositeries under Florida law. All
deposits are insured by federal depository insurance and/or coliateralized with securities
held in Florida's muliiple financial institution collateral pool as required by Florida
Statutes, Chapter 280. Cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand,
demand deposits, non-markstable time deposits with maturities of three months or less
when purchased, money markel/saving accounts and funds.

Investments are carried at fair value and include U5 Agency obligations, Commercial
Paper, and Money Market Mutual Funds. Pension Trust Fund investments are recorded
at fair value and include: U.S. Agency cbligations, corporate bonds, money market
funds, and corporate stocks.

Inventory

Inventories consist of expendable supplies held for consumption in the course of the
District's operations. Inventories are stated at cost, principally ocn a weighied average
cost basis. Commodities from the United States Department of Agriculture are stated at
their fair value as determined at the time of donation by the Florida Department of
Agriculture and Consumer Services. Commodities inventory is accounted for using the
“purchases” method that expense inventory when acquired and inventories on hand at
fiscal year end are reported as an asset and nenspendable fund balance.  Non-
commedity inventory s accounted for under the consumption method and as such is
recorded as an expenditure when used. Since inventories of commodities also involve
purpose resirictions they are presented as restricted net assets in the government-wide
staiement of net assets.

Due From Other Governments or Agencies

Amounts dug to the District by other governments or agencies are for grants or
programs for which the services have been provided to the community by the District.
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THE SCHOOL BOARD OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued:

H.

Other Assets

Other assets consist mainly of prepaid expenses which are recegnized upon the receipt
of the goods or services that were received but not consumed at year-end. The
expenditure will be recorded when the asset is used. Accordingly, prepaid expenses are
equally offset by a nonspendabie fund kalance classification.

Restricted Net Assets

Certain proceeds from bonds and Certificates of Participation (CCPs) issuances, as well
as resources for debt service payments are classified as restricted net assets on the
Statement of Net Assets because their use is limited by applicable bond covenants and
restrictions.

When both restricted and unrestricted net assets are available for a specific purpose, it
is the District's policy fo use restricted net assets first, until exhausted, before using
unrestricted resources.

Capital Assets

Capital assets which include, land, land improvements, construction in progress,
buildings, building tmprovements, furniture, fixtures and equipment, computer software,
and motor vehicles are reported in the Statement of Net Assets in the govemment-wide
statements. The District's capitalization thresholds are $1,000 er greater for furniture,
fixtures and equipment and $50.000 for building improvemnents, additions, and other
capital cutlays that significantly extend the useful life of an asset.  Other costs incurred
for repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred. Assets are recorded at historical
cost  Assets purchased under capital leases are recorded at cost, which approximates
fair value at acquisition date and does not exceed the present value of future minimum
lease payments. Donated assets are recorded at the fair value at the time of receipt.
Certain costs incurred in connection with the develepment of internal use software are
capitalized and amortized in accordance with GASE Statement No. 51 and are reflacted
in the government-wide financial statemants.

Capital assels are depreciated using the straight-line method based on the following
estimated useful lives:

Useful Life {Years)

Buildings and Improvements 20-50
Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment 5-20
Vehicles 7—18
Computer Software 5 years

When capital assets are sold or disposed of, the related cost and accumulated
depreciation are removed from the accounts, and the resulting gain or loss is recorded
in the government-wide statements. Proceeds received from the sale or disposal of
capital assets are recorded as Other Financing Sources in the governmental funds.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued:

K.

Long-Term Debt and Compensated Absences

The government-wide financial statements report leng-term liabilities or obligations that
are expecied to be paid in the future. Long-term liabilities reported include bonds,
Certificates of Participation (COPs), derivative instrument liabilities, capital leases,
insurance claims payable, vested vacation and sick pay henefits, estimate for
anticipated non-vested sick pay benefits, and Post Retirement Benefits payable in future
years. Bond premiums/discounts are amortized over the [ife of the bonds using the
effective-interest method; while deferred loss on advance refundings and issuance costs
are amortized over the shorter of the remaining life of the refunded bonds or the life of
the new bonds in a systematic and rational method, which approximates the effective-
interest method.

tn the fund financial statements, bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance
costs are recoghized in the period they are issued. Proceeds, premiums, and discounts
are reported as other financing sources and uses. Issuance costs are reported as debt
service expenditures.

Self-Insurance

The District is self-insured for portions of its generat and automobile liability insurance
and workers’ compensation. Claim activity (expenditures for general and autormnohbile
liability and workers' compensation) is recorded in the general fund as payments
become due each period. The estimated liability for self-insured risks represents an
estimate of the amount to be paid on insurance claims reported and on insurance claims
incurred but not reported {See note 13). For the governmental funds, in the fund
financial statements, the liability for self-insured risks is considered long-term and
therefore, is not a fund liability {except for any amounts due and payable at year end)
and represents a reconciing item between the fund level and government-wide
presentations.

The District provides heailth insurance for its employees and eligible dependents.
Effective January 1, 2010, the district changed from a fully insured plan to a self-insured
plan, with individuzl, as well as aggregate stop loss coverage to protect the District
against catastrophic claims in a calendar year. The District accounts for heaith
insurance activity in an internal service fund estabished for this purpose. (n the
proprietary fund financial statements, the liability for self-insured risks is recorded under
the accrual basis of accounting.

State Revenue Sources

Revenues from state sources for current operations are primarily from the Florida
Education Finance Program (FEFP), administered by the Florida Department of
Education (FDOE), under the provisions of Seclion 1011.62, Florida Statutes. The
District files reports on full-time equivalent {FTE) student membership with the FDOE.
The FDOE accumulates information from these reports and calculates the allocation of
FEFP funds to the District. After review and verification of FTE reports and supporting
documentation, the FDOE may adjust subseguent fiscal period aliocations of FEFP
funding for prior year errors disclosed by Its review as well as to prevent statewide
aliocations from exceeding the amount avthorized by the Legislature. Normally, such
adjustments are treated as reductions of revenue in the year the adjustment is made.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued:

State Revenue Sources — continued

The District receives revenue from the state to administer certain educational programs.
State Board of Education rules require that revenue earmarked for these programs be
expended only for the program for which the money is provided and require that the
money not expended as of the close of the fiscal year be carried forward into the
following year 1o be expended for the same educational programs. Any unused money is
returned to the FDOE and so recorded in the year when returned.

The state allocates gross receipt taxes, generally known as Public Education Capital
QOutlay {PECQO) money, to the District on an annual basis for capital and other projects.
The District is authorized to expend these funds anly upon applying for and receiving an
encumbrance authorization from the FDOE. Accordingly, the District recognizes the
allocation of PECO funds as deferred revenue until such time as the encumbrance
authorization is approved.

Property Taxes — Revenue Recognition

In the government-wide financial statements, property tax revenue is recognized when
levied. The receivable is recorded net of an estimated uncollectible, which is based on
past coliection experience. In the fund financial statements, property tax revenue is
recognized when taxes are received. Year-end revenue is accrued for taxes collected by
the County Tax Collector and received by the District within 80 days subsequent to fiscal
year-end,

Deferred/Uneamed Revenue

Deferred revenue in the governmental fund financial staternents relate to properly taxes
receivable that are measurable, but not available. The unearned revenue in the
Statement of Net Assets primarily relates to the lease of Educational Broadband Service
(EBS) licenses that will be amortized aver the life of the lease agreement.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States reguires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial staterments and reported
amounts of revenues and expenditures during the reporting period. Actual results could
differ from those estimates.

Fund Balances

For fiscal year 2010-11, the District adopted Govermmental Accounting Standards Boeard
(GASB) Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporiing and Governmental Fund Tyope
Definftions. This Statemeant establishes accounting and financial reporting standards for
governmental funds. It establishes criteria for classifying fund balances into specifically
defined classifications and clarifies definitions for governmental fund types. The objective of
the Statemant is to provide a more structured classification of fund balance and 1o improve
usefulness and understanding of fund balance information to the users of the District's
financial statements. Fund balances for govemmental funds are reported in classifications
that comprise a hierarchy based pramarily on the extent to which the government is bound to
honor censtraints on the uses of those resources.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued:

Q. Fund Balances — continued

GASB Statement No. 54 requires the fund balance to be properly reported within one of the
fund balance categories listed balow:

Nonspendable - Fund balance amounts that cannot be spent because they are not
expected to be conwverted to cash or they are legally or contractuzlly required to
maintain intact. Examples of this classification are prepaid items, inventories, and
principal of an andowment fund.

Spendable Fund Balance
Restricted — Fund balance amounts on which constraints have been placed by
creditors, grantors, contributors, laws or regulations of other governments,
constifutional provisions or enabling legislation,

Committed - Fund bBalance amounts that can only be used for specific purposes
pursuant to constraints imposed by the formal action of the highest level of decision-
making authority (The Schoot Board). The amounts cannot be used for any other
purpose unlass the School Board removes or changes the specified use by taking
the same formal action it employed to commit the amounts,

Assigned - Fund balance amounts intended to be used for specific purposes but
are neither restricted nor committed. Assigned amounts include those that have
been set aside for a specific purpose by actions of the School Board or
Supenintendant and not included in other categeries.

Unassigned — Includes residual positive fund balance within the General Fund
which has not been ciassified within the other above mentioned categories.
Unassigned fund balance may also include negative balances for any governmental
fund if expenditures exceed amounts restricted, committed, or assigned for those
specific purposes.
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BUDGETS COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY:

A,

Legal Compliance

The annual budget is submitted to the Florida Commissicner of Education by major
functional levels such as instructional, instructional support, general administration,
maintenance, etc. Expenditures may not exceed appropriations without prior approval
of the Schoal Board in the General Fund and Special Revenue Fungs at the function
level. Budgetary control is exercised at the fund level for all other funds.

Florida Statutes, Section 1013.61, requires that the capital outlay budget designate the
proposed capital outlay expenditures by project for the year from all fund sources
Accordingly, annual budgets for the Capital Project Funds are adopted on a combined
basis only.

Budgeted amounts may be amended by resolution of the Board at any Board meeting
prior {0 the due date for the Anpual Financial Report (State Report). General Fung
budgetary disclosure in the accompanrying financial statements reflects the final budget
including all amendments approved for the fiscal year through September 7, 2011.

Appropriations lapse at fiscal year-end, except for unexpended appropriations of state
educational grants. outstanding purchase orders, contracts, and certain available
balances. These balances are reflected at year-end gither as restricted or assigned fund
balance, and are re-appropriated in the new fiscal year,

Encumbrance accounting is employed in governmental funds. Encumbrances (eg.,
purchase orders, contracts} outstanding at year-end are reported as resfricted or
assigned fund balance and do not constitute expenditures or liabilities because the
commitments will be reappropriated and honored during the subseguent year,

Deficit Fund Equity

The Internal Service Fund that accounts for the District's group health insurance ended
the fiscal year with a net asset deficit of ${6.2) million. The self-insurance program has
been in effect since January 1, 2010. The deficit is attributed in part to a declining
employee popliation that varied from the actuarial estimation and earty historical data
that was based on a fully insured plan,

This deficit, accumulated over the first 18 months of the plan, represents a variance of
1.2% of actuarially determined claims and other plan expenses totaling over $507.5
million, during the same pericd. |t is anticipated that the deficit condition will disappear
as the program matures over several years and as plan changes designed to lower
costs take effect in 2012.

Comparison of Budget to Actual Results

The budgets for each of the Governmental Funds are accounted for on the modified
accrual basis of accounting.
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CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND INVESTMENTS:

Deposits and Investments

The District's surplus funds are invested directly by the District's Office of Treasury
Management. Investments of the District’'s State Board of Education {SBE} hond proceeds held
and administered by the SBE are made by the State Board of Administration.

As authorized under State Statutes the School Board has adopted School Board Rule 6Gx13-

3B1.01, Deposit and Investment Policies for School Board Funds, {Investment Policy} as its
formal Investment Policy for all surplus funds, except for the Supplemental Earty Retirement

Funds, which are invested under Scheol Board Rule 6Gx13- 401.102.  School Board Rule
B5Gx13- 3B81.01 policies permit the following investments and are strucifured to place the highest
pricrity on the safety of principal and liquidity of funds:

+  Time Deposits — School Board and State approved designated depository
» .5 Government direct abligations

» Revolving Repurchase Agreements or similar investment vehicles for the investment of
funds awalting clearance with financial institutions

«  Commercial Paper rated A1/P1/F1 or better

- Bankers Acceptances with the 100 largest banks in the world

+  State Board of Administration Local Government Investment Pool

+  {bligations of the Federal Farm Credit Bank

«  Obligations of the Federal Home Loan Bank

+  (Obligations of the Federal Home Loan Martgage Corporation

«  Obligations of the Federal National Mortgage Association

+  Obligations guaranteed by the Government National Mortgage Association

*  Securities of any investment company of investment trust registered under the
Investment Company Act of 1840 15 US5.C.

In addition, under School Board Ruie 6Gx13- 4D1.102, Early Retirement Plan — [nvestment
Policies, the following investments are also permitted.

» Corporate or Taxable Government Bonds rated investment grade
+  Equity Secunties including index funds and actively managed mutual funds
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CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND INVESTMENTS, Continued:

Cash, cash equivalents, and investments for governmental, fiduciary and proprietary funds of the
District as of June 30, 2011 are as follows:

Weighted
Fair Value Average
Investment Type {$ in thousands) Maturity (Years)
Commercial Paper b §2,922 0.07
U.&. Government Agency 368,314 0.14
U.S. Treasury Note SLUGS 86,037 0.98
Money Market Mutual Funds 15,404 0.14
State Board of Education — COBI 2,123
Guaranteed Investment Contract 32,452 3.66
Corporate Bonds — Pension Trust Fund 2a1
Total Debt investments 567,513 0.43
Corporate Stocks — Pension Trust Fund 12,739
Total Investments 580,252
Cash and Cash Equivaients 244,417
Total Cash and Investments 5 824,669

At June 30, 2011, 33154 million in cash and investments relate to unspent proceeds pertaining
to various financings including the Qualified Schoel Construction Bonds (QSCBs) and Build
America Bond (BABs), Master Equipment Lease for ERP system, and Certificates of
Participation (COPs), which are restricted assets whose use is limited to projects primarily
related to the acquisition and construction of school facilities and eguipment as authorized by
Beard Resoclutions and Debt Covenants.
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CASH, CASH FQUIVALENTS, AND INVESTMENTS, Continued:

Infergst Rate Risk: in accordance with its investment policy under Board Rule 6Gx13- 3B8-1.01,
the School Board manages its exposure to declines in fair values by substantially limiting the
weighted average maturity on all investments o one year or less. U5, Government Agency
Securities include $53.2 milion in callable step-up that are assumed to be calied on the next call
date, and as such the weighted average maturity reflect the call date as the maturity date for
these securities. The calculated weighted average maturity for all callable set-up US
Government Agency Securities is 33 days.

Credit Risk:
Percentage of Debt
Investrment Type Rating * Investments
Coimmercial Paper A1+ 1428 %
Federal Home Loan Bank Agency Al 22.54 %
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation Agency A+ 2160 %
Federal National Mortgage Asscciation Agency AA+ 19.34 %
U.S. Treasury Note SLUGS AA+ 11.38 %
Maoney Market Mutual Funds AAAM 265 %
State Board of Education — COBI Not Rated 037%
Guaranteed Investment Contract Not Rated 558 %
Corporate Bonds — Pension Trust Fund Not Rated 0.05 %

* Standards & Poor’s ratings as of June 30, 2011, except for agencies which were downgraded
from AAA to AA+ an August, 5, 2011,

Concentration Risks: In accordance with Board Rule 6Gx13- 3B-1.01, the District permmits up
to 20% in Federal Home Loan Bank, 20% in Federat Home Loan Mortgage Corporation agency
securities, and 20% in Federal National Morlgage Association. Also, up to 60% of iotal
investment portfolic balance can be invested in Commercial Paper. Due to economic
uncertainty and credit risk, the District held $242.2 millicn in coilateralized bank’s saving
accounts and time deposits, which is reflected as cash eqguivalent and not reported as an
investment in the above credit risk calculation.  Although the credit risk percentage computation
excludes all cash equivalent balances, the District's policy includes saving accounts and tims
deposits balances in determining policy credit risk percentage limits. The percentage of all
agencies is less than 20% per issuer, as required by policy, when the collateralized bank saving
accounts balance ts included in the total investments computation. A formal rating was not
available from Standards and Poor's for the Lehman Brother's corporate bond, which lost its
ariginal investment grade rating after the company filed for bankruptcy.

Custodial Risk: Al securiies in accordance with the District's investment policy under Board
Rule 6Gx13- 3B-1.01, with the exception of time deposits, are held by a third party custodian in
an account separate and apart from the assets of the custodian designated as assets of the
District.

Cash/Depuosits

The District's cash deposits include money market/savings, demand deposits, time deposils and
petty cash. All bank balances of the District are fully insured or collateralized. At June 30, 2011,
the deposit's fair value and bank balances were $244.417 {in thousands).
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CAPITAL ASSETS:

Capital asset balances and activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 are as follows (in
thousands):

Balance Balance
July 1, 2010 Additions Deletions June 30, 2011

Mon-Depreciable

{apital Assets:
Land ¥ 336629 % 40 % {170) L 338,499
Land Improvements 215,689 15,462 - 231,151
Construction-in-

Progress g7,.076 106,497 {163,8B1) 39,592
Sqfhvare Development 14.818 6874 i 21,692

in Progress
Total Non-Depreciable

Capital Assets 664 212 N 128 873 {164,151) 52-8,934
Depreciable

Capital Assets:
E!u||ldmgs and 5221777 158,115 {2,294} 5,377 .598

mprovements
Fumiture, Fixtures, and

Equipment 312.028 28,995 {15,236) 323,787
Computer Software B8 272 - - 59,272
Metor Vehicles 133,484 893 {202) 134 275
Total Depreciable

Capital Assets 5,725,561 186,103 {17.732) 5,884,932
Leas Accumulated

Depreciation/

Amortization far:
Building and

Imprevements 1,258 449 150,269 {1,830 1,406,918
Fumiture, Fixtures, and

Equsipment 204 712 28.107 (10,707} 222112
Computer Software 5,927 11,855 - 17,782
Motor Vehicles 54,733 7.785 (34) 72,479
Total Accumulated o

Depreciation/

Amortization 1,533.821 193,046 I[‘| 2,5?6) 1.719,291
Net Capital Assets % 4856952 % 116,830 § {168,307 $ 4,804,575
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4. CAPITAL ASSETS. Continued:

For fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, depreciation/amortization by function is as follows:

Amount
Functions (§ in thousands)

Instructional Services 5 4 444
Instructional Support Services 1,831
Pupil Transportation Services 6,323
Cperation and Maintenance of Plant 1,603
School Administration 373
General Administration 180
Food Services 1,120
Other 17
Facilities Acquisition and Construction 28376
Unailocated to a spectic function 152,779

Total Depreciatiorn/Amortization $ 198,046

Construction-in-progress, as of June 30, 2011, is comprised of the following (in thousands}:

Incurred

To Date
Elementary Schools $ 3,766
Middle Schools 3,668
Senior High Schools 30,608
Special Schools 411
AdministrationfOther 1,138

TOTAL 3 39,592

As part of its capital outlay program, the District has entered into various construction contracts.
At June 30, 2011, the District had construction commitments of approximately $149 5 million.



THE SCHOOL BEOARD OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS:

Interfund receivables and payables consisted of the following balances as of June 30, 2011 (in
thousands):

Due From Due To
Other Funds Other Funds
Major Funds:
General Fund $ 22205 3 8,158
Federal Economic Stimulus Funds 1,389 11,212
Capital Improvement LOML - 75
Certificates of Participation 22 -
ARRA Economic Stmulus
Capital Project Funds 28 1
Total Major Funds 23644 19,444
Total Non-Major Funds 1,583 17.031
Total Governmental Funds $ 25,237 $ 368,475
Proprietary Furnd:
Internal Service Fund 11,238 -
Tetals 5 36,475 $ 36,475

Interfund receivables/payables are short-term balances that represent reimbursements between
funds for payments made by one fund on behalf of another fund.

A summary of transfers for the year ended June 30, 2011 are as follows (in thousands):

Transfers to:
ARRA
Economic
General Stimulus Debt Mon-Major
Transfers from: Fund Service Funds Total
Major Funds:
Capital Improvemeant LOML 5 126,506 % 1,808 $ 188319 3 314634
Certificates of Participation - - 14,066 14,066
ARRA Capital Projects - 178 - 178
Non-Major Funds 27039 - 10,284 37,323
Total 3 153,545 L 1,987 £ 20,66% $ 366,21

The transfers to the General Fund relate to funding for the maintenance, rencvation andior repair of
school faciliies, pursuant to Section 1011.71 of the Florida Statutes. Transfers to other non-major

funds primarily relate to debt service payments.
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THE SCHOOL BOARD OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

6. RECEIVABLES/PAYABLES FROM OTHER AGENCIES:

Receivables at June 30, 2011, are as follows (in thousands):

Federal
Economic
General Stimulus Non-Major
Fund Funds Funds Total
Due From Other Agencies
Federal Government:
Medicawt Federal & 10,544 5 - $ - ] 10.544
Food Service
Reimbursement ) . 16.811 16.811
Fund For The
Improvernant of Education - ) 2,468 2458
Teacher Incentive - - 1,585 1,585
Misceltaneous Federal 343 65 1,774 2182
State Government:
IDEA Part B - 871 - &71
Title | - 10,132 3,282 13,354
SAVES - - 2,170 2170
FEMA G687 - - 687
Voluntary Prekindergarten _ .
Frogram 08 508
Miscellansous State 120 120 3,972 4,212
Local Government:
Miscellaneous Local 4152 - 3,068 7.220
Miarni-Drade County - - 2274 2.274
Driver's Education
Program 1.10¢ - - 1,100
South Florida After-School
All Stars 1,273 - - 1273
Tatal $ 1B, 727 H 11,188 % 37,384 L3 87,290
Payables at June 30, 2011, are as follows (in thousands):
General Non-Major
Fund Funds Total

Due To Other Agencies
Federal Government:

Miscehaneaus Federal i - 3 g84 k] 8B4
State Government:

Miscellaneous State 16 - 16

Local (Government:
Charter Schools 4,216 - 4216
Miscellaneous Local Z 1,524 1,526
Tofal 3 4,234 $ Z,408 H 5,642
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SHORT-TERM DEBT

Short-term debt activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, is as follows {in thousands}:

Balance Balance
July 1, 2010 Additions Deletions June 30, 2011
Tax  Anticipation Note
[TAN). Series 2010, issued
on July 16, 2010, effective
yield of 0.302%, with a
maturity date of January 18,
2011 $ - 3 250,000 % 250,000 § -
Total $ - % 250,000 - 250,000 5

Proceeds from the TAN were used as a working capital reserve in the General Fund as
permitted under State and Federal tax laws.
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COMPENSATED ABSENCES:

The District's employee vacation and sick leave policies provide for the granting of a specific
number of days of vacation based on years of service governed by applicable labor contracts
and one day of sick ieave with pay per each month of employment. Active employees, excluding
adminisiratars, may request payment of 80% of their unused sick leave which has accumulated
during the fiscai year, provided they have not used more than three sick/personal days during
that time and have a remaining balance, after payment, of twenty-one days. These policies also
provide for paying most employees unused vacation up to 80 days upon termination, and up to
100% of unused sick leave after thinteen years of service; 50% after ten vears; 45% after six
years, 40% after three years and 35% during the first three years of qualified service upon
retirement, death or resignation. Vacation accrual is timited to 60 days for twelve-month active
employees.

The Scheol Board approved the adoption of the Miami-Dade County Public Schools Terminal
lLeave Retirement Program (TLRP} at its May 14, 2003 Board meeting. The TLRP Program
consists of a tax-favored retirement plan, which allows the Board to direct accrued annual
{vacation) leave or terminal sick leave {accrued sick days) for employees who are separating
frorn service as a result of retirement, or entering into or continuing DROP, to a tax-sheltered
annuity program, or other qualified plan, in lieu of a taxable cash payment to the employee, upen
separation from service,

The program is mandatory as a result of Beard action which became effective on May 15, 2003,
for all personnel (except AFSCME employaes) who will have their annual {(vacation) leave and
terminal sick leave automatically contributed o either the Board's Tax Sheltered Annuity 403(b)
or 401(a) Programs. Contributions into this program will not be subject to either Federal Income
Tax {estimated 27%} or Social Security Tax (FICA) of 7.65%. Any amount of accrued terminal
leave in excess of the amounts authorized by the IRS will be paid cut to the retiring employee
and will be subject to applicable taxes.

The current portion (the amount expected to be liquidated with current available resources) of
the accumulated vested vacation and anticipated sick leave payments is recorded in the General
Fund and is included in accrued payroll and compensated absences. The liabilities recorded
include provisions for the employer's portion of pension contributions, FICA and other fringe
benefits on the vested vacation and sick leave as applicable. At June 30, 2011, the accrued
liahility for compensated absences in the General Fund was $8.9 million.

Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statermment No.o 18, Accounting for
Compensated Absences, reguires governmental agencies to record as a liability the vested and
future rights to sick and/or vacation leave. Accordingly, the probabiiity of parially vested
employees becoming fully vested and actual past termination payment experience was
considered in the determination of this liability,

The statement of net assets reflects both the current and long-term portions of compensated
absences including retirement incentive benefits. At June 30, 2011, the current and long-term
portions were $19,243 and 255,457 respectively {in thousands).
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CAPITAL LEASES:

The District has entered into various capital lease agreements for the acquisition of cerfain
property, vehicles, and equipment which are stated at acquisition cost and inciuded as part of
our Capital Assets. At June 30, 2011, the net book value of leased eguipment recorded in
Capital Assets was $104.4 million. Additionzlly. $1.3 million of unspent proceeds relating to the
Master Equipment Lease Agreement is disclosed as restricted cash and investrments at June 30,
2011 in Note 3.

The following is a surmmary of the future minimum lease payments, under capital leases together
with the prasent value of the minimum lease payments as of June 30, 2011 (in thousands);

Other Master Lease
Fiscal Year Leases Equip Total
2012 ] 622 $ 33672 3 34,294
2043 283 33872 33,655
2014 197 22,598 22,7495
2015 o4 21,949 22,043
2016 14 21,300 21,314
2017 - 3,085 3085
1210 136,276 137,486
Less Amount Representing Interest 138 12,135 12273
Present Value of Minimum Lease $ 1,072 s 124,141 g 125,213

Payments

The amount representing interest was calculated using imputed rates ranging primarily from
0.00% to 16.00%.
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LONG-TERM BONDS PAYABLE:

State Board of Education Capital Qutlay Bonds

Capital Quttay Bends are issued by the State Board of Education {SBE) on behalf of the District
and are generally referred to as “SBE Bonds.” The bonds mature serially and are secured by a
pladge of the District's portion of the state revenues derived from the sale of automobile license
plates. Principal and Interest payments, investment of Debt Service Fund resources, and
compliance with reserve requirements are administered by the State Board of Education and the
State Board of Administration. At June 30, 2011, amounts withheld and in the custody of the
state totaled $2,123 {in thousands) and are included as cash and investments with fiscal agent
in the Statement of Net Assets.

General Obligation Bonds

On March 8, 1888, pursuant to Florida Statutes, Section 1010.41, voter residents of the District
approved a referendum authorizing the School Board to issue General Obligation School Bonds
in an aggregate amount not exceeding $980 million, to be issued as required. The proceeds
from the bonds are to be used to pay for the construction of new educational facilities and
improving existing educational faciities. As of June 30, 2011, ne bonds remain to be issued.
Principal and interest on the bands is paid from ad valorem school district taxes on all taxable
real and personal property, excluding homestead exemption as required by Florida law, without
limitation as to rate or armount.
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10. LONG-TERM BONDS PAYABLE, Continued:

A summary of bonds payable as of June 30, 2011 is as follows (in thousands):

Authorized Issuad COutstanding

State Board of Education (SBE) Capital
Outlay Bonds — Series 2002A, due in
varying annual payments through
January 1, 2022 with interest rates
ranging from 3.00% to 5.00%. Interest
is payable semi-annually on January
and July 1. Bonds are callable on
Jarwary 1, through December 34, 2012
at par plus 1% premium, and thereafter
at par. $ 1,950 3 1,950 3 1.350

State Board of Education (SBE) Capital
Cutlay Bonds — Series 2003A, due in
varying annual payments  throegh
January 1. 2023, with interest rates
ranging from 3.00% to 5.00%. Interest
is payable semi-annually on January
and July 7. Bonds are callable on
January 1, through December 31, 2013
at par plus 1% premium. and thereafter
at par. S 1.285 % 1,286 ] 800

State Board of Education {SBE} Capital
Outlay Bongs — Series 20044, due in
varying annual  payments  through
January 1, 2024, with interest rates
ranging from 3.00% to 4.625%. Interest
is payable semi-annually on January
and July 1. Bonds are callable on
January 1 through December 31, 2014
at par plus 1% premium, and thereafter
al par, $ 5,115 ¥ 5,115 $ 3,975

State Board of Education {SBE) Capitai
Outlay Bonds - Series 20054 due in
varying annual  payments  through
January 1, 2025 with interest rates
ranging from 3% to 5%. Interest is
payable semi-annually on January 1
and July 1. Bonds are callable on
January 1 through December 31, 2015
at par plus 1% premium, and thereafter
at par. A portion of the proceeds was
used ta refurd SBE Capital Outlay
Bonds Series 1506A & 1997A to
achieve debt service savings. 3 BO B30 % £9.680 3 52.115
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For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

LONG- TERM BONDS PAYABLE, Continued:

State Board of Education (SBE) Capital
Outlay Bonds - Series 2005B due in
varying annual payments  through
Janwary 1, 2020 with interest rates
ranging from 3% fto 5%. Interest is
payable semi-annually on January 1
and July 1. Bonds are caltable on
January 1 through Decermnber 31, 2015
at par plus 1% premium and thereafter
at par. The proceeds from these bonds
were used to refund 5BE Capital Outlay
Bonds Senes 1498A and Z000A to
achieve debt service savings.

State Board of Education (SBE) Capital
Qutlay Bonds — Series 2008A due in
varying annual payments through
January 1, 2028, with interest rates
ranging from 3.25% to 5.00%. Interest is
payable semi-annually on January and
July 1. Bonds are callable on January 1,
2018 at par plus 1% premium, and
thereafier at par

State Board of Education (SBE) Capital
Outlay Bonds - Series 20084,
Refunding due in varying annual
payments through January 1, 2018, wath
interest rates ranging from 2.00% to
5.00%.  Interest is payable semi-
annually on January and July 1.

State Board of Education (SBE) Capital
Cutlay Bonds - Series 20094, MNew
Portion due in varying annual payments
through January 1, 2029, with interest
rates ranging from 2.00% to 5.00%.
Interest s payable semi-annually on
January and July 1.

State Board of Education (SBE) Capital
Outlay Bonds — Series 20104, Refunding
due in varying annual paymaents through
January 1, 2022 with interest rates
rarging from 4.00% fo 5.00%. interest is
payable semi-annually on January and
July 1,

State Board of Education (SBE) Capital
Outlay Bonds - Series 20104, New
Portion due in varying annual payments
through January 1, 2030, with interest
rates ranging from 3.00% to 5.00%.
Imarest is payable semi-annually on
January and July 1.

Authorized Issued Outstanding
2,735 2.735 5 2,055

B 425 8.425 % 7,585

1,710 1,710 3 1.380

1.355 1,355 $ 1,285

1,440 1,440 ¥ 1,440

640 G40 $ 620
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LONG-TERM BONDSE PAYABLE. Continued:

Authorized Iszued Outstanding

General Obligation Schools  Bonds,

Series 1994, consisting of Serial Bonds

due in varying serial payments through

August 1, 2014, Interest rates ranging

from 5.0% {¢ 6.4%, is payable February 1

and August 1. Bonds maturing an August

1, 2004 and thereafter were called on

August 1, 2004 at the redemption price of

101%. The bonds were remarketed with

the same maturity dates, rates, and issue

date at a true interest cost of 2.66%. The

sale resulted in the same cash flow as

the prior debt service and an economic Third in a
gain of $11,812 (Premium iess issuanse senes not
costs and call premium) for project fund to exceed
daposits. $ 980,000 % 99 030 3 425815

General OChligation Refunding School
Bonds Senes 1987, consisting of Serial
Bonds due in varying senal payments
through February 15, 2017, Interest, at a
rate of 5.00%, is payable February 15
and August 13. The Bonds maturing on
February 15 2008 and thereafter were
called on November 1, 2008 at the
redemption price of 101%. The Bonds
were remarketed at the same maturity
dates, rates, and issue date at a true
interest cost of 3.83%. The sale resulted
in the same cash fliow as prior debt
service and an economic gain of $4,237
(premium less issuance cosl and call
premium}, project fund deposits. % 86,785 5 86,785 § 57430

General Obligation  Refunding Schoaol
Bonds Series 1996, consisting of Serial
Bonds due in varying senal payments
through July 15 2011, Inierest, with
rates ranging from 4.50% to 5.00%. is
payable January 15 and July 15 The
Bonds matunng on July 15 2007 and
thereafter were cailed on November 1,
2008 at the redemption price of 101%.

The Bonds wers remarketed at the same
matunty dates, rates, and issue date at a

true interest cost of 3.72%. The sals
resuited in the same cash flow as prior
debt service and an economic gain of
£1,383 {premium less isswance cost and

call premium), project fund deppsits. 3 79,650 $ 78.650 5 17,620

General Obiligation Refurnding Schogl

Bonds Series 1998, consisting of Senal

Bonds due in varying serial payments

through August 1, 2015 Imerest rates

ranging from 4.0% to 5.38%. is payable

February 1 and August 1. The Bonds are

not subject to redemption prior to

maturity. $ 164 580 g 154,580 § 98440

Total Long-Ferm Bonds Payable $ 288720
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10, LONG-TERM BONDS PAYABLE, Continued:

Debt service requirements through maturity for all iong-terrm bonds payable at June 30, 2011 are
as follows (in thousands):

Year
Ending Total
June 30 Principal Interest Requirements
2012 & 64,445 13545 $ 77,990
2013 49,430 10,664 60,094
2014 52,105 8,087 50,192
2015 54,945 5,366 60,311
2016 41,555 291 44 4586
2017 — 2021 18,645 3,285 21,930
2022 — 2026 5570 1,166 0,736
2027 - 204 2025 1583 2,178
Total 5 288,720 $ 45177 % 333,897
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THE SCHOOL BOARD OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

OBLIGATIONS UNDER LEASE PURCHASE AGREEMENT -
CERTIFICATES OF PARTICIPATION:

On August 1, 1994, the District entered into a Lease Purchase Agreement, with the Dade County
School Board Foundation, Inc., a Florida nol-for-profit corporation (the *Foundation™, to finance the
acquisition and construction of new schocls and appurtenant equipment and other property (the
*Facilities™) to be operated by the District. The members of the School Board serve as the Board of
Directors of The Foundation. The Foundation was formed by the School Board solely for the purpose
of acting as the lessor of the Facilities, with the District as lessee. The School Board as lessor
entered into Ground Leases with the Foundation for the Facilities site and all improvemeants. In
conjunction therewith, Certificates of Parlicipation, {the “Cerlificates”) were issued to third parties,
evidencing undivided proportionate interests in basic lease payments to be made by the District, as
iessee, pursuant io the Lease Purchase Agreement. Fee title to the Facilities and the Facilities site is
in the name of the District. The District is responsible for operation, maintenance, use, occupancy,
upkeep and insurance of the Facilities.

The Foundation leases the Facilitias to the District under the Lease Purchase Agreements, which are
automatically renewable annually through May 1, 2037, unless terminated, in accordance with the
provisions of the Lease Purchase Agreements, as a result of default or the failure of the Schoal Board
to appropriate funds to make lease payments in its final official budget. The remedies on default or
upon an event of non-appropriation include the surrender of the Facilities by the District and its re-
letting for the remaining Ground Leasa term, or the voluntary sale of the Facilities by the School
Board, in either case with the proceeds to be applied against the School Board's obligations under
the Lease Purchase Agreements.

The Certificates are not separate legal obligations of the School Board, but represent undivided
interests in lease payments to be made from apprepriate funds budgeted annually by the School
Board for such purpose from current or cther funds authcrized by law and regulations of the
Depariment of Education, including the local optional millage levy. However, neither the School
Board, the District, the State of Florida, nor any political subdivision thereof, are obligated to pay,
except from appropriated funds, any sums due under the Lease Purchase Agreement from any
source of taxation. The full faith and credit of the School Board and the District is not pledged for
payment of such sums due under the Lease Purchase Agreements and such sums do not constitute
an indebtedness of the School Board or the District within the meaning of any constitutional or
statutory provision or iimitation. The District plans to make the Series 2001C, 20044 2005A, 2006C,
and 2008D |lease payments primarily from the impact fees collected on rew residential construction
by Miami-Dade County and remitted to the School Board.

Basic lease payments are deposited with the Trustee semi-annuzlly. For accounting purposes, due
to the consclidation of the Foundation within the financial statements, basic lease payments are
reflected as debt service expenditures when payable to Certificate holders. Payments of the
outstanding Certificates of Participation are insured through AMBAC Assurance Corp., National
Public Finance Guarantee Corp. (formerly MBIA Insurance Corp. of lllinois and assumed Financial
Guaranty Insurance Co. policies), Assured Guaranty Gorp., and Assured Guaranty Municipal Corp.

A trust fund was established with the Trustee to facilitate payments in accordance with the Lease
Furchase Agreemants and the Trust Agreements. Various accounts are maintained by the Trustee in
accordance with the frust indenture. All funds held in the various accounts, are invesied by the
Trustee, as directed by the School Board. interest eamed on funds in the Acquisition Account is
transferred to the Lease Payment Account,

Under the Amencan Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2008, Qualified School Construction Bonds
(QSCBs} and Build America Bonds (BABs) were established to provide for taxable obligations to be
issued by the school district with a federal subsidy for interest. Series 20098 and 2010A were issued
under the CQualified School Construction Bond program and Series 2010B were issued under the
Build America Bond program. The 20098 Series provides federal tax credits in lieu of interest
payments to the Certificate holder, which is similar to the Series 2000, 2001, 2003, and 2008
Quaiified Zone Academy Bonds program. The Series 2010A and 2010B Series were issued as direct
pay bonds whereby the interest subsigy is paid directly to the school district by the U 8. Treasury.
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11. OBLIGATIONS UNDER LEASE PURCHASE AGREEMENT —
CERTIFICATES OF PARTICIPATION, Continued:

A summary of Certificates of Participation payable as of June 30, 2011 is as follows (in

thousands);

Issue Einal

Date Maturity Interest Rate{s} lssupd Outstanding
2000 Qualified Zone Academy 12/21/00 12721713 NIA, % 24,508 24,508
Bonds - Interest is paid by US.
Government through issuange of
federal income tax credits
2001 Quallfied Zone Academy 060101 08/01415 MN/A 15,000 15,000
Bonds — Interest is paid by U.S,
Government through issuance of
federal income tax credits.
2003 Qualified Zone Academy  12/18/03 1241818 NiA 9744 8,744
Bonds — Intersst is paid by U5
Sovernment through issuance of
federal income tax credits.
2006 Qualified Zone Academy 13/15/06  12/15/22 NAA 2,600 2 600
Bonds - Interest is paid by UG
Government through issuance of
federai income tax credits.
2010 Qualified Zone Academy 11/10110 11401728 Frue Interest Cost 0.15% 24 4B0 24 480
Bonds — 5.10% Tax Credit paid by 5.25% {without 5.10% U.8.
U.S. Government to the District. Subsidy)
2001B Series - Auction Rate O0BM901 0501431 Variable Interest 0.84% @ 54 650 45,550
Certificates converted to variable June 30, 2011
rate mode based on LIBOR plus
0.75% under & Private Placement
with predeterrnined reset terms.,
2001C Series - Serial and Term  Q9/01/01  10/01/21  True Interest Cost 4.734% 42,235 1,925
Certificates. 3.5%t05.5%
2002A Series - Auction Rate 1213007 08/0127  Variable Interest 0.84% @ 73,000 £1,680
Certificates converted to variahle June 30, 2011
rate mode based on SIFMA plus
0.75% under a Private Flacement
with predetermined reset tenms.
2002B Series — Auction Rate 12/13/402 0B/O1/27  Varabie Interast 0.84% @ ¥5.000 61,985
Cerificates converted to variable June 30, 2011

rate mode based on SIFMA plus
0.75% under a Private Placernent
with predetermined reset terms.
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11. OBLIGATIONS UNDER LEASE PURCHASE AGREEMENT —

CERTIFICATES OF PARTICIPATION, Continued:

A summary of Certificates of Participation payable as of June 30,

thousands), continued:

2003A Series - Include Capital
Appreciation Bonds. Refunded
129988 series at 101% with a gross
savings of §5518 and a net
present value economic savings of
5,065,

20030 Series — Seral 8 Temn
Certificates.

2004A Series — Serial Cerificates.
Partially refunded 2000A and
2001C at 100% with a gross
savings of $3,316 and a net
present valug economic savings of
53226

20058 Series — Senal & Temn
Cenrificates.

2D00BA Series — Serial & Term

Certificates.

2006B Series —
Certificates.

Serial & Term

2006C Series Serial & Term

Cartificates.

20060 Series — Serial Certificates.
Partially refunded 2001C at 100%
with a gross savings of 3558 and a

net present wvalue  economic
savings of $419.
2007A Series — Serial & Term

Certificates.

2007B Series — Senal & Temm
Certificates.

2M7C  Series - Auction Eate
Cerificates converted to variable
rate mode based on LIBOR plus
0.75% under a Private Placement
with predetermined reset terms,

03/01/03

0B/01/03

0a/1210a

06/28/05

Q3r15/06

04/11/06

05/10/06

12/21/08

051 0/07

GBS2407

05/24/07

0801427

08:01429

10:01/20

04/01/20

11401731

114071434

1070121

10401421

Q5/01/32

0501732

Q5/01737
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Interest Ratefs

True Interest Cost 3.418%
Asaumed 3 5%-Bayond
Mandatory Purchase Date

True |nterest Cost 4.358%
2% to 5%

True Interest Cost 4.28%
2.25% 10 5.258%

True interest Cost 2 882%
3 5% to 5%

True Interest Cost 4 43%
3375% w0 5 (0%

True Interest Cost 4.54%
3.50% to 5.00%

True Interest Cost 4.41%
3.875% to 5.00%

True Interest Cost 4.088%
3 B625% 1o 5.00%

True Interest Cost 4,.52%
3.75% to 5.00%

True Interest Cost 4.47%
4.00% to 5.00%

WVariable Interest 0.84% @
Jure 30, 2011

2011 is as follows {in

lssued Quistanding
$ 63633 1,132
165,210 151,850
87,210 80,510
56,380 24 885
201,080 181,685
208,150 187,885
53,665 42 730
10,570 10,485
316,515 290,480
101,265 81,725
90,825 80,825
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1.

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 20, 2011

OBLIGATICNS UNDER LEASE PURCHASE AGREEMENT -

CERTIFICATES OF PARTICIPATION, Continued:

2008A Series — Serial Certificates.
Forward Cash market Refunding of
Series 1898A & 1998C with a gross
savings of $11,015 and a net present
value economic savings of $8, 557,

Z008B Serigs - Serial & Temn
Cerificates.
200BC Series - Vanable Rate

Cemand Notes with a weekly reset
parially refunded the 2003A Tem
Bonds with & mandatory Put  of
8/01/08. Issuance includes irmevocable
direct pay Letter of Credit at 0.38%
and D.08% for remarketing fees. If
cannot be remarketad the tenns of the
Letter of Credit include a fve year loan
from the bank.

20094 Series -
Cerificates.

Serial & Tem

20098 Series - Qualifisd School
Construction Bonds. Interest is paid
by U.S. Government through ssuance
of federal income tax credits (sold at a
digcount price of 73.673% resulting in
a True Imerest Cost of 1.859%).

2010A Series - Qualified School
Construction Bonds, 554% Tax
Credit paid by U.S, Gaverhment to the
Dhistrict.

2010B Series - Build America
Bonds, 35% Tax Credit paid by UG
Governmsnt to the District,

20%1A Series - Include fixed rate and
term rate certihcates refunding  of
Senes 2003B. Temn bonds include
mandatory 3 year soft put on 5/1/14 of
$76,585 at 100% with a gross savings
of ($26.015) and a net present vatue
economic savings of 35,626,

201 1B Series — Include fixed rate and
tern  rate  certificates  partially
refunding of Series 2007A, 2007B,
and 200%A. Term bonds include &
mandatory 5 year soft put on 0501716
of 510000 at 100% with a gross
savings of ($139,744} and net present
valug  economic  dissavings  of
{515,395}

Issue Final
Date Maturity
06/19/08 0B/ /26
0572308 REMO1/33
REM1/08 OTMR27
02/26/00 Q21071434
12M15/089 1211 5/26
Q6724110 0GH527
Q624410 06415032
0312811 0501431
Q329511 Qa1/32

58

Interest Rate(s}

True Interest Cost 4.327%
5%

True Interest Cost 4 869%
3.5% tw 5.25%

Variable |nterest 0.08% @
June 30, 2011

True Interest Cost 5.28%
3.00% to 5.5375%

WA

True interest Cost 0.852%
8.24% to 6.45% {without
5.54% LS. Subsidy)

Trug Interest Cost 4.523%
6.84% to 6.94% (without
35% LS. Subsidy)

True Interest Cost 4.449%
Z25% 10 5%

True Interest Cosl 5.154%;
5% to 5.75%

Issued Dutstanding

$ 233400 216,620
538,305 538,305
57770 57 .440
310,355 274,770
104,000 104,000
96,290 95,290
27.890 27,980
139.055 139,053
137,660 137 660
$ 3,322,245 3 2,994 934




THE SCHOOL BOARD OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Faor the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

1. OEBLIGATIONS UNDER LEASE PURCHASE AGREEMENT -
CERTIFICATES OF PARTICIPATION, Continued:

At June 30, 2011 the following defeased certificates remain cutstanding:

Defeased Certificates Amount Qutstanding
2001C 3 25 825,000
2007A $ 17,745,000
20078 k3 6,245,000
20094 $ 23,690,000

The total ebligation under lease purchase agreements — Certificates of Participation is as follows
(dollars in thousands):

Year Ending Total
June 30 Requirements*
2012 3 151,600
2013 141172
2014 219,261
2013 188 323
2016 224,190
2017 — 2021 1,003,126
2022 — 2026 1,027,188
2027 — 2031 1,170,306
2032 - 2035 292 645
2037 - 2038 20073
Total 4,537,885
Less: interest {rates ranging
from 0.08% to 6.94%) {1,542,851)
Principal $ 2,994 934

* The schedule above reflects required annual payments to the sinking fund for the retirement
of the debt, and are not considered reduction of principal until the year of maturity.
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OBLIGATIONS UNDER LEASE FPURCHASE AGREEMENT -
CERTIFICATES OF PARTICIPATION, Continued:
Hedging Derivative Instrument:
Objectives: The District entered into pay-fixed interest rate forward swaps (referred to herein
collectively as “Swaps”) in order to lower its cost of capital and protect against rising interest
rates. The Swaps are classified as cash flow hedges on the District’s floating rate debt and were
executed to manage its mix of fixed and floating raie exposure in its on-going borrowing
program.
The following Swaps had changes in fair value totaling $4,717,703 classified as a reducticn of
the Deferred Outfiow of Resources and all fair values (excluding accrued interest} have been
caleulated using the zero-coupon method. This method calcutates the future net settement
payments reguired by the swap, assuming that the current forward rates implied by the yield
curve correctly anticipate future spot interest rates. The payments are then discounted using the
spot rates implied by the current yield curve for hypothetical zero-coupon bonds due on the date
of each future net settlement of the swap.
| Notional Fixed | Varable  Counterparty
Dats of Amount Effecfive | Terminaticn  Associated Payable Receivable | creditrating at  Fair Value at
Execution CQutstanding Date Date Certificates | Swap Rate Swag Rate June 30, 2011 ¢ June 30, 2011
' 04.03-7006  $64,070.000 | 04-012007 | OBCA-2027 | COP200ZA | 4.621% 70% Mo | AalibA. ‘ $7.615.234)
LIBOR |
| D4-03-2006 364,020 00C | 04-01-2007 | OB-01-2027 | COP 20028 | 3E21% 70% 1Mo | AaliAA. ‘ ($7,6365,194)
: LIBOR
04.-03-7005 | S57.440.000 | 08-01.2008 07152027 | GOP 2008C  360%% 0% 1Mo AZIA, ‘ {38 451 235)
LIBOR

THE SCHOOL BOARD OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

Using rates as of June 30, 2011, debt service reguirements for variable rate debt and net Swap
payment, assuming current interest rates remain the same, are as foliows (in thousands):

Hedging Detivative Toral
Fiscal Year Principal Interest Instruments, Net Interest
2012 ] 4.915 § 1.20% 5 680 7810
2013 5 4,865 $ 1025 $ 6432 § 7458
2014 ) 5125 ¥ 981 3 6251 3 7232
2015 3 7.560 § 933 § 6048 $ 6979
2018 % 7,935 § BOO § 5826 § 6716
2017 — 2021 43078 ¥ 3634 $ 25440 § 25074
2022 - 2026 $ 61675 ¥ 1.986 $ 18372 § 20358
2027 - 2028 $ 4585h5 $ 205 5 3775 § 3980
Total $§ 181,105 % 10,863 $ TBT43 $ B9,607

Risk Disclosure:

Credit Risk. The Swaps rely upon the performance of the third parties who serve as swap
counterparties, and as a result the District is exposed 1o credit risk, or the risk that a swap
counterparty fails to perform according to its contractual obligations. The appropriate
measurement of this risk at the reporting date is the fair value of the Swaps, as shown in the
columns labeled Fair Value in the tables above. To mitigate credit risk, the District maintains
strict credit standards for swap counterparties. The current swap counterparties have ratings in
single-A category or better. To further mitigate counterparty credit risk, the District's swap
documents require counterparties 1o post collateral for the District's benefit if they are
downgraded below Aa3 by Moody's and below AA- by Standard & Poor's, if the swap values
exceed specified thresholds. Collateral is to be in the form of US Treasuries or Agency
securities held by a third party custodian. Currently, the Swaps have not been in an asset
position requiring the posting of collateral. There is no master netting arrangement on the
outstanding Swaps.
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THE SCHOOL BOARD OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA
NOTES TCO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

OBLIGATIONS UNDER LEASE PURCHASE AGREEMENT —
CERTIFICATES OF PARTICIPATION, Continued:

Interest Rafe Risk. The Swaps are intended to protect the District against changes in floating
interast rates. If floating rates rise, the District's payment on the variable rate bonds should
increase but should be offset by the variable rate payments it receives under the Swaps.

Basis Risk The District's Swaps expose the District to basis risk should the relationship
between the floating rates the District will receive on the swaps {70% of LIBOR) fall short of the
variable rate on the associated bonds, the expected savings may not be realized. As of June
30, 2011, the variable rate was 0.09%, while the LIBOR rate was 0.19% on both the 2002A &
20028 certificates, and the District received 0.13% (70%) on both the 20024 & 2002B
cenificates, respectively. As of June 30, 2011, the 2008C varizble rate was 0.08%, while the
LIBOR rate was 0.18% and the District received 0. 13% (70%,).

Termination Risk. The District's Swap agreements do not contain any out-of-the-ordinary
termination events that would expose it to significant termination risk. in keeping with market
standards the District or the counterparty may terminate each swap if the other party fails to
perform under the terms of the contract. In addition, the swap documents allow either party to
terminate in the event of a significant loss of creditworthiness. The District views such events to
be remote in the ¢ase of the counterparty rated Aatl/AA- under the associated COP Series
2002A & 2002B. In the case of the other counterparty, Merrill Lynch Capital Services, Inc., the
ratings were downgraded to Baa1 by Moody's Investor Services on September 21, 2011. As
such the District has the optional right to terminate the swap and is currently considering
authorizing the replacement of the swap with a new creditworthy counterparty at the December
14, 2011 Board Meeting. If at the time an early termination of the swap was declared and the
swap had a negative value, the District would be liable fo the counterparty for a payment equal
to the fair value of such swap.

DEBT SERVICE:

The amount available for debt service consists of resources from the Debt Service Funds legally
reguired to be used for debt service until the related debt is extinguished ({in thousands}:

Categories: Amounts
Restricted for Payment of State Board
of Education and Capital Outlay Bonds $ 2,123
Restricted for Payment of District Bond Funds 53537
Restricied for Other Debt Service 37,662
Total Available in Debt Service Funds $ 93,322

All Certificates of Participation Lease Payments and all other amounts required to be paid by the
School Board under the various Series under the Master Lease and all other Leases are made
from legally available funds appropriated for such purpose by the School Board. The
substantive portion for these payments is provided by the Local Optional Millage Levy on ad-
valarem property. Separate Lease Payment Accounts are established for each series of
Certificates issued under the Trust Agreement. Lease Payments are due under the Master
Lease on an all-or-none basis and are payable on a parity basis solely from legaliy available
funds appropriated by the School Board for such purpose. Such payments are normally
transferred {0 the Trustee 15 days before Lease Payments are due.
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THE SCHOOL BOARD OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLLORIDA
NOTES TG THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

ESTIMATED LIABILITY ON INSURANCE RISKS AND PENDING CLAIMS:

The District i3 exposed to various risks of i0ss related (o torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets,
administrative errors and omissions; injuries to employees, students and guests; as well as natural
disasters. The District is self-insured for portions of its general and autemaobile liability insurance, workers'
compensation and heaith insurance.  Losses involving aute and general liability claims are limited
{generally) by provisions of the Florida State Statute 768.28. These self-insured funds are adminisiered by
a third party. The District purchases commercial insurance for other risks including property and other
miscellaneous risks as follows:

Risk Retention/ Coverage after
Type Deductible Retention/Deductible
Waorkers” Compensation $1.000,000 Statutory/$ 1,000,000

General, Fleet Liability, and
Errars and Cmissions

$500,000 per occurrence, $3,250 000

$100.000/3200,000 annual aggregate

Property $100,000.000 per cccurrance for $250,000,000 for all perils includin
humicanes, $500,000 per incident for o ' P g
all other porls. windstorms, earthquakes and floods.
$100,000 for each act of terrorism $50,000,D00 annual aggregate

Accordingly, iabilities for certain retained risks are reported when it is probable that a loss has occurred and
the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. The District's estimated liability for self-insured losses
rejating to the casualty program consisting of general liability, automobile liability, professionai liability/errors
and omissions, and workers' compensation claims was determined by an independent actuarial valuation
performed as of June 30, 2011, Liabilities, as determined by the actuary, include an amount for claims that
have been incurred but not reported {IBNR), Claims liabilities are calculated considering the effects of
inflation, recent claim setilement trends including frequency and amount of pay-outs and other economic
and social factors. The portion of the liability that is dug and payable at June 30, 2011 is recorded in the
General Fund and the remaining portion is recorded in the government-wide financial statermants. Liahility
for incurred losses to be settled by fixed or reasonably determinable payments over a long pericd of time are
reported al their present value using expected future investment yield assumptions of 5%,

Effective January 1, 2010, the financial platform for the School Beard's bealth insurance pregram for eligible
empioyees, retirees and their dependents moved from a fully insured model to a self insured model. At the
Board meeting of Septermber 9, 2009, the Board awarded its contract for Administrative Services Only
{AS0), pursuant to Request For Proposal (RFP) O071-110, District Healthcare Benefit Frogram, to Cigna.
Additionally, the School Beard autharized the purchase of stop lss coverage for its self insured program
including Individual Stop Loss (ISL) and Aggregate Stop Loss {ASL) coverages from Cigna. The ISL
attachment point is $700,000 and the ASL attachment peint is 120% of expected claims. The Stop Loss
coverage was renewed with the same coverage terms effective January 1, 2011,

The Schoal Board approved a set of premium equivalent rates, based upon actuanal projections of claims
inciuding claims incurred but not reported (IBNR) for the calendar year provided by the School Board's
Employee Benefits Consulting firm of Deloitte Consulting, LLP. The calendar year 2011 monthly rates for
the two offered programs are $531 (OAP 10} and 3489 (OAP 20). The Board's contribution for employee
only coverage is limited to the $489 (OAP 200; therefore, employeas who choose the 531 (OAP 10} are
subject to a monthly cost share based upon their salary band. Effective January 1, 2010, the cost of
dependent healthcare coverage became banded by salary tiers which was renewed for January 1, 2011.

The Dhstrict's estimated liability for health insurance claim payments was determined by an independent
actuarial valuation performed as of January 1, 2011.

The School Beard continues to offer an opt out provision for employees who can provide proof of insurance
coverage. Employees who opt out receive a monthly adjustment to gress compensation of $100/month,

There were no losses which exceeded coverage in fiscal years ended June 30, 2009, 2014, and 2011.
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13. ESTIMATED LIABILITY ON INSURANCE RISKS AND PENDING CLAIMS, Continued:

A liability amount of $121,588 was actuarially determined to cover reported and unreported
insurance claims payabie at June 30, 2011, It is estimated that of the current portion, $2,435 is
due and payable at June 30, 2011 and $52,841 is due within a year. The remaining $66,312 will
be due in future years ({in thousands).

Estimated Liability For Pending Claims

Current Long-Term

Fortion Portion Total
Workers' compensation § 20.602 % 53,896 : 74,498
General and

a. 562 10,445 14,007
accupational liability 3.56

Fleat liahility 887 1,970 2,857
Group Health 30128 - 30,126

Total $ 55,277 $ 66,311 5 121,588

Changes in the balance of claims liabilities for the years ended June 30, 2070 and 2011 are as
follows (in thousands).

Cuirent-year

claims and
Balance e:t?;r;ﬁ ;:d Claim Balance
July 1, 2009 discounts payment June 30, 2019
Workers’ compensation $ 85247 % 15,874 ? (22.919) 5 78,202
Gil:;iﬁ;:;dnal liability 13,790 2,985 (3.685) 13,110
Fleet liability 3,045 808 {1,066) 2,787
Group Health - 161,392 (120,126) 41,2686
Totat $ 102082 § 181,050  § (147.776) § 135,365
Current-year
claims and
Balance l::l_'langes in Claim Balance
July 1, 2010 ostimates and payment June 30, 2011
Workers’ compensation % 78202 $ 23,028 ¥ (27632 ?'_ 74,498
General and
occupational liability 13,110 3688 (2,791} 14 007
Fleet liability 2 7BY 1.027 {857} 2957
Group Health 41,266 327.591 (338,731 30,126
Total $ 135,365 5 356,234 $ (3T0,011) $ 121,588
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14, CHANGES IN LONG-TERM LIABILITIES:

Long-term liabilities balances and activity for the year ended June 30, 2011 are as follows (in

thousands);
Amounts Due
Balance Balance Within One
fiatal) Additions Deductions 6/a0M11 Yoar
Bonds Payable 3 353,019 5 2,349 $ {63,039} § 292309 ¢ - 65,596

Certificates of

Participail

on
28967739 288,256 ™ {249,635) 3,007,360 = 52,500

Payable by the
Foundation, net

Derivative Instrument

Liabvfities 28,421 - {4,718) 23 703 -
Capital Leases

Fayabla 157,509 154 (32.450) 125213 29.909
Insurance Claims

Pavable 135,365 356,235 (3700111 121,589 55,277
Retirement Incentive

Benefits 4 837 180 {1.008) 4012 290
Compensated

Absences 275,754 22.050 {27,077} 270 TET 18,853
Other Past

Employment 23,200 6.054 {10,313} 18,171 -

Bensfits

Tostal $§ 3546034 % 676,318 $ {758,248) £ 3,864,104 % 232,525

Eaddwr

includes unamortized premium in the amount of $4,090 less a deferrad loss on the remarketing
of $481.

Includes principal payments plus unamortized premium less unamartized defemed loss.

Includes the par value of COPs/QZABS issued in the amount of $301,185 plus an unamortized
pramium in the amount of $8 240 less deferred lass on refunding in the amount of $20,188.

Amount is more than the principal balance of $2,994,934 in Note 11 by $12 425 which
represents the net unamortized premium less deferred loss on advanced COP refundings at
June 30, 2011,

Fayments for insurance claims {(other than health insurance claims that are paid from the
internal Service Fund), retirement incentive benefits, and compensated absences are paid by
the General Fund. Capital Leases are mostly paid from capital praject funds.
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STATE REVENUE SOURCES:
A major source of the District's revenue is from the state, which provided approximately 33%

of total revenues in fiscal year 2010-11. The following is a schedule of state revenue sources
and amounts (in thousands)

Sources Amount
Florida Education Finance Program $ 603,780
Categorical Educational Programs™ 417 257
Workforce Development 85,801
Charter School Capital Outlay Funding 13633
CO&DS Withheld for SBE/COB] Bonds 13,510
Gross Receipts Tax (PECO} 14 895
Food Service Supplement 2,136
Adults with Disabilities 1,668
Capital Gutlay and Debt Service (CO&DS) Distributed 1,382
Workforce Education Performance incentive 545
Cap'rtaJ_C_)utla:._f and Debt Service (CO&DS) Withheld For 037
Administrative Expense

State License Tax 228
Interest on Undistriouted CO&DS 163
SBE/COB| Bond Interest 2
Miscellaneous 2,665

Total $ 1,158,342

* Includes $1,328 in District Discretionary Lottery Funds.
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PROPERTY TAXES:

The Board is authorized by state law to levy property taxes for District school operations, capital
improvements and debt service. Properly taxes consist of ad valorem taxes on real and personal
praperty within the District. Property taxes are assessed by the County Property Appraiser and are
collectad by the County Tax Collector.

Property values are assessed as of January 1 of each year. Taxes are levied after the millage rate is
certified in September. Tax bills are mailed in October and taxes are payable betwean November 1
of the year assessed and March 31 of the following vear at discounts of up to 4% for early paymant,

Taxes become delinguent on Aprf 1 of the year following the year levied, State law provides for
enforcement of collection of real property taxes. First, interest-bearing tax cerfificates are sold at
public auction to recover delinquent taxes. Finally, if the tax cerlificates are not paid with accrued
interest by the property owner, the purchaser of the tax certificate is entitled to take possession of the
property. Accordingly, substantially afl of the taxes assessed for calendar year 2010 have been
recognized during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011.

The State Constitution limits the levying of non-voted taxes by the Schoot Board ta 10 mills ($10.00
per thousand of assessed valuation). State law prescribes on an annual basis the upper limit of non-
voied property tax millage that may be levied. For fiscal 2010-11 the limit of 7.864 mills was lavied.
The total adjusted assessed value for calendar year 2010 on which the fiscal 2011 levy was based
was approximately $195.7 billion.

Actual property taxes collected and reflected in the table below totaled 98.2% of taxes levied,
including collections from prior years™ tax levies. The Miami-Dade County Tax Collector is not
reguired by law to make an accounting to the District of the difference between taxes levied and taxes
collected. However, because discounts are allowed for early payment of taxes and because of other
reasons for noncoliection, the District budget anticipates that 96% of taxes levied will ba collected,

The fallowing is a summary of millages and taxes levied on the final 2010 tax roll for the fiscal year
2010-11 (in thousands):

Taxes
Millages Levied Collected Uncollected (Net)

GENERAL FUNWD
Nonvoted School Tax:
Required Local Effort 5616 ] 1,099,303 $ 1,089,526 $ 8777
Discretionary Lacal Effort 858 136.630 135,415 1,215

6.314 S_ 1,235,833 $ 1,224,941 ] 10,8492
CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS
Nonvoted Tax:
Local Capital Improvements

1.650 $ 303,404 § 289618 % 13,786
DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
Voted Tax:
Debt Service - General
Obligation Bonds 385 ] 75.362 5 71,683 $ 3,679

Taxes reported in the Governmental Funds as reflected above includes an accrual anly for taxes
collected within 80 days after the fiscal year-end. |n the government-wide financial statements the
District bases the estimates of taxes receivable and uncollectible taxes on historical experience. For
fiscal year 2010-11, the District considered $72.1 million or 4 47% of lavied taxes as ungollectible.
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RETIREMENT BENEFITS:

The School Board provides retirement benefits to its employees through the Fiorida Retirement
System, the Supplemental Early Retirement Plan, and a Deferred Retirement Option Program
(DROP), as well as state approved post employment benefits in the form of health insurance
premiums.

Florida State Retirement Programs

The School Board participates in the Florida Retirement System (the “System”), a cost sharing
multiple empioyer pubfic employee retirement system, which is employee noncontributory and is
totally administered by the State of Florida, Depariment of Management Services, Division of
Retirement. The District's payroll for employees covered by the System for the year ended June
30, 2011 was approxtmately $1.8 billion; the District's total payroll was approximately $2 billion.

Priar to Septernber 2002 all Fiorida Retirement Systemn plans were defined benefit plans. Since
September 2002 all covered employees may opt to participate in a defined contribution ptan
referred o as the Public Employee Optional Retirement Program (PEORP) established by the
State of Fiorida. Participating employers pay to the system a single rate established annually by
the Florida Legislature. Cther than a ane year vesting requirement, the state has established no
restrictions which would affect when an employee participating in the defined contribution plan
may retire. Only restrictions imposed by the internal Revenue Service would apply.

All eligibie employees participating in the defined benefit pian are those who were hired after
1970; and, those employed prier to 1570 who elected to be enrofled are covered by the Systemn.
A very small number of employees hired prier to 1970 and not electing to enroll in the Flords
Retirement System are covered by various contributory plans.  Benefits under the Florida
Retirement System Pension Plan vest after six years of service. District employees who retire at
or after age 62 with six years of credited service, or with thirty years of service regardiess of age,
are entitled to an annual retirement benefit, payable monthly for life, in an amount equal to their
average final compensation multiplied by the total percentage value of their service time.
Average final compensation is the average annual eamings of each employee's five highest
fiscal years. The number of years of credited service multiplied by a percentage valug from 160
- 3.00%, depending on the employee's length of service, membership class and age. The
System also provides for death and disability benefits. These benefit provisions and all other
requirements are established by Florida Statutes.

Under the System, the District was required to contribute to the plans as of Juty 1, 2010, 9 76%
of the salary of regular members (both Pensicn Plan and Investment Plan) angd 22.15% of the
salary of the special risk members. The District’s contributions to the System for hoth Regular
plan and Speciat Risk plan are equal to the annual required contributions for each year as
follows (dollars in thousands):

June 30, 2009 June 30, 2010 June 30, 2011
Florida Retrement System 3 187,435 $ 182,280 $ 199,876
Teacher's Retiremeant System —
Plan E: Employer $ €6 5 52 $ 41

The 2011 Florida Legisiative session passed Senate Bill 2100, making substantive changes to
the Florida Retirement System (FRS). The bil, which has been signed into law by Governor
Rick Scott, is effective July 1, 2011,
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RETIREMENT BENEFITS. Continued:
Florida State Retirement Programs — continued

The State of Florida issues an annual report that includes financial statements and required
supplementary information for the System. The latest available report is as of June 30, 2008,
That report may be obtained by writing to the State of Flarida Division of Retirement, Department
of Management Services, P.O. Box 9000, Tallahasses, Florida 32315-9000,

Supplemental Early Retirement Plan

In addition to participating in the System, the School Board established an early retirgement plan
on July 1, 1984. The plan is a single employer, non-contributory defined benefit plan and is
administered by an independent trustee and investments are managed by the District. The
School Board closed the Supplemental Early Retirement Plan (the “Plan”} to new employees on
July 1, 2000, with no additional employees vesting after July 1, 2003. The Plan was established
in order tc supplement an early retiree’s benefits by the amount of reduction imposed by the
System. The plan provides supplemental income for those employees whe retired betwean the
ages of 556 to 61 and who had complated at least 25 years, but not more than 28 years of
creditable service. Payments under the Plan are equal to the difference in monthly retirement
income for the participant under the System between the retirement benefit based on average
final compensation, as defined above, and creditable service as of the member's early
retirement date and the sarly refirement benefit under the System. Benefits are subject to an
annual 3% cost of living adjustment. These benefit provisions and all other requirements are
established by Florida Statutes, Section 1012.685.

The totai number of retirees and beneficiaries of deceased retirees currently receiving benefits is
626, averaging $565.69 per month. No benefits are provided for termination of employment
prior to retirement.

The School Board's funding policy provides for actuarially determined periodic contributions
sufficient to pay the benefits provided by this plan when they become due. Plan members do
not contribute to the Plan. Total contributions to the Plan for the 2010-11 fiscal year of $2,125
{in thousands) were made in accordance with actuarially determined requirements computed
through &n actuarial valuation performed as of June 30, 2011.

Valuations to determine the Plan’s contribution requirements are performed every other year at
the beginning of the fiscal year in odd years. The most recent funding valuation was performed
June 30, 2011, To determine the Plan's funding reguirements, the Entry Age Actuarial Cost
Method was used. The actuarial cost method Is closed group.

Separate statements are not issued for the Plan.

Methodology for determination of the contribution requirement has been updated to reflect
assumpfions for cost of living increases instead of assumed growth of future payroll since there
is no longer covered payroll under the Plan.

It is intended that the UAAL be amortized over a 11-year period from July 1, 2009, through
annual contributions expressed as a level percentage of each years assumed cost of living
increase of 3% each year. Assets are valued at fair value, and the investment rate of return is
assumed to be 6.75%.
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RETIREMENT BENEFITS, Continued:
Suppiemental Early Retirement Plan - continued

An analysis of funding progress is presented below:

Fiscal Year Annual Pension Percentage of APC Net Pension
Ended June 30, Cost (APC) Contributed Cbligation

2011 § 2125 100 % -
2010 5 1,879 100 % -
2008 $ 1,825 100 % -
2008 % 1,840 100 % -
2007 $ 2,977 100 %

The Plan is included as a Pension Trust fund in the accompanying financial statements.
Contributions are recognized when due. Benefits are recognized when due and payable in
accordance with the ierms of the Plan.

Investments are reported at fair value and are comprised of the following at June 30, 2011
famounts in thousands}:

Baonds: Fair Value
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp. Bonds 5 6,001
Federal National Maortgage Association Bends 3,000
Lehman Brothers Holdings, Inc. Notes 261

Total Bonds 3 8,262

Commercial Paper 3,000

Money Market Mutual Funds 104

Mutual Funds:

Mutual Funds Closed-End 9,508
Mutual Funds Open-End 3,231
Total Mutual Funds 12,739

Total Investments $ 25,105

Other Post Employment Benefits

As authorized by the Board, employees who retire in the first year of their eligibility under the
System or who retired under the Plan can receive up to $1,200 per year as reimbursemeant for
health insurance cost paid until they reach 65 years of age or until they become eligible for
Medicare or Social Security disability. Approximately, 231 retirees will receive in October 2011,
an estimated $290 thousand in premium refmbursements for the year ended June 30, 2011,

From 1981 through 2005, the District offered retirement incentive programs in an effort to reduce
salary costs. The programs include enhanced insurance benefits up to the Board's annual
maonthly contribution and payments of accrued sick leave at an enhanced rate. Enhanced
insurance benefits offered to eligible employees, as defined under the provisions of each
program, consist of health and term life insurance subsidies for up to ten years. Benefit
payments accrued under these programs during fiscal 2011 totaled approximately $1 million
Expenditures for the retirement incentive program are recognized in the General Fund each year
on a pay-as-you-go basis. The estimated liabllity for retirees receiving benefits of approximately
$4 miflion is fully accrued and included in the government-wide financtal statements.
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THE SCHOOL BOARD OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

RETIREMENT BENEFITS, Continued:

Other Post Employment Benefits — continued

The District implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement Nao. 45
Accourting and Financial Reporting by Empioyers for Postemployment Benefits Other than
Pensians (GASB Staiement No. 45), for certain postemployment hezlth care benefits provided
by the District for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008.

Plian Description — Effective January 1, 2010, the District changed from a fuily-insured health
program to a self-insured pregram for eligible employees and retirees. The Plan operates as a
single employer defined benefit plan. Employees who participate in and satisfy the vesting,
disability, early or normal retirerment provision of the Florida Ratirement System {FRS) may be
eligible for Other Post Employment Benefits {OPEB) Retirees and their dependents are
permitted to remain covered under the District's respective medical plans as long as they pay
the premium charged for the plan and coverage elected. This conforms to the minimum requireg
of Florida governmental empioyers per Ch. 112.08, F.S,

The State of Fierida prohibits the District from separately rating retirees and active empioyees.
The District therefore charges both groups an equal, blended rate premium. Although both
groups are charged the same blended rate premium, GAAF require the actuarial amaunts
presented above to be calculated using age adjusted premiums approximating claims costs for
refirees separate from active employees. The use of age adjusted premiurns results in the
addition of an implicit rate subsidy into the actuarial accrued liability.

Funding Policy — The District is not required by law or contractual agreement to provide funding
for OPEB other than the pay-as-you-go amount necessary to provide current benefits to retirees
and eiigible dependents. Currently, the District's OPEB benefits are unfunded. That is, there is
not a separate Trust Fund or eguwalent arrangement into which the District would make
contributions to advance-fund the obligation, as it does for its pension plan, the Florida
Retirement System (FRS). Therefore, the ultimate subsidies which are provided over time, are
directty financed by general assets of the District, which are invested in shortterm fixed income
instruments.

Consequently, according to GASB Statement No. 45, the interest discount rate used to calculate
the present value and costs of the OPEB must be the long-range expected return on such short-
ferm fixed income instruments. The District selected an interest discount rate of 4.5% for this
purpose. In addition to the interest discount rate, the other significant actuarial assumption used
is the health care cost trend rate and participation assumptions. The valuation used a health
care trend rate of 10.5% grading down by 0.5% annually to an ultimate of 5% and the inflation
rate used is 3%. The participation assumption of 25% is the assumed percentage of future
retirees that participate and enroll in the health plan. The unfunded actuarial acerued liability is
being amortized over the period of 30 years on an open basis. 1t is calculated assuming a level
percentage of projected payrol!.

Annual OPEB and Net OPEB Qbligation — The District's annual OPEB cost {(expense} is
calculated based on the annual reguired contribution (ARC) of the employer, an amount that was
actuarially determined by using the entry age actuarial cost method {one of the actual cost
methods in accordance with GASB Staternent No. 45), with an amortization of the Unfunded
Actuarial Accrued Liability as a level percent of expecied payrall.
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THE SCHOOL BOARD OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

RETIREMENT BENEFITS, Continued:

Other Post Employment Benefits — continued

The foliowing table shows the District's OPEB cost for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011;

Annual Required Contribution (ARC) $ 5,834
Interest on Net OPEB Gbligation 1,053
Adjustment to ARC (893)
Annual OPEB Cost (Expense) 6,004
Contributions toward OPEB Cost 10,313
Incraase {decrease} in Net CPEB Cbligated (4.218)
Net OPER Obligation at beginning of year 23,390
Net OPEB Obligation at end of year $ 18,171

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions —~ Calculations of benefits for financial reporting purposes
are based on the subsiantive plan {the plan as understood by the employer and plan members)
and include the types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern
of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan members to that point. The actuarial
metheds and assumptions used are designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued
liabiiities and the actuarial value of assels, consistent with the long-term perspective of the
calculations.

The District’'s annual CPEB cost the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan,
ang the net OPEB obligations as of June 30, 2011, was as follows (in thousands);

Percentage of

Fiscal Annual Amount Armnual OPEB Net DPEB
Year OPEB Cost Contributed Cost Contributed Obligation
2009 L 27 568 ] 15,0567 54 62 % ¥ 25,962
2010 L 6,103 % 8,675 14214 % b3 73,390
2011 b 6,094 3 13,313 169.23 % ¥ 19,171

Funded Status and Funding Progress —

Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL) (a) 3 86,600
Actuanal Value of Plan Assets (b} Y]
Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability {UAAL) {c} 86,600
Funded Ratio (bfa) 0 %
Coverad Payroll {Active than Mambers) 1,823,956
UaAL as a percentage of covered payroll (c/d} 475 %

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES:

A, Commitments

As part of its capital outlay program, the District has entered into various construction
commitments totaling approximately $149.5 million as of June 30, 2011. {See Note 4}.

The District leases certain facilities and equipment under various cancelable, operating

lease agreements. The total rent expense for fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 under
these leases was approximately $4.3 million.
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THE SCHOOL BOARD OF MIAMI-DADE CCOUNTY, FLORIDA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES, Continued:

Contingencies
Florida Education Finance Program and Federal, State and Local Grants

The School Board receives funding from the State of Flerida under the Florida Education
Finance Program (FEFP)}, which is based in part on a computation of the number of full-time
equivatent (FTE) students attending different instructional programs. The accuracy of FTE
sfudent data submitted by individual schools and used in the FEFP computations is subject
to audit by the state and, if found to be in error, could result in refunds to the state or in
decreases to future funding allocations. Additionally, the School Board participates in a
number of feceral, state and local grants which are subject to financial and compliance
audits. [t is the opinicn of management that the amount of revenue, if any, which may be
remitted back to the state due to errors in the FTE student data or the amount of grant
expenditures which may be disaliowed by grantor agencies would not be matenat to the
finangial position of the District.

Litigation

The Schoal Board is a defendant in numerous lawsuits as of June 30, 2011, In the opinian of
management, the District estimated aggregate liability, with respect to probable losges, has
been provided for in the estimated liability for insurance risks and pending claims in the
accompanying financial statemants, after giving consideration to the Distnct's related
insurance coverage, as well as the Florida statutory limitations of govemmental liability on
uninsured risks. H is the opinion of management and District legal counsel that the amount
of losses resulting, if any, from the above-mentioned litigation in excess of the amount
accrued as of June 30, 2011, would not be matenal to the financial position of the District.

FUND BALANCES:

In accordance with GASB Statement 54, Fund Balance Reporing and Governmentsl Fund Type

Definitions, the District reports its fund batance in the following categories:

Nonspendable — The District has $20.9 million prepaid items and $11.7 million inventories that
are considered nonspendable,

Restricted — The District reported restricted fund balances totaling $367.1 million comprised of
$8.4 million of State Reguired Carryover programs. $11.7 million in Food Service and
Miscellansous Special Revenue, $93.3 millicn in Debt Services and 3253.7 million in Capital
Projects.

Committed - The District did not have any committed fund balances at June 30, 2011,

Assigned - The District has assigned fund balances totaling $42.8 million comprised of $14.8
million for rebudgets and obligations, $18.9 million for cutstanding encumbrances for goods and
services, and $8.8 for capital projects.

Unassigned — The poriion of fund balance that is the residual classification for the general fund,
This balance represents balance amounts that have not bean restricted, committed, or assigned
for specific purposes. The unassignad fund balance for the General Fund is $3170.9 milfion.

Committed amounts would be reduced firsi, followed by assigned amounts, and then unassigned
amounts when expenditures are incurred for purposes for which amounts in any of those unrestricted

fund balance classifications could be used.

School Board Rule 6Gx13- 3A-1.012 delineates Fund Balance Reserve Policies to target 5.5% of the

combined assigned and unassigned fund balance, as a percentage of Total General Fund Revenues
at fiscal yaar end. At June 30, 2011 the combined assigned and unassigned Geaneral Fund Balance
totaled $204.7 million or 8% of General Fund Revenues.
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THE SCHOOL BOARD OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

19. FUND BALANCES, Continued:

Below is a table of fund balance categories and classifications for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2011 for the Districts’ governmental funds:

Govarnmental Funds

ARRA
Economic
Local Stimulus
Crpticnal Certificates Capital Mon-major* Total
General Miliage Levy of Projects Govarnmental Governmental
Fund Funds Participation Funds Funds Funds
FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable;
Inventory £ 7,043 S . b3 - 3 - $ 3,723 5 11,666
Prepaid amounts 637 20,301 - - - 20,938
Restricted:
State Reguired
Carryover 8.409 - - - 8409
Spacial Revenue:
Food Service - - 11,320 11,320
Miscellanecus - - 371 371
Debt Service - - - - 93,322 93,322
Capital Projects - 45,362 71.649 100,683 35972 253 666
Assighed:
Rebudgets and
Obligations 14,947 - - - - 14,947
Encumbrances 16,868 - - - - 18,868
Capital Projects - - - 8,750 8,750
Unassigned: 170,908 170,908
Tatal Fund Balance & 221,712 71,649 £ 100,683 -] 153,458 5 613185

$ 65663 %

" Aggregates all of the District's non-major fund balances
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THE SCHOOL BOARD OF MIAMI-DADE COQUNTY, FLORIDA
NOTES TO THE FINANGCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS:
Tax Anticipation Notes

On July 27, 2011 the District sold $200,000,000 in Tax Anticipation Notes. The Notes, issued for
payment of operating expenditures incurred pricr to the receipt of the ad valorem taxes levied
and collected for operating purposes for the fiscal year commencing July 1, 2011 will mature on
January 27, 2012.

The District has an outstanding swap fotaling $57,440,000 that is associated with the COP
Series 2008C. Under the Swap the Board pays a fixed rate and receives a floating rate based
on a percentage of ocne-month LIBOR. An Additional Termination Event has occurred due to
kMerrill Lynch Capital Services, Inc. {(MLCS), guarantor's ratings having fallen to or below "A-"
{from 3&P) or "A3" (from Moody's). MLCS’s guarantor, Merrill Lynch & Co., was downgraded by
Moody's to Baal on September 21, 2011, As such the District has the optional right to terminate
the swap and will consider authorizing the replacement of the swap with a new creditworthy
counterparty at its December 14, 2011 Board meeting.
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THE SCHOOL BOARD OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDLULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE—BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011
{amounts expressed in thousands)

Variance
Budget as Final Actual With Final
Originally Amended GAAP Amended
Adopted Budget Basis Budget
Revenues:
Local sources:
Ad valorem taxes $ 1255826 § 1,224,941 1,224 541 -
Interest income 1,493 1,602 1.602 -
Met increase (decrease) in fair value
of investments - 15 15 -
Local grants and other 85,504 72,528 72,528 -
Total local sources 1,322,913 1,206, 085 1,209,086 -
State sources:
Florida education finance program 642,008 503,780 803,780 -
State grants and other 511,043 503 8056 508,806
Total state sources 1,153,051 1,112,588 1,112 588 -
Federal sources:
Federal direct 2,156 1,965 1,965 -
Federai through state and [ogal 15,301 14,542 14 542 -
Total federal sources 17 457 168,507 16,507 -
Total revenues 2493421 2428179 2428179 -
Expenditures:
Current:
Instructional services 1,845 145 1,665,686 1663,231 5,455
Instructicnal suppert services:
Pupil personnel services 37629 60,932 58,229 2,703
Instructicnal media services 4414 7,145 7.080 55
Instruction and curmiculum
development service 17,174 21,096 20,970 1268
Instructional staff training services 3.821 6,255 5,253 2
Instruction related technology 26 686 25,028 27.742 286
Tatal instructional support
SaMvices 89704 123,456 120,284 3.172
Fupil transporation services 72,033 20,103 79,696 407
Cperation and maintenance of plant:
Operation of plant 279744 267 280 266,576 704
Maintenance of plant £9 808 88 187 83,00 5.188
Total cperation and
maintenance of plant 349 563 355 467 349577 5,850
School administration 166,274 163,407 163,150 257
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Expanditures, continued

General administration:
Central services
Board of education
General administration
Administrative technology services
Fiscal services
Total general administration

Community senvices

Capital outlay

Debt services:
Principal retiremeant
Interest and fiscal charges
Total debt service

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
{under) expenditures

Other financing sources (Uses);

Transfers in
Transfers out
Proceeds from sale of capital assets
Proceeds from [oansfleases
Total other financing sources {usas)

Net change in fund balance
Fund balance - beginning of year

Fund balance - end of year

Varance

Budget as Final Actual With Final
Criginalty Amended GAAP Amended
Adapted Budget Basis Budget
49,013 50,916 40 G52 $ 254
6,742 6,220 6,107 113
5577 6,309 6.300 9
61 2,804 2,403 401
13,507 14,070 13,932 138
75,600 80,218 78,604 1,635
3243 30,133 30,084 29
1,062 5,834 5.871 983
1,250 Fi-Yi 757 -
120 632 632 -
1,370 1,388 1,389 -
2833372 2,510,844 2,491,978 18,868
{139,951} {82 665} {63,797 18.868
140,140 153,545 153,545
- 130 430 -
- 102 102 -
140,140 183,777 153,777 -
389 71,112 20,980 $ 18.868
131,732
221,712
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THE SCHOOL BOARD OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

FEDERAL ECONOMIC STIMULDS FUNDS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE—BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011
{amounts expressed in thousands)

Revenues:
Local sources:
Local grants and ather
Total local sources

Federal sources:
Federal direct
Federat through state and Iocal
Total federal sources

Total revenues

Expenditures:

Current:
Instructional services
Instructional support services
Pupil fransperiation services
Operation and mainienance of plant
School admintstration
General administration
Food services
Community services

Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
{under) expenditures

Cther financing sources {(uses):
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total other financing sources (Usas}
Net change in fund balances

Fund balance - beginning of year

Fund balance - end of year

88

Budget as Final Actual
QOriginalty Amended GAAP
Adopted Budget Basis Variance
- - % - -
356 952 364 377 281,417 (62,860
156,952 364,377 281,417 {82 860)
356,852 364,377 281,417 {82,560}
171,196 188,662 167,457 21,205
101,201 107,728 91,901 15.827
3,522 122 102 20
568 620 513 107
2,003 3546 1,883 1663
77810 62478 G083 53,395
265 292 - 242
206 929 452 477
81 - 10,026 (10,028
356 952 364 377 281 417 g2,960
%
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THE SCHOQL BOARD OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SUPPLENMENTAL EARLY RETIREMENT PENSION TRUST
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS

June 34, 2011

{amounts expressed in thousands)

Actuarial Actuarial Annual UAAL as
Fiscal _Accrued Value of Unfunded Percentage Coverad Percentage
Year Liability {(AAL} Assets AAL {UAAL) Funded Payroll of Payroll
2006 $ 48,046 § 31,493 % 16,663 66 % N/A* NiA*
2007 46,248 35,079 11,168 76 % NiA* N/A*
2008 46,502 30,788 15,715 86 % hNiA” N/A®
2009 45 820 23,990 21,830 52 % NiA> NiA*
2010 43,687 23,823 19,863 54 % N/A® MNIAT
201 42 588 25,133 17,453 59 % MrA* N/A™

* The Schaal Board has terminated eligibility for the Supplemental Early Retirement Plan for eligible
employees who have not elected to retire under its provision by July 1, 2003.

The information presented in the required supplementary schedules was determined as part of
the actuarial valuations at the dates incurred.
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THE SCHOOL BOARD OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SUPPLEMENTAL EARLY RETIREMENT PENSION TRUST
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS
June 30, 2011
{amounts expressed in thousands}

Employer
Annual Contributions as
Fiscal Required Employer Total Percentage of
Year Contribution Contributions Contributions Total Contributions
2008 5 2,456 $ 2,466 $ 2,466 100 %
2007 2.373 2,877 28977 100 %
2008 2444 1,840 1,840 100 %
2009 1,825 1,825 1.825 100 %
2010 1,879 1,879 1,879 100 %
2011 2125 2.125 2,125 100 %
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THE SCHOOL BOARD OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS

June 30, 2011

{amounts expressed in thousands)

Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial Annual UAAL as
Valuation Accrued Value of Unfunded Percentage Covered Percentage
Date Liability {AAL} Assets AAL (LFAAL) Funded Payroll of Payroll
1041/2006 $ 322788 30 33227685 0.00% $ 1.619.403 1983 %
B/30/2009 322 766 o 322,786 .00 % 1,734,318 18.81 %
6/30/2010 89,069 ] 89,069 0.00 % 1,822 042 4.89 %
61302011 56,600 0 86,600 0.00 % 1,823 955 4.75 %

The District's liability for OPEB significantly decreased as a result of changes made by the District to its
health insurance plan, and valuafion assumptions made by the actuarial firm. During the 2009-10 fiscal
year the District changed from 2 fully insured plan to a self-insured plan. The most significant factor
contributing to the decrease is that the District no longer provides health insurance to retirees that are
over the age of 65. Another contributing factor is the assumption that a lower percentage of retirees will
elect to participate in the health insurance plan due to higher contributions reguired by the plan.
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THE SCHOOL BOARD OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS
June 30, 2011
{amounts expressed in thousands)

Annual Required

Contribution Amount Percentage of Net OPEB
Year {ARC) Contributed Contribution Obligation
2008 $27.122 $13,870 50.40 % $ 13,452
2009 27.425 15,057 54.90 % 25,0682
2010 5,926 8,675 144.38 % 23,300
2011 5534 10,313 173.80 % 18,171
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THE SCHOOL BOARD OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA

NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 2011
{amounts expressed in thousands)

ASSETS

Equity in pooled cash and investments
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and investments with fiscal agents

Total cash and investments

Taxes receivable

Accounts and interest receivable

Due from other governments or agencies
Due from other funds

Inventaries

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities:
Accounts and contracts payable and accrued expenditures
Accrued payrolt and compensated absences
Due to other funds
Due to other agencies
Deferred/uneamed revenue
Accrued interest payable
Estimated liability for arbitrage rebate
Retainage payable on contracts

Total habilities

Fund balances:
Nonspendable
Restricted
Assigned
Unassigned

Total fund balances
Total liabiiities and fund balances

96

Total
Non-major
Special
Revenue
Funds

% 1,470
158

1.628

25
35,110
380
3,723

3 40 866

B 5,803
1,341

15,818

2,408

77

25452

3,723
11,891

15414

3 40 866




Total
Total Mon-major Total
Non-major Capital Non-major
Debt Service Projects Governmental
Funds Funds Funds
3 73,707 5 27,300 3 102,977
27 825 18,287 48,070
2123 - 2.123
103,455 46,087 151,170
4218 - 4,216
23 23 71
- 2,274 37.384
- 1,213 1,583
- - 3,723
5 107.694 b 45 557 3 198157
$ 181 $ 1,768 $ 7,764
- - 1,341
- 1,213 17,031
- - 2,408
1,243 - 1,320
12,938 - 12,8938
- 138 138
- 1,756 1,758
14,372 4.875 44.698
- - 3.723
83322 35972 140,985
- 8,750 8,750
93,322 44,7232 153,458
$ 107,694 $ 49,587 $ 188,157

a7

Schedule A-1



THE SCHOOL BOARD OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA
NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT GF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 20, 2011
{amounts expressed in thousands}

Revenues:
Local sources:
Ad valorem taxes
Food service sales
interest income
Net increase {decrease) in fair value of investments
Local grants and other
Total local sources

State sources:
Public edusation capital auttay
Food services
State licensing revanue
State grants and other
Total state sources

Federal sources:
Federal grants and other
Food senices
Total federal sources
Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current;
Instructionsl services
Basic programs
Exceptional child programs
Adult and vocational-technical programs
Total instructional sarvicas

Instructional support services
Pupil transpartation services
Operation and maintenance of plant
School administration
General administration
Food services
Community services

Capital outlay

Diabt servica:
Principal retirement
Interest and fiscal charges

Total expenditures

Excess [deficiency) of revenues over {under] expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Issuance of debi
Premium on issuance of debt
Issuance of debt for refunding
Premium on refunding of debt
Payments to refunded bond escrow agent
Proceeds from sale of capiial assets
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total other financing sources {uses)

Met change in fund balances
Fund balances - peginning of year
Fund balances - end of ysar

Total Non-major

Total Non-major

Special Revenue Debt Service
Funds Funds

$ - 3 71683
29,647 -
13 1.643
- 2
5876 -
35,538 73.328
2136 -
- 13.510
25 2
2,181 13.512
274 926 -
110,212 -
385138 -
422 B35 36.840
121,983 -
43 811 -
8,807 -
174 601 -
70,212 -
4,108 -
267 -
14 -
8379 -
142 (48 -
1,827 -
14,485 -
- 151 603
- 136,263
416,041 287 BEG
6,754 {201,016}
- 278,155
- 8479
. (284,284}
- 210,664
- 213008
G794 11,8493
8,620 81,329
3 15414 3 83322




Schedule A-2

Tetal Non-major Totaf Non-major
Capital Projects Governmental
Funds Funds
% - § 71.683
- 29.647
1101 1757
2 4
8137 14,013
8.240 117,104
14,895 14,895
- 2136
- 13,510
15,188 15,21%
30,083 45,756
- 274,926
- 110,212
- 385,138
38,323 547 908
- 121,983
- 43,811
- 8807
- 174,601
- 70.212
- 4108
- 267
- 114
- 8,379
- 142,048
- 1.827
33812 48,297
- 151,603
13 135,266
33,825 737722
4.498 {189,724
640 40
57 57
- 278,155
- B 479
- (284 294}
3,520 3.520
- 210,689
{37.323) {37.323)
{33.106) 179,903
{28.608) {9,821
73,330 163,278
§ 44 722 3 153 458
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Non-major Special Revenue Funds

The Non-major Special Revenue Funds account for and report the proceeds of specific
revenue sources derived from Miami-Dade County, Florida, the State of Florida and the
Federal Government; that are restricted or committed to finance designated activities.
Activities included within the funds are as follows:

* Food Service Fund - Accounts for and reports on proceeds of specific revenues of
the food service program in serving breakfast and lunch at the schools.

* Other Federal Programs Fund - Accounts for and reports on the proceeds of
specific revenues of various programs of different funding sources, according to the
specifications and requirements of each funding source.

* Miscellaneous Special Revenue Funds - Account for and report on proceeds
of specific revenues that are restricted or committed to expenditures of the law
enforcement and special events fund.
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THE SCHOOQOL BOARD OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA
NON-MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 2011
{amounts expressed in thousands)

Other
Food Federal
Service Programs
Fund Fund
ASSETS
Equity in pocled cash and investments 3 874 3 36
Cash and cash equivalents 31 77
Total cash and investments 955 113
Accounts and interest receivable 25 -
Due from other governments or agencies 17,713 17,397
Due from other funds 26 354
Inventories 3,723 -
Total assets 3 22,442 $ 17,864
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANGES
Liabilities:
Accounts and contracts payable
and accrued expenditures 3 2,092 L3 3,524
Accrued payroll and compensated absences 227 1,114
Due to other funds 4 873 10,838
Due to other agencies 201 2,207
Deferred/unearned revenue - 77
Retainage payable on contracts - 3
Total liabilities 7,389 17 B64
Fund balances:
Nonspendable 3,723 -
Restricied 11,320 -
Assigned - -
Unassigned - -
Tatal fund balances 15,043 -
Total liabilities and fund balances $ 22,442 b 17 864
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Total
Miscellaneous Non-major
Special Special
Revenue Revenue
Funds Funds
560 1,470
- 158
560 1,628
- 25
- 35,110
- 360
- 3,723
560 40,866
189 5,805
- 1,341
- 15.818
- 2,408
- 7
- 3
188 25,452
- 3,723
37 11.691
ar 15414
560 40 866
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THE SCHOOL BOARD OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA
NON-MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011
(amounts expressed in thousands}

Other
Food Federal
Service Programs
Fund Fund
Revenues:
Local sources:
Food service sales 3 29,647 -
Interest income 12 -
Met increase (decrease) in fair value of investments - -
Local grants and other 2 5,665
Total local sources 296861 5,665
State sources;
Food services 2,138 -
State grants and other 25 -
Tatal state sources 2,161 -
Federal spurces:
Federal grants and other 8,288 266628
Food services 110,212 -
Total federal sources 118,510 265 628
Total revenues 150,332 272,293
Expentditures;
Current.
Instructional services
Basic programs - 121,983
Exceptionat child programs - 43 511
Aduli and vocational-techrical programs - 8,807
Total instructional services - 174 601
Instructional support services - 70,212
Fupil transportation services - 4,108
Operation and maintenance of plant - 223
Schoal administration - 114
Genegral administration - 8,378
Food services 142 048 -
Community services - 1,782
Capital outlay 1,220 12,874
Total expenditures 143,268 272 2893
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over {under}
expenditures 7,064 -
Other financing sources {uses}).
Transfers in ~ -
Total other financing sources (uses) - -
Net change in fund balances 7.064 -
Fund balances - beginning of year 7,979 -
Fund balances - end of year 15,043 -




Schedule B-2

Total
Miscellaneous Nen-major
Special Special
Revenue Revenue
Funds Funds

- 3 28,647
1 13

208 5,876

210 35,536

- 2136
- 25

- 2,181

- 274 926
- 110,212

- 385,138

210 422 835

- 121,883
- 43.811
- a.e0v7

- 174,601

- 70.212

- 4108
44 267
- 114

- 8,378

- 142,048
45 1,827
391 14,485

480 416,041

(270) 6,794

{270} 6,794
641 8,620

5 371 3 15.414
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THE SCHOOL BOARD OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA
NON-MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FLUNDS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011
{amounts expressed in thousands)

Food Service Fund

Final
Amended
Budget Actual Variance
Revenues:
Local sources,
Food service satles 5 29647 % 20847 § -
Interest income 12 12 -
Net increase (decrease) in fair value of investments - - -
Local grants and other 2 2 -
Tolal local sources 29,661 29.661 -
State sources,
Food services 2138 2,136 -
State grants and other 25 25 -
Total state sources 2,161 2,181 -
Federal sources:
Federal grants and other 5,468 §.298 {170
Food services 110,042 110,212 170
Total fedaral sources 118,510 118,510 -
Total revenues 150,332 150 332 -
Expenditures:
Current:
Instructional services - - -
Instructional suppart services - - -
Pupil transportation services - - -
Operation and maintenance of plant - - -
School administration - - -
General administration - - -
Food services 142,048 142 048 -
Community services - - -
Capital outlay 1,220 1,220 -
Total expenditures 143,268 143,268 -
Excess {deficiency) of revenues over {under)
axpanditures 7,084 7,084 -
Cther financing sources {uses):
Transfers in - - -
Total other financing sources {uses) - - -
Net change in fund batances $ 7064 % 7064 % -
Fund balances - beginning of year 7,979
Fund balances - end of year $ 15043
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Schedule B-3
(Continued)

Other Federal Programs Fund

Final
Amended
Budget Actual Variance

- $ - 3 _
18,607 5865 (12,942)
18,607 5 665 (12,942}
316,708 266,628 {50,078}
316,708 266,628 {50,078)
335,313 272,283 {63.020)
207,782 174 801 33,19
103,649 70212 33,437
BSO 4 108 {3.228)
49 223 {174}

180 114 66

9140 8.379 761
2,747 1,782 965
10,878 12,874 {1,998}
335,313 272,293 63,020

- - $ -

$ -
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THE SCHOQL BOARD OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA
NON-MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
SCHEDULE CF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES — BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011
{amounts expressed in thousands)

Miscellaneous Special Revenue Funds

Final
Amended
Budget Actual Variance

Revenues:
Local sources:
Food service sales $ - % - 3
Interest income 1 1
Met increase (dacrease) in fair vaiue of investments - -
Local grants and other 208 209

Total local sources 218 210

State sources:
Food services _ -
State grants and other - -

Total state sources - -

Federal sources:
Federal grants and cther - -
Food sarvices - _

Total federal sources

Total revenues 210 210

Expenditures,
Current:
Instructional services . -
Instructional support services - -
Fupil transportation services - -
Operation and maintenance of ptant 44 44
Schogl administration - -
General administration - -
Food services - -

Community services 45 45
Capital outlay 381 381
Tetal expenditures 480 480
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
gxpenditures {270] (270)
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in - -
Tota! cther financing sources {(uses) - -
Net change in fund balances $ (270} 272 %
Fund batances - beginning of year 541
Fund balances - end of year b3 371
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Totals
Final
Ameanded
Budget Actual Variance

3 20647 $ 28647 -
13 13 -
18518 5,876 {12,542)
48 478 35 538 {12.542)
2.135 2,136 -

25 25 -

2,181 2,161 -
325174 274,926 (b0, 248}
110,042 110,212 170
435 216 385 138 (50.078)
485 B55 422 835 {63,020}
207,792 174,601 33191
103 .64% 70,212 33437
880 4,108 (3,228}
g3 267 {174}

180 114 68

0,140 8,379 761
142,045 142,048 -
2,792 1,827 965
12 487 14,485 {1,998}
479,081 415,041 £3,020
5,754 6,794 -

3 5,794 5,794 -

8620
$ 15.414
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Non-major Debt Service Funds

The Non-major Debt Service Funds account for the payment of interest and principal
of the current portion on long-term debt, primarily from tax proceeds and earnings on
temporary investments:

e State Board of Education Bond Funds - Account for and report on payment of
principal and interest on various bond issues serviced by the State.

* Certificates of Participation Fund - Accounts for and reports on payment of principal,
interest and related costs on obligations pertaining to lease payments, acquisition and
construction of schools and ancillary facilities.

* General Obligation School Bonds Fund - Accounts for and reports on payment of
principal, interest and related costs on bonds of the voter-approved Bond Referendum
issued to finance the building of new schools and facilities.
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THE SCHOOL BOARD OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA
NON-MAJOR DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 2011
(amounts expressed in thousands)

State Certificates
Board of of
Education Participation
Bond Funds Fund
ASSETS
Eouity in pooled cash and investments % - 3 50,791
Cash and cash equivalents “ -
Cash and investments with fiscal agents 2,123 -
Total cash and investments 2,123 50,751
Taxes receivable - .
Interest receivable - -
Due from other agencies - -
Total assets $ 2123 % 50,791
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:

Accounts and accrued expenditures payable $ - $ 191
Due to other funds - -
Deferred/unearned revenues - -
Accrued interest payable - 12,838
Estimated liability for arbitrage rebate - -
Total liabilities - 13,129

Fund balances:
Nonspendable - -
Restricted 2,123 37,662
Assigned - -
Unassigned - -
Total fund balances 2,123 37,662
Total liabilities and fund balances 3 2,123 3 50,791
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Schedule C-1

General Total
Ohligation Non-major
School Deaht Service
Bonds Fund Funds
22,016 5 73,707
27,625 27 625
- 2,123
50,541 103,455
4216 4 216
23 23
54 780 % 107,694
- % 191
1.243 1,243
- 12,938
1,243 14,372
53,537 93 322
53,537 93,322
54,780 $ 107 694
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THE SCHOOL BOARD OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA
NON-MAJOR DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXFENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011
{amounts expressed in thousands)

State Certificates
Board of of
Education Participation
Bond Funds Fund
Revenues;
Local sources:
Ad valorem taxes $ - % -
Interest income - 1,568
Net increase (decrease) in fair value of investments - -
Total local sources - 1.568
State sources:
State licensing revenue 13,510 -
SBE/COBI beond interest 2 -
Total state sources 13,512 -
Total revenues 13,512 1,568
Expenditures:;
Debt service:
Principal retirement 9,785 B0 463
Interest and fiscal charges 3,954 119,636
Total expenditures 13,739 210,099
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over {under) expenditures (227) (208,531)
Other financing sources (uses):
Issuance of debt for refunding 1,440 275715
Premium on refunding of debt 230 8.249
Payments to refunded debt escrow agent {1675} {282 619)
Transfers in - 210 669
Total other financing sources {5) 213014
Net change in fund balances (232) 4,483
Fund balances - beginning of year 2,355 33,178
Fund balances - end of year 3 2123 % 37,662
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Schedule C-2

General Total
Obligation Non-major
School Debt Service
Bonds Fund Funds

71,683 % 71,683

75 1.643

2 2

71,760 73,328

- 13 510

- Z

- 13,612

71.760 86,840
51,355 151,603
12,663 136,253
64,018 287 BES
7.742 {201,016}

- 278155

- 8.47%

- {284,294)

- 210,668

- 213,009

7.742 11,883

45 785 81.325
53,537 g 93,322
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THE SCHOOL BOARD OF MIAMI-DADE COLUNTY, FLORIDA
DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011
(amounts expressed in thousands)

State Board of Education Bond Funds

Final
Amended Actual
Budget GAAP Basis Variance
Revenues.
Ad valorem faxes 3 - 5 - %
State licensing revenue 13.510 13,510
SBE/COEBI hond interest 2 2
Interest inceme - -
Net increase (decrease) in fair value of investments - -
Total revenues 13,512 13,512
Expenditures:
Debt sarvice:
Frincipal retirement 9,785 9785
Interest and fiscal charges 3,954 3,954
Total expendituras 13,739 13,739
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over {under)
expenditures {227) {227}
Other financing sources {uses):
issuance of debt for refunding 1,440 1,440
Premium on refunding of debt 230 230
Payments to refunded bond escrow agent {1.875) {1.675)
Transfers in - -
Total other financing sources (uses) (5) {5)
Net change in fund balances {232) (232) _§
Fund balances - beginning of year 2,358 2,355
Fund balances - end of year 3 2123 % 2,123
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Certificates of Participation Fund

Schedule C-3
(Continued}

Genegral Obligation School Bonds Fund

Final Final
Amended Actual Amended Actual
Budget GAAP Basis Variance Budget GAAP Basis Variance

b - 8 - % - $ 71,683 3 71,683 -
1,568 1,568 - 75 75 -
- - - 2 2 -
1,568 1,668 - 71,760 71,760 -
90 463 03,453 - 81,355 51,355 -
118636 119,636 - 12,663 12,663 -
210,099 210.099 - 654,018 54.018 -
{208.531} {208,531) - 7.742 7,742 -
276,715 276,718 - - - -
8,243 8,249 - - - -
(282,618) (282,619) - - - -
210,668 210,669 - - - -
213,014 213,014 - - - -
4,483 4483 3§ - 7.742 7,742 -

33,179 33.179 45,795 45 795

3 37 662 3 37 662 3 53.537 3 53,537
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THE SCHOOL BOARD OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

{amounts expressed in thousands)

ARRA Economic Stimulius Debt Service Fund

Final
Amended
Budget

Actual
GAAP Basis Variance

Revenues:
Ad valorem taxes L -
State licensing revenue -
SBE/CORI bond interest -
Interest income -
Net increase (decrease) in fair value of investments -

Total revenues -

Expenditures:
Debt service:
Principal retirement -
Interest and fiscal charges 1,987

1,987 -

Total expenditures 1,887

1,987 -

Excess {(deficiency} of revenues over (under)
expenditures (1,987}

{1,987) -

Other financing sources (uses):
tssuance of debt for refunding -
Premium on refunding of debt -
Fayments to refunded bond escrow agent -
Transfers in 1,987

1,887 -

Total other financing sources (uses) 1,087

1.887 -

Met change in fund balances -
Fund balances - beginning of year -

Fund balances - end of year 3 -
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Schedule C-3
{Concluded)

Totals
Final
Amended Actual
Budget GAAP Basis Variance

¥ 71683 % 71683 § -

13,510 13,510 -
2 2 -
1,643 1,643 _
2 2 -
86,840 86,840 -
151,603 151,603 -
138,240 138,240 -
289,843 289,843 B
(203,003) (203,003 -
278,155 278,155 -
8,479 8.479 -
(284,294) (284,294) _
212 656 212,656 -
214,996 214 996 R
$ 11,893 11,993 § -
81,329
5 93,322
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Non-major Capital Projects Funds

The Non-major Capital Projects Funds account for the financing and acquisition or
construction of major capital facilities, such as new school buildings or additions to
existing buildings, or for major renovation projects. Specific funding sources included
herein are:

* Impact Fees Funds - Accounts for and reports on local revenues associated with new
construction and development.

o State Board of Education/Capital Outlay Bond Indebtness (SBE/COBI) Funds
- Accounts for and reports on the state sales of SBE bonds on behalf of the School
Board for eligible capital projects.

 Master Equipment Lease Fund - Accounts for and reports on funds for leased
equipment acquisitions.

e Section 1011.14 Loans Fund - Accounts for and reports on the proceeds received
from the issuance of the Revenue Anticipation Notes, used to pay or reimburse the
capital outlay funds for the cost of acquisition, construction and equipping modular
classrooms.

* Public Education Capital Outlay (PECO) Funds - Accounts for and reports on funds
received from the State for the construction and maintenance of schools.

* General Obligation School Bonds Fund - Accounts for and reports on funds received
from the issuance of General Obligation School Bonds, used for the construction of
new schools and major renovations of existing schools.

e Capital Outlay and Debt Service Funds - Accounts for and reports on the excess
dollars from the debt service funds, used for construction and maintenance of
schools.

e Other Capital Projects Funds - Accounts for resources used in site acquisition,
construction, renovation and remodeling of educational facilities.
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THE SCHOOL BOARD OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA

NON-MAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

ASSBETS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 38, 2011

(amounts expressed in thousands)

Impact
Fee
Funds

SBE/
COBI
Funds

Master
Equlpment
Lease
Fund

Equity in pooled cash and investments 5 -

Cash and cash equivalents
Total cash and investments

Taxes receivable
Accounts and interest receivable

1,487

3 1,349

Due from other governments or agencies 2274

Due from gther funds
Total assets

1,487

1,349

1,488

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilitigs:

Accounts and contracts payasble and

accrued expenditurgs
Due to other funds
Due to other agencies

Retainage payable on contracts

Deterredfunearned revenue
Accrued interest payable

Estimated liability for arbitrage rebate -

Total liabilities

Fund balances:
Monspendable
Restricted
Assigned
Linassigned

Total fund balances

1,061

1.488

1,343

1.061

1,488

1.343

Total liabilities and fund balances $ 2,274

1,488

b 1,349
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Schedule D-1

Public Capital Total
Education General Outlay Other Non-major
Section Capital Qutlay Obligation and Capital Capital
1011.14 {PECQ) School Debt Service Projects Projects
F.8. Loans Funds Bonds Fund Fund Funds Funds
¥ 13,081 ] g 3 4127 % 2437 3 5,250 27,800
10,467 - 4 975 - 2,845 18,287
23,558 2] 9,102 2,487 8,085 46,087
11 - 4 1 6 23
_ - - - - 2274
- - - - 1,213 1213
§ 23569 % 9 & Bi0E % 2488 % 9,314 48 597
1,066 g 58 170 469 1,765
- - - - - 1,213
1,422 - 189 40 g5 1,756
- - 138 - - 138
2478 9 385 210 554 4,875
21,091 - 871 2,278 - 35972
- - - - 8,750 B 750
21,091 - 8.711 2,278 8.750 44 722
5 23569 3 9 3 8108 % 2488 % 9.314 4§ 597
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THE SCHOOQOL BOARD OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA
NON-MAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

{amounts expressed in thousands)

Revenues:
Local sources:

Ad valorem taxes

interest income

Net increase (decrease} in fair value
of investments

Local grants and other

Total local sources

State sources;
Fublic education capital outlay
Cther state revenue
Taotal state sources

Total revenues

Expenditures;
Capital outlay
Debt service
Tatal expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
{under) expenditures

{ther financing sources {uses):
Transfers out
Issuance of debt
Premium on issuance of debi
Proceeds from sale of capital assets
Tetal other financing sources {uses}

Met change in fund balances
Fund balances - beginning of year
Furdd batances - end of year

124

Master
impact SBE/ Equiprment
Fee COEI Lease
Funds Funds Fund
$ - % - % -
1 2 11
7.078 - -
7.07% 2 11
7,079 i 11
a6 a3 7.020
- 5 _
95 g9 7.020
5 983 {97} {7.009)
(9,100 - {1,177}
— 6.40 -
- 57
{9,107} 597 {1,177
{2,124) 600 {8.186)
3185 588 8,529
S 1,061 3 4 488 $ 1,343




Schedule D-2

Public Capital Total
Education General Outlay Other Non-major
Section Capital Qutlay Obligation and Capital Capital
011.14 {PECQ) Schaal Debt Service Projects Projects

F.5. Loans Funds Bonds Fund Fund Funds Funds

3 - - 5 - % - - % -

52 1 16 3 15 101

2 - - - - 2

. - ; - 1,059 8,137

54 1 16 3 1.074 & 240

- 14,885 - - - 14,895

- 13633 - 1,555 - 15,188

- 28.528 - 1,555 - 30,083

54 28 579 16 1,558 1.074 38,323

15,933 1,480 3,140 1,510 4,530 33.812

- - - 7 - 13

15,833 1,490 3,140 1,517 4,530 33.825

(15.879) 27,039 (3,124) 41 {3.456) 4,498

- (27,039) - - - (37.323)

- - - - - 540

- - - - 57

- - - 3,520 3.520

- (27.039) - - 3,520 (33,108)

{15.879) - (3.124) 41 54 {28.608)

38,970 - 11,835 2,237 8,686 73.330

$ 21,091 - § 8711 5 2.278 8750 $ 44,722
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Schedule D-3

THE SCHOOL BOARD OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS*®
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES—BLUDGETARY BASIS
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011
{amounts expressed in thousands)

Totals
Final Actual
Amended Budgetary
Budget Basis Variance
Revenues:
Local sources:
Ad valorem taxes 3 289618 % 289618 % -
Interest income 1,241 1,241 -
Net increase {decrease) in fair value
of investments 8 8 -
Local grants and other 5.137 8137 -
Total iocal sources 299 004 299,004 -
State sources:
Public education capital outlay 14 895 14,885 -
Other state revenue 15,188 15,188 -
Total state sources 30,083 30,083 -
Total revenues 328,087 320 087 -
Expenditures:
Capital cutliay 456,027 201,159 254,868
Cebt service:
Interest and fiscal charges 482 275 207
Total expenditures 455,509 201,434 255,075
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over {under)
expenditures {127,422 127,653 255,075
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers out {366.201) {366,201) -
Issuance of debt 25120 25,120 -
Premium on issuance of debt 57 57 -
Proceeds from saie of capital assets 3520 3,620 -
Total other financing sources (uses) {337,504) {237.504) -
Net change in fund balances 3 {464 926} {209.851) § 255075
Fund balances - beginning of vear 492 565
Fund balances - end of year 3 282 717

“Figrida Statutes, Section 1013.61, reguires that the capital outiay budget designate the proposed capital
expenditures by project for the year from all sources. Accordingly, annual budgets for the Capital Projects Funds are
adopied on a combined basis only. Therafore, both major and non-majer funds are presented in this schedule,
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Agency Fund

Agency Fund accounts for the resources of the Schools’ Internal Fund, which is used to
administer monies, collected at the schools in connection with school, student athletics,
class and club activities.
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Schedule E-1

THE SCHOOL BOARD OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA
SCHOOLS' INTERNAL FUND
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Balance Balance
July 1, 2010 Additions Deductions June 30, 2011
Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 3 5229 & B5436 & 83642 § 8023
Investments 17,349 5,469 8,000 14,818
Accounts receivable, net - - - -
interest receivable 33 34 33 34
Cue from other agencies 44 Z 44 2
Inventory - - - -
Total assets F 22 B55 5 91,841 3 91,719 ] 22,877

Liabilities
Accounts payable 3 42 5 64 5 42 B 64
Due to other agencies 3,890 3,943 3,880 3,843
Due to student organizations 18723 87,934 87 787 18,870
Total lizbilities 3 22 655 $ 81,941 % 61,714 $ 22 877
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Non-major Component Units

Component Units consist of charter schools and the Foundation for New Education
Initiatives, Inc.

Charter Schools — are privately-owned schools sponsored by the District and funded
through FTE generated revenue sources. Charter Schools are recognized as public
schools within the District, and therefore, reported as a component unit.

Foundation for New Education Initiatives, Inc. — a not-for-profit Direct Support
Organization (DSO), established to receive, hold, invest and administer property and
to make expenditures for the benefit of public education programs in the District.
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THE SCHOOL BOARD OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA

NON-MAJOR COMPONENT UNITS

COMBINING STATEMENTS OF NET ASSETS

JUNE 30, 2011

{amounts expressed in thousands)

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Tatal cash angd investmeants

Accounts and interest recevable
Due from other govemments or agencies
Cther curent assets

Total current assets

Non-—current assats:
Capital assets;
Nan-depreciable capital assets
Depreciable capital assets
Less accumulated depreciation
Total net capial assets
Total non-cument assets

Total assets

UABILITIES
Currant liabilities;
Accounts and contracts payable and accrued
expenditures
Accrued payroll and compeansated absences
Due t0 other ggencies
LUnearned revenue
Current partion of iong-ierm liabilities
Total current liabiliies

Non-current liabilitios:
Non-current pertion of long-term liabiithes
Total non-current liabilities
Total liabilities

NET ASSETS

Invested in capital assets. net of related debt
Restricted far;

State required carryover programs

Capital projects

Other purposes
Unrestricted

Total net assets (deficit)

Academir Advanced
Charter Learning Archimedean
School Charter Archimedean Middie

West School Academy Conservatory
186 § 249 3 19 3 7

165 2439 19 7

- 28 285 -

- - 107 185

- 11 23 12

186 288 434 204

84 375 1,323 468
{13) {71 {524) {200

51 g4 798 268

51 304 798 268

237 % 582 % 1233 % 472

- ¥ 128 3 284 % 118

11 - - -

- - 129 -

142 - - -

153 126 413 118

- 626 671 30

- 826 671 30

153 752 1.084 145

51 304 494 234

33 {454} (345} 50

B4 ¥ (edr % 148 3 324
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Ben Gamia Coral Reef
Archimedean Balere Charter Montessori
Upper Language School Bridgepoint Academy

Conservatory Academy {Miarni Beach) Academy Charter School
b & 44 % 9 % 8 3 780
L&) 46 g 86 780

1 - - - -

72 128 - 74 82

10 B 41 42 29

89 180 50 212 841

- - - - 881

511 41 45 36 3,780
(143) {33} &) {7) (564)

68 8 40 28 4177

368 8 40 29 41477

5 457 188 % o0 % 241 3 5068
% 64 28 3 - % 9 % 47
- - 4 86 224

- - a1 44 -

- 68 - - B3

54 a7 85 138 354

33 69 - - 3,494

33 (=18 - - 3484

a7 186 85 139 3,848

330 8 - 28 599

30 14 5 73 621

3 360 22 ¥ 5 3 102 3 1,220
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THE SCHOOL BOARD OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA
NON-MAJOR COMPONENT UNITS
COMBEINING STATEMENTS OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2011
{amounts expressed in thousands)

Doctors Doral Daral
Charter Academy Academy
School of Daral Charter Charter
Miami Shores Academy Middle School High Schoel
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 247 3 3818 % 2352 3 345
Total cash and investments 247 3,818 2,352 345
Accounts and interest receivable 1 - - 1,329
Due from other govemments ofF agencies 69 20 135 419
Other current assets 55 7B 253 273
Total current assets 373 3,915 2,740 2,366
Non-cument assets:
Capital assets:
Non-depreciable capital asssets - 245 - -
Depreciable capital assets 1.259 3.550 2,344 7.251
Less accumulated depreciation {999) {2,769 {1.042) {2.037)
Total net capital assets 280 1,028 1,302 5,214
Total non-current assets 260 1,026 1,302 5,214
Total assets ¥ 633 3 4.941 3 4042 3 7.580
LIABILITIES
Current liahilities:
Accounts and contracts payable and accrued
expenditures $ 256 & 241§ i % 254
Accrued payroll and compensated absences - 250 275 1,036
Due o other agencies - 122 - -
Unearnad revenLs - - - -
Currert portion of long-term liabilities - - - -
Taotal current liabilites 256 613 278 1,290
Non-current liabilities.
Norn-current portion of long-term ligbilities - - - 1,329
Total nan-current liabilities - - - 1,328
Total ligbilities 256 613 278 2819
NET ASSETS
Invested in capitat assets, net of related debt 280 1.028 1,302 3.885
Restricted for.
State required carmyover programs - - - -
Capital projedcts - - - -
Other purposes a5 - 348 ass
Unrestrictad 71 3,302 2,114 &1
Tatal net assets {deficit) 3 IF7 % 4,328 & 3764 % 4 981
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Deral
Performing Arts Excelsior
& Downtown Excelsior Excelsior Language
Entertainment Miami Academy Charter Academy of
Academy Charter School High School Academy Hialeah

$ 494 % 1281 % 19 % 231 arz
454 1281 19 kB 372

- 25 - 24 -

5 32 - - 125

4899 1338 18 255 497

324 472 7 145 450
{306]) (281} {1 (44) {133)

18 191 4] 101 37

18 191 i) glsh| 37

5 597 & 1528 § 25 ¥ 356 514
% - % 242 & - % 4 150

- 245 - 45 181

- - - - 1

- &7 - - -

- 554 50 332

- 13 - -

- 13 - -

- 554 13 50 332

18 191 5] 101 37

499 784 8 205 155

3 517 % 975 % 12 3 306 4582
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THE SCHOOL BODARD OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA

NON-MAJOR COMPONENT UNITS
COMBINING STATEMENTS OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2011
{amounts expressed in thousands)

Florida Integrated international
Florida internaticnat Science & Studies
Internationsal Elementary Asian Culture Charter
Academy Academy Academy Middle School
ASSETS
Current agsets:
Cash and cash eguivalents $ 326 3 452 & 107 3 272
Tatal cash and investments 326 452 107 272
Acoounts and interest receivable - - - -
Due from other govemments or agencies 57 - - 25
Other current assets 65 33 g 5
Total curent assets 448 485 116 305
Non-current assets:
Capital assets:
Nor-depreciable capital assets - - - -
Depreciable capital assets 224 88 54 557
Less accumulated depreciation {188) 3 {12} (102}
Total net capital assets 35 85 72 435
Total non-current assets a5 85 72 455
Total assets b3 433 5 571 ] 188 $ 760
LIABILITIES
Current ligbilities:
Accounts and contracts payable and accrued
expendiiures 3 a % 2110 3 81 3 7
Accrued payrall and compensated absences 75 85 - 42
Due 1o other agencies - 1 - 173
Unearned revenue - 61 - -
Current portian of iong-term liabilties 45 - - 43
Total cumrent liabilities 130 357 81 285
Non-current liabilities.
Non-current portion of tong-term liabilities - - - 100
Total non-current iabilihes - - - 100
Total liabilities 130 357 51 355
MET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related detxt 35 86 72 312
Restricted for:
State required cammyover programs - - - -
Capital projects - - - -
Other purposeas - - - -
Unrestrictad 318 128 35 83
Total net assets {deficit) $ 383§ 214 3 107§ 395
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International Lawrence
Studies Keys Gate Keys Gate Academy Lawrence
Charter Charter Charter High Elementary Academy
High School Schoot School Charter Middle
b 223 % 3036 3 125 3 119 158
223 3.036 125 119 158
- 3,667 - - -
185 85 1,880 12 10
2 58 12 7B 82
410 £,828 2017 208 230
1,258 1,203 18,827 183 245
{353) {785) {1} {53} {169}
805 414 18,826 110 76
905 414 18,826 110 Fi:]
$ 1315 & 7240 % 20843 § 319 306
L3 S7 % 708 % 142 kS - -
121 - - 54 84
- 80 34 - -
- 157 107 - -
108 - - - -
287 o945 283 5 84
261 - 20,538 - -
261 - 20,538 - -
548 8345 20,821 54 B4
535 414 {1,712 110 78
232 5.881 1,734 155 148
$ 767 % 8285 &% 22 % 285 222
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ASS5ETS
Cumrent assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
Total cash and investments

Accounts and interest receivable
Due from other governments or agencies
Other current assefs

Total current assets

Non-current assets:

Capital assets:

Mon-depreciable capital assets
Depreciable capital assets
Less accumulated depreciation
Total net capital assets
Total non-current assets

Total assats

LIABILITIES
Cumrent liabilities;

Accounts and contracts payable and acerued
expenditures
Accrued payroll and compensated absences
Due to other agencies
Unearned revenue
Current portion of long-term liabilities
Total current iabilities

Nan-current liabiiities:
Man-current portion of long-term liabilities
Total non-current liabiiities
Total liabiiities

NET ASSETS

invested in capital assets, net of related debt

Restncted for:

State required canyogver programs
Capital projects
Gther purposes

Unresiricted

Total net assets {deficit)

THE SCHOOL BOARD OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA
HON-MAJOR COMPONENT UNITS
COMBINING STATEMENTS OF NET ASSETS

JUNE 340, 2011
{amounts expressed in thousands)

Life Skills Lin¢oln-Marti Lincoln-Mart
Lawrence Center Charter School  Charter School
Academy Miami-Dade {Hialeah {International
Senior High County Campus) Campus)
$ 71 208 5 243 3 144
71 206 243 144
- 25 1 10
5 - - -
41 - - -
118 231 244 154
2B 153 £38 108
(4} {153 {128) 113
24 - 508 a8
24 - 508 G
$ 142 231 ] 753 3 252
3 - - % 15 % 69
- - 56 12
28 7B 545 -
26 76 618 81
25 75 B16 81
24 - 509 a8
a2 155 {372} 73
3 116 155 % 137§ 171
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Lincoln-Marti Mater Mater
Charter School Mater Acadermy Academy
(Little Havana Mater Academy Charter Charter
Campus} Academy (Miami Beach} Middle School High School
3 650 % 7232 % 427 % 5138 % 4.574
650 7,232 477 5135 4574
7 5 - 26 -
143 907 25 158 341
- 19 31 132 128
800 8163 483 5452 5,044
773 4038 387 4,265 $.333
(177} £2.947) {41} {1,841} (2.738)
596 1.0 325 2,424 3,585
596 1,091 326 2,424 3.595
3 1388 % 9264 % 808 % 7878 %  BA39
$ 20 0% 43 % 116§ 2 % 8
7 248 72 375 514
10 . 223 326 -
- - 50 - -
180 291 456 Vo4 5227
150 231 466 704 522
596 1,081 325 2,424 3,598
- - - 474 560
B10 7872 18 4,274 3,961
3 1206 & B983 & 35 772 % 5117
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THE SCHOOL BOARD OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA
NON-MAJOR COMPOMENT UNITS
COMBINING STATEMENTS OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2011
{amounts expressed in thousands)

Mater Mater
Mater Mater Academy of Academy
Academy East Academy East International Middle School
Charter School Charter High Studies of Int’l Studies
ASSETS
Current assets;
Cash and cash equivalents % 1989 ¥ 4 & 513 § 72
Total cash angd investments 1.988 344 513 72
Accounts and interest receivable - - a7 -
Due from other governments or agencies - 70 - 13
{nher current assets 57 23 35 1
Total cument assets 2,046 437 585 86
Non-current assets:
Capital agsets:
Non-depreciable capital assets - - - -
Depreciable capital assets 918 401 380 284
Less accumulated depreciation (569) {222) {111} (06}
Total net capital assets 349 179 269 198
Total non-current assets 349 179 268 168
Total assels % 2395 % §16 854 % 284
LIABILITIES
Current liabilitias:
Accounts and contracts payable and accrued
expendifures ] 3 % 18 1 % 30
Accrued payroll and compensated absences 183 100 102 24
Due to other agencies - 8 - -
Unearned revenue - - - -
Current portion of leng-term hiabilities - - - .
Total current liabilities 186 126 103 54
MNon-current liabilitias:
Non-current portion of long-term liabilities - - - -
Total non-current liabilities - " - "
Total fiabilities 186 126 103 54
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 49 178 269 198
Restricted for:
State required carryover programs - - - -
Capital projects - - - -
Otner purposes 222 108 - -
Unrestricted 1638 203 482 32
Total net assets (deficit) 3 2208 % 4480 751 % 230
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Mater Mater Mater
Academy Academy Academy Mater East Mater
High School Lakes Lakes Academy Gardens
of Int'l Studies  Middle School High School Middle School Academy

3 132 % 731 16817 % 726 % 589
132 731 1,817 728 bED

5 209 247 12 15

- il 70 35 83

137 8§71 1.934 773 G687

2427 543 26580 237 735
{11} {165} (327) {135} {374)

23 arg 2,333 102 351

231 378 2,333 102 361

3 368 1.349 4267 % 75 % 1.048
$ - ¥ g2 175 3 12§ 154
- 141 - 70 181

- - - - 30

- - 335 - -

- 223 510 az2 ag2

- - 1,033 - -

- - 1,033 - -

223 1,543 82 g2

23 378 985 102 s

- - - 122 225

137 748 1,759 BE8 100

k] 368 & 1,126 2724 & 793§ 586
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THE SCHOOL BOARD OF MIAMI-DADE SOUNTY, FLORIDA
NON-MAJOR COMPOMNENT UNITS
COMBINING STATEMENTS OF NET ASSETS

JUNE 30, 2011

{amounts expressed in thousands)

ASBETS
Cument assets:
Cash and cash eguivalents
Total cash and investments

Accounts and interest receivable
Due from other governments or agencies
Other current assets

Total cumrent assets

Non-currgnt assets:
Capital assets:
Non-depreciable capital assets
Depreciabie capital assets
Less accumulated depreciation
Total net capital assets
Taotal nen-current assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Currert liabilities:
Accounts and contracts payable and accrued
expenditures
Accrued payroll and compensated absences
Due to other agencies
Uneamed revenue
Current portion of long-term liabiliies
Total current liabilities

Nan-current liahilities;
Non-current portion of long-term liabilities
Total non-current abilihes
Total frabiiities

NET ASSETS

Imvested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted for:

State required camycver programs

Capital projects

Other purposes
Unrestncted

Total net assets {deficif)

Mater
Performing
Gardens Arts & Mavericks High Mavericks High
Academy Entertainment of North of South

Middle Academy Miami-Dade Miami- Dade
143 & 2217 % 28 % 32

143 2217 28 32

- 4 42 80

45 - 79 74

188 2221 149 186

251 277 265 a7
(1a3) {128 (91) (93)

148 148 174 224

148 148 174 224

337 3 2368 3 323 % 410

5 % o 3 44 § 51

30 - - -

- - 17 53

35 30 83 104

- - 400 250

- - 400 250

35 30 463 354

148 148 174 224

28 - - -
126 2,181 (314} {168)

02 3§ 2338 % {1400 § 56
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{Continued)
Miami Miami Miami
Children's Miami Cammunity Community Oxford
Miami Arts Museum Community Charter Charter Academy of

Charter School  Charter School Charter Middle School High School Miami
3 avd § 1367 3 267 § 373 N 11
374 1,367 857 373 31 11
3 - 236 ar 253 -
- 5 113 22 12 -
B7 18 az 1 1 17
464 1418 1.348 433 297 28
- - 2124 38 - -
G628 355 85 106 -
{129} {150} {28 - {17} -
499 205 2,180 38 178 -
499 205 2.180 33 178 -
$ 963§ 1623 3§ 3528 _§ 471 478 28
3 412§ 4 3 84 % 243 271 -
- 58 117 44 18 -
87 - . - . -
499 63 181 287 289 -
349 - - - - -
349 - - - - -
848 63 181 287 289 -
63 205 2.180 38 179 -
£2 1,355 1,167 148 8 28
] 115 & 15680 8 3347 % 184 187 28
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THE SCHQOL BOARD OF MIAMI-DADE COLUNTY, FLORIDA
NON-MAJOR COMPONENT UNITS
COMEINING STATEMENTS OF NET ASSETS

JUNE 30, 2011

{amounts expressed in thousands)

ASBETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash eguivalents
Total cash and investments

Accounts and interest receivable
Dug from other governments or agencies
Other current assets

Total current assets

Nan-gument assets:
Capital assets:
Non-gdepreciabie capital assets
Depreciable capital assets
Less accumulated depreciation
Total net capital assets
Total non-curent assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts and contracts payable and accrued
experditures
Accrued payrell and compensated absences
Due to other agencies
Unearned revenue
Current portion of long-temmn liabilities
Tetal current fiabilities

Non-current liabilities:
Non-current portion of long-term liabilities
Total non-current hiabilities
Total liabilifies

NET ASSETS

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted for:

State reguired camyover programs

Capital projects

Other purposes
Unrestricted

Total net assets (deficrt)

Pinecrest Pinecrest
Pinecrest Academy Academy RFinecrest
Academy {Seuth Charter Middle Preparatory
{Morth Campus) Campus) Schaool Academy

6% 3 1,371 3 522 8 2,245

169 1,371 522 2,246

- - - 3

44 423 471 1

B4 84 71 147

277 1,878 1,064 2 587

639 1,414 3,801 666
(69) 701) {606} 435}

570 713 3.385 231

570 713 3,385 23

847 ¥ 2591 % 4449 3 2,818

T3 74 % 490 % -

104 208 185 216

41 171 - -

- 113 12 64

532 566 697 280

- 1,355

- - 1,365 -

532 566 2052 280

171 545 1,540 23

143 307 - 264

1 1.073 BS7 2,043

M5 & 2025 % 2,387 & 2538
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(Continued)
Pinecrest
Preparatory Renaissance Renaissance River Cities Sandor
Academy Elementary Middle Richard Allen Community Weiner
Charter Charter Charter Leadership Charter Bchool of
High School School School Academy Schools Opportunity

E] 266 % 1403 % 283 & 17 12 % 37
266 1,403 293 17 12 37

- 207 - 44 - 30

25 407 29 7 40 -

18 36 15 i 25 -

307 2053 337 70 7 87

951 14,150 299 a0 93 176
(167} (904) {207) (37) (25) {168)

784 13,248 92 53 56 10

784 13,246 gz 53 58 10

b 1.0581 $ 15,299 423 3 123 145 5 77
¥ 40 % 565 50 % 51 5 % 26
18 - - -

387 23 120 - - 81

- 245 28 - - -

75 - 55 - 37 -

520 833 253 g5 42 117

23 13.812 120 - 40 -

23 13,812 120 - 40 -

543 14.445 ara 55 82 117

258 (368) 7 53 (9} 10

250 1.220 63 15 T2 {50)

$ 548 854 5 % 68 63 % {40)
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THE SCHOOL BOARD OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA
NON-MAJOR COMPONENT UMNITS
COMBINING STATEMENTS OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2011
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Sandor SIATech
Weiner (Florida Scheaol
School of for Integrated Somerset
Opportunity, Academics & Somerset Academy
South Technologies) Academy {Silver Palms)
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents % 33 $ 56 ¥ 540 % 485
Total cash and investmerts 33 56 =40 885
Accounits and interest receivable 30 - - 10
Due from other govemments or agencies - 836 82 83
hher current assets 1 14 119 217
Total cumrent assets 64 a0s 721 1,295
Non-current assats:
Capital assets;
Non-depreciable capital assets - - - -
Depreciable capital assets 215 1,369 852 1,821
Less accumulated depraciation {88) (558} (560 (529}
Total net capital assets 127 781 292 1292
Total non-curent assets 127 781 292 1,292
Total assets % 181 3 1,687 $ 1,013 5 2587
LIABILITIES
Cumrent liabilities:
Aceourts and contracts payable and accrued
expenditres $ 24 % 102 3 - % 70
Accrued payroll and compensated absences - 26 185 333
Due to ather agencies 37 - - 11
Unearmed revenue - - 77 -
Current portion of long-term liabiiities - 45 - -
Total current liabilities 61 176 282 414
Non-current liabilities:
Mor—current portion of long-term liabilities - - -
Total norcurent liabilities - - - -
Total fiabiiities B1 176 262 414
MET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 127 78 354 1.323
Restricted for;
State required caryover programs - - - -
Capital projects - 530 - -
Other purposes - - 124 138
Unrestricted 3 200 273 712
Total net assets {deficit} F 130 3 1.511 b 751 $ 2173
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Somerset Somerset Somerset
Somerset Somerset Academy Academy Academy Somerset
Academy Academy Charter High Elernentary Middle Academy
Charter Charter School (Scuth School (South School (South Elementary

Middle Schoal High School Campus} Homestead) Homestead) {South Miami)
3 318 3 7 $ 143 $ 474 $ 181 T 348
318 717 149 474 181 48

134 500 a 12 10 300

27 g3 - 37 - 31

475 1,310 157 523 m 729

243 383 177 424 295 1,701
{173) [225) {61} {153 (80) {228)

i) 128 116 271 216 1,473

70 128 118 271 216 1,473

3 5489 & 1438 § 273 & 794 % 47 5 2,202
3 - % T8 - % - 3 - % -
41 80 - 79 23 130

_ . a0 - - i}

41 a7 50 78 23 130

- - - - - 936

- - - - - 936

41 a7 a0 79 23 1.066

180 565 115 271 216 853

- - 2 - - -

318 785 105 444 168 453

3 508 % 1,331 3 223 3 15 % 384 3 1,136
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THE SCHOOL BOARD OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA
NON-MAJOR COMPONENT UNITS
COMBINING STATEMENTS OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2011
(amounts expressed in thausands)

Somerset
Somerset Academy
Academy Middle School Somerset Somerset
Middle {Country Ants Grace
{South Miami) Palms} Academy Academy
ASSETS
Current assels:
Cash and cash equivalents 5 07 % 43 3 83 % 138
Total cash and investments 107 43 83 13B
Accounts and interest receivable - - - -
Due frem other governmenis or agencies 8 - 13 23
Other current assets 18 1 19 7
Total current assets 133 44 130 168
Non-current assets:
Capital assets.
Non-depreciable capital assefs - - - -
Depreciable capital assets 416 141 471 218
Less accumulated depreciation {81) (27} {146} (21}
Total net capitat assets 335 114 325 198
Total non-current assets 335 114 325 1898
Total assats 3 468 % 158 % 455 % 366
LIABILITIES
Current habiiities:
Accounts and contracts payablie and accruad
expenditures % 82 % 13 % - % 08
Accrued payroll and compensated absences 16 - 83 27
Due to other agencies - - - 3
Unearned revenve - - -
Current porfion of long-temm liabilitias - - - -
Total current hiabilities 68 13 83 138
MNon-current iabilities:
Non-current portion of long-term liabilities 146 - - 212
Total non-current liabilities 146 - - 212
Total liabilities 214 13 83 350
MNET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 188 114 325 -
Restricted for:
State required carryover programs - - - -
Capital projects - - - -
Other purposes - - - -
Unrestricted 65 I 47 16
Toltal net assets {deficit) k) 254 % 145 % 32 % 16
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Theodore R. & Foundation
South Florida Summetvilie The Charter Thelma A. For New
Autism Advantage School at Gibson Charter Education
Charter School Academy Waterstone Schoal Initiatives, Inc. Total
% 558 3 490 3 2747 ¥ 34 $ 800 5 61,592
558 490 2747 34 800 61,542
- 200 - - £34 7,358
105 - 1349 42 - 9871
7 69 164 46 - 3,741
£70 759 3,060 122 1,734 B2 562
- - - - - 3.388
155 212 828 468 - 103.494
{18 {70 {564} {133 {28.817)
137 142 245 335 78,065
137 142 245 335 - 78.065
$ B8OV 3 801 3 3,285 ¥ 457 % 1.734 ¥ 160,627
3 2 78 3 223 $ - 3 89 5,908
124 180 432 T4 - 7.815
- - - - - 3,318
- - - - 478 1,551
- - - - - 1,105
126 258 555 74 577 20,787
200 45 - 316 - 46,204
200 48 - 316 - 46 204
326 306 655 380 577 56,891
(53} 142 245 19 - 32271
- - - - - 530
- - - - 1,157 4653
544 453 2,395 48 - 55 182
3 481 585 g Z,640 $ 67 3 1157 $ 83636
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THE SCHOOL BOARD OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA
NON-MAJOR COMPONENT UNITS
COMBINING STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES
JUNE 30, 2011
{amounts expressed in thousands)

Academir Advanced
Charter Leaming Archimedean
School Charter Archimedean Middle
West School Academy Conservatory
Program Revenues
Charges for services:
Instructional & 12 % - 3 - -
Instructional support - 23 - -
Food services 13 21 142 -
Fupil transporiation services - - - -
Cperaticn and mainienance of plant - - . _
Community services - a4 338 -
Total charges for services 25 137 480 -
Operating grants and contributions:
Instructional 40 144 - -
Instnuctional support - 7 - -
SBchool administration 13 - - -
General administration 7 - - -
Food services - 184 . .
Facilities acquisition and construction 10 - - -
Pugil transportation - - - -
Operation and maintenance of plant - - - -
Community services - Z - -
Total operating grants and contrbutians i) 340 - -
Capital grants and contributions:
Instructional g4 - - -
School admintstration - - - -
General administration - - - -
Fupil transportation - - - -
Facilities acquisition and construction - - - -
Operation and maintenance of plant - - 208 118
Total capital grants and contributions 64 - 208 118
Total program revenues 159 477 [=1d:] 118
General Revenues
Grants and contributions not restricted to
specific programs 647 2.451 2675 1582
Investment eamings - - - -
Miscellaneous 2 - 325 285
Tutal general revenues 544 2,451 3,003 1877
Total revenuss 808 2928 3.681 2,085
Expenses
Instructional services 256 1.184 1,682 829
instructional suppon services 2 50 354 241
FPupil transportation services - - - -
Operation and maintenance of plant 57 143 73 433
School administration 107 257 - 5o
General administration 1685 73 313 347
Food services 22 221 304 -
Community services - 91 352 -
Facilities acquisition and consiruction 102 g - -
Imerest on lang-term debt - - - 3
Unallecated depreciation/amorization 13 - - -
Total expenses 724 2,725 3.806 2042
Change in nat assets 84 203 (115) 53
Met assets (deficit) - beginning of vear * - {363} 264 271
Net assets (deficit) - end of year £ 84 3 (1801 _§ 149 3 324

“ Balances as of July 1. 2010 reflect audit adusmmants andfar the incluston {exclusion) of certain charter schools acquirad

{olosady during fiscal vear 2010-11.
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Ben Gamla Coral Reef
Archimedean Balerc Charter Montessori
Upper Language School Bridgepoint Academy

Conservatory Academy {Miami Beach} Academy Charter Schoal

ki - g Lk 5 - 3 475
- - 12 -

- - 65 - 475

- 178 - 9 12

- 179 - g8 12

N 7 - - 208

75 - - - -

75 7 - - 208

75 186 65 99 685

BOB 1773 521 1,869 2,661

- . - - 1

472 63 190 14 24

1,278 1,836 711 1,883 2 688

1,352 2022 76 1.882 3,381

558 FE) 255 836 1,938

222 7 2 B 21

- 28 - . 33

223 120 265 2584 224

115 315 175 190 378

112 165 34 414 124

- 585 6 33 5

a 110 - - -

- 334 4 8 48

2 - - - 220

. 5 - 7 108

1,242 1,914 771 1877 3157

111 108 5 105 224

2489 (861 - [(3) = go6

$ 360 22 5 5 % 102 3 1220

143



THE SCHOOL BOARD OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA
NON-MAJOR COMPONENT UNITS

COMEINING STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES

JUNE 30, 2011

{amounts expressed in thousands)

Program Revenues
Charges for services:
Instructional
Instructional support
Food servicas
Pupil transpartation services
Cperation and maintenance of plant
Community sefvices
Total charges for services

Operating grants and contributions:
Instructional
Instructional support
School administration
{Zeneral administration
Food services
Facilities acquisition and construction
Fupil transportation
Operation and maintenance of plant
Community sernvices
Total operating grants and contributions

Capital grants and contributions:

Instructional

School administration

General administration

Pupil transportation

Facilities acouisition and construction

Operation and maintenance of plant
Total capital grants and contributions
Total program revenues

General Revenues
Grants and contributions not restricted to
specific programs
Investment earmings
Misceflaneous
Total general revenues

Total revenues

Expenses

Instructional services

instructional support senices

Pupil transportation services

Operation and maintenance of plant

Scheol adrimstration

General administration

Food services

Lommunity services

Facilities acquisition and construction

interest an long-term debt

Unaillocated depreciation/amortization
Total expenses

Change in net assets
Net assets (deficit) - beginning of year*
MNet aszets (deficit) - end of year

Doctors Daral Doral
Charter Academy Academy
School of Doral Charter Charter
Miami Shores Academy Middle School High School
3 - % 626 % - 202
56 - - -
18 127 23| 188
12 - - -
- - - 174
- 13 - 104
a6 lsls] 91 668
N 113 137 139
114 114 175 189
121 - - -
326 227 312 328
253 473 674 805
259 473 674 805
571 1,466 1,077 1,801
3,181 4 505 5.842 5,868
3 40 48 28
3,184 4 945 5,840 5896
3,855 5411 5,967 7,697
2,156 31589 2826 3.065
51 3 g 12
a3 - - _
414 1,411 2120 2,435
386 BO7 T2Z 974
661 277 355 322
132 252 183 312
124 15 - -
- 45 66 196
20 - - -
4.037 5770 £.278 7.316
(182) 541 589 K|
558 3,687 3,075 4,580
5 27 b 4328 ¥ 3,764 4 961

* Balances as of July 1, 2010 refiact audil adustments andior Ihe inclusion (exclusion) of cartain charter schools acquired

[elosed) durng fiscal year 2010-11.

150



Doral
Performing Arts Excelsior
& Downtown Excelsior Excelsior Language
Entertainment Miami Academy Charter Academy of
Academy Chanter School High School Academy Hialeah
$ - $ - - 13 12
15 11 4 4 55
- 117 - - 28
18 128 4 17 95
4 258 24 107 298
- - - B4 -
- 25 - - -
18 323 - 74 307
22 807 24 265 B35
57 255 - - 112
57 255 - - 112
a7 930 28 282 812
550 4240 184 1.511 3,805
- 1 - - 242
580 4,241 184 1.511 4,047
887 5,231 2 1,793 4.859
2148 2145 7o 724 2.160
- 219 Lo} 103 3]
18 - - 48 -
205 1278 48 124 1,473
138 373 54 143 AT3
37 806 g9 189 311
29 334 - 120 320
. 56 - - 23
- - 136 4
- - . 30 -
g47 5,212 200 1,620 4. 770
40 19 12 173 39
477 855 - 133 383
3 517 % gvs % 12 306 482
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THE SCHOOL BOARD (IF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA

Program Revenues
Charyes for services;
Instructional
instructional support
Food services
Pupil transportation services
Operation and maintenance of ptant
Community services
Total charges for services

Operating grants and centributions:
Instructional
Instructional support
School administration
General administration
Food services
Facilities acguisition and conslruction
Pupil transportation
Cperation and mainienance of plant
Community services
Total operating grants and contributions

Capital grants and contrbutions:

Instructional

Schoal administration

eneral administratian

Pupil transportation

Facilities acquisition and construction

Cperation and maintenance of plant
Total capital grants and contributions
Total prograrm revenues

GZeneral Revenues
Grants and contibutions not restricted to
specific programs
Invastment eamings
Miscellaneous
Total general revenues

Tatal revenues

Experses

Instructional services

Instructional support services

Fupil transpoartation services

Operation and maintenance of plant

School administration

General admintstration

Food zervices

Community services

Facilities acquisition and construction

Interest on long-term debt

Unallocated depreciationfamortization
Total axpenses

Changg in nel assets
Met assets (deficit) - beginning of year *
Net assets (deficit) - end of year

NON-MAJOR COMPONENT LUNITS
COMBINING STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES

JUNE 30, 2011
{amounts expressed in thousands)

Florida Integrated International

Florida International Science & Studies
International Elementary Aslan Culture Charter

Academy Academy Academy Middle Schoal

$ - % - % - % 12

- - - 12

242 3 113 72

- 24 - -

356 - - 3z

247 - - -

8455 55 113 104

180 227 - -

- - - 84

150 227 - 84

t.045 282 113 200

2,036 1,961 170 1,085

3 2 - -

2,044 1,963 170 1,095

3,088 2,245 283 1.285

1,107 g72 28 532

- - 2 2

198 163 - -

297 407 48 23

275 211 42 253

131 108 26 73

440 - - 50

271 - - -

302 170 - &

3,021 2031 206 1,147

BE 214 77 148

285 - 30 247

3 353 0§ 214 & W7 3 395

* Batances as of July 1, 2010 reflact audt adjustmentz andior the inciusion {axclusion) of cenain charter schools acquired

{clpsed} during fiscal year 2410-11.
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Schedule F-2
(Continued)

International Lawrence
Studies Keys Gate Keys Gate Acaderny Lawrence
GCharter Charter Charter High Elementary Academy
High School School School Charter Middle

3 - % - % 3 1 5 1
22 g5 26 . -

15 230 1 - -

37 315 a7 1 1

51 - 185 83 26

- 59 8 - -

81 305 165 50 1

112 364 356 163 1582

- - - - 59

285 645 11 - -

285 545 101 - 59

434 1,324 184 164 212

2,203 §.781 S89 1,108 781

13 18 - 2 1

2218 9,779 989 1,114 782
2,650 11,103 1,483 1,275 594

1.351 3,842 555 627 510

4 296 g3 51 43

- 284 58 38 |

426 2480 411 45 B0

470 1,038 111 37 B0

123 1,521 39 157 124

g7 376 193 86 73

18 145 1 8 -

27 - - 182 134

- - - 11 14

2,517 9.5982 1.461 1,222 1,054
133 1,121 22 53 {80}

6534 5174 - 212 282
767§ 6295 f 22 & 265 & 222
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THE SCHODL BOARD QF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA
NON-MAJOR COMPONENT UNITS
COMBINING STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES
JUNE 30, 2011
[amounts expressed in thousands)

Life Skilts Lincoln-Marti Lincoln-Marti
Lawrence Center Charter School  Charter School
Academy Miami-Dade [Hialeah {Intemational
Senior High County Campus) Campus)
Program Revenues
Charges for services:
instructional 3 1 5 - 5
Imstructional support - - - -
Food services - - - -
Pupil transportation services - - - -
Operation amd mairtenance of plant - - - -
Community services - - - -
Total charges for servicas 1 - - -
Cperating grants and contrbutions:
instructional G2 45 380 -
Instructional suppor - 4 - -
School administration - - - -
General administration - - - -
Food services 42 - - -
Facilities acquisition and construction - - - -
Fugil transportation - - - -
Operation and maintenance of plant - 1,056 153 -
Community services - - - -
Total operating grants and contributions 104 1,106 542 -
LCapital grants and contributiens:
Instructional - - -
Schaal administration - - - -
General administration - - -
Pupil transportation - - - -
Facilities acquisition and construction 43 - - -
Operation and maintenance of plant - - - -
Total capital grants and cantributions 43 - - -
Total program revernues 148 1.106 543 -
General Revenues
Girants and contributions not restricted to
specific programs 535 2,308 2435 983
Investment earnings - - - -
Miscellaneous 1 35 - £0
Tetal general revenues 536 2.342 2435 1,043
Total revenues 6584 3,445 24978 1,043
Expenses
Instructional services 284 801 1,136 3089
Instructional support senvices 22 355 38 3
Pupl transportation services 20 178 - -
Operation and maintenance of plant 60 224 1,250 324
Schoal administration 49 318 435 192
General administration 83 220 52 44
Food services 45 - - -
Community services 3 - -
Faciities acquisition and construction as 1,338 - -
Interest on long-term debt - - - -
Unallocated depreciation/amaortization 2 - - -
Total expenses 554 3,435 2812 872
Change in net asseis 30 14 66 171
MNet assets {defich} - beginning of year * &6 141 71 -
Net assets (deficit) - end of year 3 116 ] 165 _§ 137 g 171

" Balances as of duly 1, 2010 refiect audit adjustmants andior the inclusion (exclesion} of certain charer schools acqured
[closed) dunng fiscal year 2010-11
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Schedule F-2
{Continued)

Lincoln-Marti Mater Mater
Charter School Mater Academy Academy
(Little Havana Mater Academy Charter Charter
Campus) Academy {Miami Beach) Middle School High Schoal
% - % - % 214 % - % -
- 36 15 g1 1]
B 58 - - 270
- - 71 g6 -
- 24 300 157 339
285 280 5652 438
- 233 67 293 328
- 518 347 855 787
- 450 2 80z 1,233
- 450 2 802 1,233
- 1,062 B45 1,514 2,338
4,781 4,739 1,635 7047 8,810
- 6 50 9 54
4,781 4,745 1,685 7.556 §.864
4,761 5.807 2334 8470 11.203
1,884 2642 874 4385 5,708
a0 5 5 - 35
- - 554 16 -
1.509 fad 312 2,185 2 669
587 656 80 1,500 1,068
86 255 96 435 488
- 222 &0 362 agg
- - - g1 -
- 162 - 74 140
4118 4 587 1,981 9,052 10,497
645 1,220 343 418 706
561 7,743 - g,754 7,411
] 12068 _§ £.983 i 343 b 7172 ¥ 8117
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THE SCHOCL BOARD OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA
NON-MAJOR COMPONENT UNITS
COMBINING STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES
JUNE 30, 2011
{amounts expressed in thousands)

Mater Mater
Mater Mater Academy of Academy
Academy East Academy East International Middle Schoof
Charter School Charter High Studies of Int'l Studies
Program Revenues
Charges for services:
Instructionai 3 -5 126 % - % -
Instructional support - 2 - -
Food services 19 - 17 5
Pupil transportation services - - - -
Cperation and maintenance of plant - at - -
Community sarvices g7 48 102 -
Toetal charges for services 116 267 118 )
Operating grants and contributions;
Instructional 245 118 193 57
Instructional support - - - -
School administration - - - -
Gengral admimistration - - - -
Food services 242 a7 180 54
Facilities acquisition and construction - - - -
Pupil transportation - - - -
Operation and maintenance of plant - - - -
Community services - - - -
Totaf operating grants and contributions 488 215 373 111
Capital grants and centributions:
Instructional - - - -
School administration - - - )
General administration - - - -
Pupil transportation - - - -
Facilities acquisition and construction - - - -
Cperation and maintenance of plant 3158 148 192 51
Total capital grants and contrnibutions 315 148 192 51
Total program revenues 919 830 684 167
General Revenues
Grantg and contribufions not restricted to
specific programs 3,503 1,520 2,484 a62
Investment eamings - - - -
Miscellanecus 7 2 1 -
Total general revenues 3510 1,522 2 485 662
Total revenues 4424 2,152 3,168 829
BExpenses
Instructionzl services 1.801 1,065 1,253 361
Instructional support services 3 5 5] 1
Pupil transportation services 1 - - -
Operation and maintenanse of plant ans 54z 135 203
School administration 425 2587 406 136
General administration 205 100 578 49
Food services 225 B5 140 45
community services 117 . 74 -
Fagilities acquisition and construction 7 - 1 -
Interest on long-termn debt - - - -
Unaliocated depreciation/amonrization - - - -
Total expenses 3,792 2124 2,598 7495
Change in net assets €37 28 571 34
Net assets (deficit) - beginning of year * 1.572 482 180 196
Net assets (deficit) - end of year 5 2,208 g 480 $ 751 ] 230

* Balances as of July 1. 2010 reflect sudit adjiustments andfor the inclusion (exclusion) of certain charter schacls acquired
{closed) dunng fiscal year 2010-11.
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Schedule F-2
(Continued)

Mater Mater Mater
Academy Academy Academy Mater East Mater
High School Lakes Lakes Academy Gardens
of Int'| Studies Middle School High School Middle School Academy
5 - % - % - % - % 154
1 23 28 3 58
. - 144 . -
- - - 21 253
1 23 17¢ 24 465
289 157 g4 159 &0
23 122 138 129 169
312 279 222 318 245
36 329 460 172 311
38 329 480 172 3N
349 £31 852 514 1,025
359 3,008 3,210 1933 3.481
- - 5 1 3
353 3,006 3,515 1,934 3,484
708 3637 4.357 2,448 4,509
152 1,441 1.687 17 1,982
1 3 4 5] ¥
- - - - 1.284
a2 Frd 505 3G9 s0s
75 578 507 656 220
32 186 209 129 259
16 05 149 BG 245
- - - 15 -
- 5] 72 - 1
368 3.083 3133 2.178 4,488
340 544 1,234 270 21
28 082 1,490 523 865
§ 368§ 1126 _§ 2724 & 793 % B86
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THE SCHOGL BOARD OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA

NON-MAJOR COMPONENT UNITS
COMBINING STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES
JUNE 30, 2011
{amounts expressed in thousands)

Mafer
Mater Performing
Gardens Arts & Mavericks High  Mavericks High
Academy Entertainment of North of South
Middle Academy Miami-Dade Miami- Dade
Program Revenues
Charges for services.
Instructional g 137§ - 3 - % -
Instructional suppart - - - -
Food services 10 a8 - -
Pupil transportation services - - -
Cperation and maintenance of plant 229 - - -
Community senvices 82 - = -
Total charges for services 458 B - -
Operating grants and contributions;
Instructional 13 109 48 35
Instructional support - - - -
School administration - - - -
3eneral acmimstration - - - -
Food services 29 40 - -
Facilities acquisition and construction - - - -
Pupil transportation - - - -
Operation 2nd maintenance of plant - - 52 3
Community services - - - -
Tatal aperating grants and confributions 42 149 100 56
Capital grants and contributions:
instrustanal - - - -
School administraton - - - -
General administration - - - -
Fupil transportation - - - -
Facilities acquisition and construction - - - -
Operation and maintenance of plant 58 105 - -
Total capital grants and contrbutions 58 105 - -
Total program revenues 558 252 100 65
General Revenues
Grants and contributions not restricted 1o
spedific programs 591 1.080 2524 2,137
Investment eamings - - - -
Miscallaneous - 2 3 5
Total general revenues 531 1,082 2527 2.142
Total revenues 1,148 1,344 2627 2.208
Expenses
Instructional services 342 352 958 136
Instructional support services 1 - 212 B4
Pupil transportation services - - oY 94
Operation and maintenance of pltant 431 264 814 711
Schoof administration 183 181 237 252
Genaral administration 58 342 Ik 423
Food services 45 A7 -
Community services - - - -
Facilties acguisition and construction - - - -
interest on long-term debt - - 45 -
Unaliocated depreciation/amortization - - - -
Total expenses 1,067 913 2,440 2425
Change in net assets 88 431 187 {2171}
Net assets (deficit) - beginning of year * 214 1,908 (327} 273
Net assets (deficit) - end of year 3 302 % 2338 % (1407 _$ 56

* Balances as of July 1, 2010 reflect audit adjustrments andfor the inclusion {exclesion] of certan charter schools acquired

[clased) during fiscal year 2010-11.
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Schedule F-2

{Continued)
Miami Miami Miami
Children's Miami Community Community Cxford
Miami Arts Museum Community Charter Charter Academy of
Charter Schonl  Charter School Charter Middle Schaol High School Miami

3 - % - - 3 - % - -
- 11 7 - - 81
- - 20 _ - -
- 1 27 - - &1
8 36 240} 28 74 -
- - - - 14 -

- 32 21 - -
5 2] 481 88 88 -
- - 219 532 - -
- 86 - - 35
- 95 218 9 - 35
& 175 727 157 &8 116
3.944 1,647 2683 914 400 1,242
336 1 1.014 B - -
4 280 1,648 3,657 923 400 1,242
4288 1,823 4.424 1.080 488 1.358
2121 729 1,246 389 149 8ar
. - 58 25 38 25
172 - 164 - - 11
464 304 145 85 28 358
379 266 243 177 59 13
182 86 311 97 43 g
10 B0 315 - - 58
- - 26 17 - 24
829 13 224 190 25 -

- - 14 - -
8BS - 14 - 14 -
4.243 1,518 2770 950 256 1,235
45 ags 1,654 130 132 23
70 1.255 1,693 54 55 5
i 115 % 1,560 3347 % 184 3 187 28
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THE SCHOOL BOARD OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA

NON-MAJOR COMPONENT UNITS

COMBINING STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES

Program Revenues
Charges for services:
Instructional
Instructional support
Food services
Pupil transportation services
Operation and maintenance of plant
Community services
Total charges for services

Operating granis and contributions:
Instructional
Instructiona! support
School admintstration
General administration
Food services
Facilities acquisition and constnuction
Pupil transportation
Operation and maintenance of plant
Community services

Total operating grants and contrbutions

Capital grants and contributions:

Instructional

School administration

General administration

Pupil transportation

Facilities acquisition and construction

Qperation and maintenance of plant
Total capital grants and contributions
Total program revenues

General Revenues
Grants and contributions not restriced to
specific programs
Investment eamings
Mizcellaneous
Total general revenues

Total revenues

Expenses

instructional services

Instruciional support services

Pupil transportation services

Cperation and maintenance of plant

School administration

General administration

Food services

Community services

Facilities acquisition and construction

Interest on long-term debt

Unallocated depreciation/amortization
Total expanses

Change in net assets
Met assets (deficit) - beginning of year *
Met assets (deficit] - end of year

JUNE 30, 2011

{amounts expressed in thousands}

Pinecrest Pinecrest
Pinecrest Academy Academy Pinecrest
Academy {South Charter Middle Preparatory

{North Campus) Campus} School Academy
5 -8 - % - -
66 66 52 115
123 483 g2 409
189 558 144 524
344 198 113 95
86 145 118 113
430 344 232 208
30 473 54 386
30 473 541 386
549 1376 817 1,118
2213 4752 4720 4,166
- 3 3 3
2,213 4.755 4,723 4,169
2862 5131 5 640 5287
1,163 2654 2,355 277
3 ] 2 -
525 1,351 828 1,032
467 799 8§75 505
114 279 288 222
153 171 135 174
128 235 134 350
4 13 183 1
2.547 5537 4,808 4,561
315 584 732 726
- 1431 1.665 1,812
3 315 5 2025 $ 2397 2538

* Balances as of July £, 2010 reflect audit adjustments andfor the inclusion (exclusion) of certain charer schools acquired

{cinsed) dunng fiscal year 2010-11.
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Schedule F-2

{Continued)
Pingcrest
Preparatory Renaissance Renaissance River Cikies Sandor
Academy Elementary Middle Richard Alien Community Weiner
Charter Charter Charter Leadership Charter School of
High School Schaol School Academy Schools Opportimity

- % - % - % - - -

10 T4 29 9 - -

- - - 44 -
- 425 B4 - -

10 504 g3 53 - -

23 228 - 43 - 208

- 2% 10 - - -

23 66 44 13 - -

- - 39 - 14

45 323 54 95 - 222

- - - 2 . -

L2 290 131 - - -

98 280 131 2 - -

154 1117 278 150 - 222

a70 4 796 1,681 613 455 531

- 22 - - 16 3

970 4818 1.681 £13 472 534

1.124 5935 1,959 763 472 756

387 2,195 866 256 245 485

1 17 5 45 3 -

- 118 - 3z - 76

170 1,108 1,007 82 91 =1

179 Tr? 81 225 46 72

G4 1.005 38 12 33 g2

15 193 42 48 25 .

- 279 3B - - -

23 - - - - -

- 717 - - 3 -

- - - 18 2] -

839 6,409 2,223 73 455 755

285 {474) (264) 24 17 1
263 1,328 320 a4 46 1413
548 3 B854 ¥ 56 3 B8 83 {40}
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THE SCHOOL BOARD OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA
NGN-MAJOR COMPONENT UNITS
COMBINING STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES
JUNE 30, 2011
{amounts expressed in thousands)

Sandar SiATech
Weiner {Florida School
School of for Integrated Somerset
Cpportunity, Academics & Somerset Academy
South Technologies) Academy {Silver Palms)
Program Revenues
Charges for servicas:
Ingtructional L3 - § - % - % 4
Instructional suppaort - - - -
Food services - - 51 38
Pupil transportation services - - - -
Operation and maintenance of plant - - - -
Community services - - 135 112
Total charges for services - - 1868 152
Cperating grants and contribuiions:
Instructional 200 - 76 275
Instructional support - - - )
School administration - - - -
General administration - - - -
Food services - - 101 297
Faciiities acquisition and construction - - - -
Pupil transportaton - - - -
Operation and maintenance of plant 10 - - -
Community services - - - -
Total operating grants and contributicns 210 - 177 572
Capital grants and contributions;
Ingtructional - - - -
School administration - - - -
General administration - - - -
Pupil transpartation - - - -
Faciiities acquisition and construction - 269 - -
Operation and maintenance of plant - - 285 BG5S
Total capital grants and coniributions - 2648 206 565
Total program revenues 210 269 [s]%}] 1,389
General Revenues
Grants and contributions not restnicted to
specific programs 587 2758 3.329 5,809
Investment eamings - - - -
Miscellaneous 3 2 2 )
Total general revenues 600 2,760 3.3 5 B17
Total revenues 810 3,029 3,990 7,206
Expensas
Instructianal services 485 1.713 1,898 3,685
Instructional support services - g2 8 17
Pupil transportation services 51 - - -
Operation and maintenance of plant &80 B5 1,056 1,748
Schaool administration 78 624 477 760
General administration 66 189 187 340
Food services - - 177 244
Community services - - 141 110
Facilities acquisition and construction - 52 15 46
Interest on long-term debt . - - -
Unallocated depreciation/amortizaiion - 121 - -
Total expenses 740 2,846 3,959 6 960
Change in net assets 70 183 K3 248
Mel assets (deficit) - beginning of year * &0 1.328 720 1,927
Net asseats (deficit) - end of year 3 130 5 1511 & 751 E 2173

* Balances a8 of July 1. 2040 reflect audit adjustments andlor the inclusion {exclusion) of ceram ¢hagter schools acquired
[closed) dunng fiscal year 2010-11

162



Schedule F-2
{Continued)

Somerset Somerset Somerset
Somerset Somerset Academy Academy Academy Somerset
Academy Academy Charter High Elementary Middie Academy
Charter Charter School {South School (South School {South Elementary
Middle School High School Campus) Homestead) Homestead) {South Miami)
$ - % 60 % - % - 8 - 5 698
24 17 - 21 13 73
- 25 - - - 38
- 1 - 64 - 337
24 103 85 13 1,153
24 o7 34 - 17 217
- - - 138 - -
42 80 - 79 26 23
B6 1B7 34 217 43 240
. - 10 - . _
78 183 - 123 47 225
78 183 10 123 47 225
168 473 44 425 103 1.618
1,023 1,757 105 1,891 615 2720
- - 38 - - 1
1,623 1.757 143 1.891 B15 2.721
1181 2,230 187 2318 718 4,338
494 905 103 1,005 314 1,948
2 3 - 5 3 5
3N 458 28 415 154 554
202 27 32 385 111 456
&8 110 22 111 47 153
59 73 - 117 50 100
- - - 67 - 245
10 3 - 7 1 36
1,146 1,823 185 2122 580 3.588
45 407 2 194 38 751
453 44 221 52t 346 385
% 508 3 1.351 % 223 3 715 % 384 % 1.136
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THE SCHOOQL BOARD OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA
NON-MAJOR COMPONENT UNITS
COMBINING STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES
JUNE 30, 2011
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Samerset
Somerset Academy
Academy Middle School Somerset somerset
Middle (Country Arts Grace
{South Miami) Palms) Academy Academy
Program Revenues
Charges for services:
instruictional % - 3 -k 42 % 365
nstructional support - - - -
Food services 14 - 15 28
Fupil transportaticn services - - " -
Operation and maintenance of plant - - - -
Community services - - 74 40
Total charges for services 14 - 142 433

Operating grants and contrbutions:
Instructional 10 a1 21 a2
Instructional support - - - _
Schoal adminigtration - - - -
{Zeneral administration - - - -
Food services 4 - 41 3
Facilities acquisition and construction - - - -
Pupil transportation - - - -
Cperation and maintenance of plant - - - -
Community senvices - - - -

Total operating grants and coninibuiions 14 41 72 35

Capital grants and contributions:
Instructional - - - -
School administration - - - -
General administration - - - -
Pupil transportation - - . -
Facilifies acquizition and construction - - - -

Operation and maintenance of plant 23 8 B3 22
Total capital grants and contributions 33 5 B3 22
Total program revenues &1 46 297 480

General Revenues
Grants and contributions not restricted to

specific programs 423 56 1,461 3B2
Investment eamings - - - -
Miscellaneous - - 2z P
Total general revenues 423 56 1,463 384
Total revenues 484 102 1,760 874
Expenses

Instructional services 221 45 892 S00
Ingtructional support services 4 - 8 3
Pupil transportation services - - - -
Opetation and maintenance of plant 93 17 357 160
School adminmstration 72 22 278 a7
General administration 30 11 86 31
Food services 18 - T 28
Community services - - £1 29
Facilities acquisition and construction 3 - 5 10

Interest on long-term debt - - - -
Linallocated depreciatonfamortization - -

Total expenses 441 a5 1,756 B58
Change in net assets 43 6 4 18
Met assets (deficit) - beginning of year * 211 139 6B -
Net assets (deficit) - end of year 5 254 % 145§ 72§ 15

* Balances as af July 1, 2010 reflect audit adjustments andfer the inclusion {exclusion) of certain chaner schools acquired
[closad) during fiscal year 2010-11.
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Schedule F-2

{Concluded)
Theodore R. & Foundation
South Florida Summerville The Charter Thelma A. For New
Autism Advantage School at Gibson Charter Educatian

Charter School Academy Waterstone School Initiatives, Inc. Total
3 - - - % - % - 3208
- - - - - BD
14 40 138 12 2.225
- - - - - E7
- - - - - 1,030
- 56 - 35 - 4190
14 95 138 47 - 10,800
185 116 238 115 - 9,603
8 - - - 1.357 1,812
- - - - - 37
14 - - - - 150
- 186 778 90 - 7,401
- - - - - 10
- - - - - 1.355
9 - - - 377
207 311 1.016 205 1,357 20,545
- - - - - 64
- - - - - 2
- 2268 - - - 1.527
- - - & - 12,761
- 226 - B - 14 354
221 £33 1,154 258 1.357 45,659
1,905 3,581 7,801 1,676 236 1889715
- - - - 3 4
343 &9 345 493 14 4 767
2,248 3,650 8,145 2,163 253 204 486
24689 4283 9.300 2427 1.610 250,185
1.310 1835 3,818 1,039 - 105,833
19 40 44 1 1,014 4 878
19 132 251 - - 4,266
30 302 599 492 45 6486
252 250 641 538 - 27.280
2682 448 8541 154 126 17,980
12 271 1,077 146 - 9873
93 58 109 A5 - 3758
66 698 1,347 5 - 7,455
- 4 - - - 1.008
14 23 100 - - 609
2,077 4,104 8,927 2421 1,140 230,287
392 179 373 B 470 18,8498
8 415 2,267 81 GB87 13,738
b 481 % 545 2840 % T 1,157 83,638
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Statistical Section

The Statistical Section presents detailed information as a context for understanding what
the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary
says about the District’s overall financial health. Contents included are as follows:

Financial Trends - These schedules contain trend information to help the reader
understand how the District’s financial performance and financial condition have
changed over time.

Revenue Capacity - These schedules contain information to help the reader assess
the factors affecting the District’s ability to generate a significant revenue source and
property taxes.

Debt Capacity - These schedules present information to help the reader assess the
District’s current debt burden and the District’s ability to issue additional debt.

Demographic and Economic Information - These schedules offer demographic and
economic indicators to help the reader understand the socioeconomic environment
within which the District operates.

Operation Information - These schedules contain information about the District’'s
operations and resources to help the reader understand how the District’s financial
information relates to the services it provides and the activities it performs.
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THE SCHOQOL BOARD OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA
NET ASSETS BY COMPONENT + PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
Last Ten Fiscal Years
famounts expressed in millions)

{Unaudited)}
2002 2003 2004 2005 2006

Primary Government;
Governmental activities:

Invested in capital assets,

net of related debt $ 9282 $10344 $1137.3  § 12006 § 14297

Restricted 456.6 4238 4812 5047 457.0

Unrestricted (320.00 {269.4) {199.5) {195.2) {166.3)
Total primary government
net assets $ 10848 $1.188.8 $ 1.420.0 51,6001 $ 17204

SOURCE: The School Board of Miami-Dade County - Cfice of the Controller
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TABLE 1

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
& 1,713.0 $1,767.6 $ 17640 $ 18301 3 16706
3423 356.2 242.0 109.0 180.7
(263.5) _ {366.6) (287.5) (2339} (168.3]
$ 17823 $1,757.2 $ 17185 $ 1.705.2 3 1.683.0
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THE SCHOCL BOARD OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS - PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
tast Ten Fiscal Years
{amounts gxpressed in thousands}

{Unaudited}
2002 2003 2004 2005
Primary Governmerni:
Govornmenlal activities:
Program Revenoas
Charges for services
Instruchon 3 26,480 5 26,573 5 27.878 5 24,249
Fupil ranspaortation services 125 176 112 a4
oo senvices a2,204 Jad B2T 34,985 35057
Operabing grants and contributions
Pupil transportation serices 28199 28,276 27,419 28,428
Cperation and maintenance of plant . - - -
Food services 10,268 24,900 o723 100,45%
Capital granis and contributians
Operation and maintenance of plant 18,743 11,473 13,331 55, 006
Facillies acqursition and constructhion Q,7495 21095 67 a76 106,471
Interesi en leng-term debt 13,044 13.203 13.343 13.631
Tatal primary government program revenues 5 215,979 5 211,632 b 312 413 § 263,415
Expenzes
Governmental activities
Iastructional services 501,500,562 F 1.8553.775 $ 0 hB03331 5 1.738.016
Instructional suppor services 258,252 264,289 284,701 297 651
Pupil tranzportation services 81 580 784538 79411 B5.7BT
Operatron and mamienace of plant R1HERS 5151 203,063 AT, TM 352 244
Food sarvices 122644 125,123 152171 45,614
Sohool administratan 147 .G72 147,001 “G0,519 163,407
General administration 15,458 WA 122 108,215 117 G630
(her 26,921 34,497 AT073 39,6565
Facililies A-guisitron and Construzlion a8 681 98,262 54,574 Q1,264
Imeresi on leng-term debt B2.0OEA 74 684 T4 648 74,081
Unallocated Depreciation/Amortization 51,403 64,813 55,458 70279
Ictal primary governmen! a¥penses 3 2825609 § 2792168 5 2HLBRAD 3 3,173,543
Net (ExpenselR evenue-Primary Governmant § 12605620 § {2 587.555) S {ERM,2dd § (2,804,128
Goneral Revenues and Other Changes in Nat Asseots
Taxes
Proparty Taxes, Levied for Operational Purpozas % GBd TET i 0,260 5 Ta2 5T % aE317e
Property 1axes. Levied for Debt Sarvice A.811 BR.GET 733,20z 83102
Property Taxes. Lavied for Capital Propacts 2RK1.027 223,867 244,721 278 526
Grants and Contibutions Not Resticted o Specific Programs 1,548,050 1,588.059 1,631,665 1,711,387
Investment earnings 29,875 20,732 156,141 29,184
Miscelanaous 52,014 58,110 26.58¢ 9,356
Tatal prireary government general revenues § 2608,544 5 259%0,455 3 2854443 ¥ 2,975.231
Changs in Net Assats 5 3514 3 140,398 ] 240,138 5 171,103

SOURCE: The School Board of Mam-Dade County - Office of the Cantralier
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TABLE 2

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
& 28,102 g 28884 § 28,069 s 27,533 5 28,8426 29,438
ag a2 140 £40 1.087 76{
37.318 40,785 38,266 35,163 31,902 20,647
29.052 24 844 29,465 25,835 -
20,3580 181 -
94,393 96,785 86,810 100273 111,840 12(.257
26,734 41 443 54,032 38,586 19,601 28,520
54,264 53 401 88,718 11,1214 7 403 #,860
43,838 12,561 12,687 13,328 13,471 13,517
5 213680 $ 303,566 % 329085 § 253,580 5 215,230 231,003
5 1,830048 & 2.001.207 % 2,081.140 $ 1834225 $ 1,933,411 2.016,750
338 967 361.063 72134 308,809 314,984 287 551
BE.735 097 194 84,463 BE6.033 14,474 83,804
A8 B7H 423,920 436,086 394,304 372,035 351,511
137.730 135,818 146,004 133,850 134,808 140,639
168,340 175 404 191,333 174,578 166,114 165 566
37,063 106 673 109,640 BE 407 82,454 81,435
40,957 42 124 41,957 34,969 32,843 33.249
114,207 131,361 218,473 180,416 54,105 1013,561
24 056 107 955 17,210 149,822 148,251 144,112
77.215 A6 541 105,471 134,490 132 8/9 152 774
§  3.384,892 $ 3667554 5 3,912,005 § 3613603 g 3,487 465 3,561,047
g (3.071.212) $ {3363 958) _§ {3,582 920} § {3.366,023) (3,272,235} (3,320 044)
§ 990850 $ 1,156,499 % 1,303.337 §  1.410,487 % 1,339,331 1222023
86 264 79,251 87786 86,703 61,145 72,052
335,268 407 AS6 464 681 423454 266,078 288,595
1,699 652 1 695,306 1.614 868 1,352 520 1.466,475 1,677,325
52 961 71776 56,622 25,561 6,754 5,145
17 470 21.412 20,518 47 658 19,085 41 673
% 2,191,405 £ 3426700 % 3847812 £ 3,328,363 b 3,258 518 3 307,513
5 120,283 5 2,712 3 £35.108) 5 {38.660) 5 {13,317} [22,231)
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THE SCHOOL BOARD OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA,
FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
Last Ten Fiscal Years
{amounts expressed in thousands}

{Unaudite)
Pre-GASB 54 2002 2003 2004 2005
General Fund:
Reserved § 67,754 3 73,105 3 830828 $ 88,821
Unreserved:
Designated for estimated
rebudgets and obligations 44 762 47,004 650,858 72,6898
Undesignated 15,118 13,692 62,417 52,548
Tatal general fund $ 127,634 $ 133.801 5 204,133 § 222,067
Ail other governmental funds:
Reserved % 218157 $ 184,669 $ 278236 $ 390538
Unreserved, reported in;
Designated for capital projects 422,644 646.649 578,106 507 434
Undesignated
Special reverue funds 7,325 12,448 8,916 2,013
Capital projects funds {21,5630] 14,317 8.930 (34,671}
Total all other governmental funds F 626,596 % 858,083 $ B73.188 § 865314

NOTE: Three years of data available for GASB 54 compliance.

SOURGE: The Schoo! Board of Miami-Dade Caunty - Office of the Controller
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2006 2007 2008
$ B5B24 § 53,500 5 24 451
401,746 43,267 2,243
68,653 40.614 5,838
$ 195023 $ 137,381 [ 32 630
§ 796,322 $ 978174 % 912315
313412 138.767 123,977
{1,681) {2,374) [2.130)
{68.904) (148.413) {128,470)
$1,038,149 § 966.154 £ 905692

Post-GASB 54

General Fund:
MNonspendable:
Restricted:
Assigred:
Unassigned:
Total general fund

All other governmental funds-
Nonspendable:
Restricted:
Assigned;
Unassigned:

Total all other governmental funds

2009 2010 2011

- 205 8,580
2,908 4,522 8,404
20,179 43,431 33815
58.138 83,574 170,908
81223 137,732 221,712
25,124 22,564 24.024
666,928 551.267 358,679
11,957 8,686 8,750

(50.548) - -
653.171 582,517 391,453

T3

TABLE 3



THE SCHOOL BOARD OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES-GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
AND DEBT SERVICE RATIO
Last Ten Fiscal Years
{amounts expressed in thousands}
{Unaudited)

2002 2003 2004 2005
REVENUES:
Lacal sources.
Ad walorem taxes % 961,501 S 1,080,705 § 1,129.023 1,230,305
Food sarvices sales 32 294 34 B2T 34,088 35,0457
Inlerast income and other 20,474 0,071 16 564 79,519
MNel increase fdecrease) in fair
value of invesiments - - (1,715} [336)
Local grants and olher B7 2086 B4,74% 103175 135.561
Tatal lpcal sources 1,114,965 1,170,145 1,282 335 1,431 (&
State sources:
Flarida education finance
pragram 1,087 551 1.129,605 1,122,153 1,045,087
Public education capital outlay 18,483 11,980 60357 55,096
Food services 2,807 2,Mm9 2 BYE 2780
State grants and cther 301175 259305 327.871 438 798
Total skate sources 1,420,116 1,388,800 1,513,258 1.542.761
Federal sources;
Fedaral grants and other 205,563 253,508 20¥.373 319,326
Food services 23,451 A7 105 B6,TRE B0, 883
Total federal sources 2085.014 Ho.Toy 383,661 408,200
Total revenues F 2820095 2,809 652 S 3,1/9.255 5 3.3B2.4978
FXPEMGITURES:
instruclional services § 1516386 § 1546, 728 51,579,107 5 1,700,122
|nstiuctionat support services 244 3RS 253,048 276043 284 (079
Fupil rransporation services 80,728 TRATZ 73,3h0 84 955
Operation and maimenange of plam 299 229 293 180 323,847 345533
School adminstration 145,542 147 183 154, 72% 164,225
General administation 100,136 102,057 a0 ury t14.920
Food services 120,828 123,704 130,872 147 133
Capital outlay 303,739 271,590 282.002 395,780
Uebt servico
Frincipal 78958 B3.533 274,928 126,455
Inerest 82,327 THLTA 2384 B0,330
Dues and faes 552 6,030 1,426 19033
Mher 37,340 24 230 36,6809 38,781
Total expendituras § 3010151 5 3013368 % 3,320,455 5 2473 561
Excess of revenues over {uhder) expenditures §  (190.058) (108, 76) 5141 701y S (93.585)
Ctheer financing sources {uses)
Fransfers in 176,983 216,056 389943 238161
Transfers out {178,083 [216,096) {359,043 (233,181)
Proceeads from issuance of debl 45,166 574 214 224 100 183,533
Fremm on issuance of debt - - - & 606
Fremium on refunded bond escrow agent - (244 524 - {90,590}
Proceeds from sate of capital assets &10 1.679 832 oLl
Proceeds from capital leases 1,678 1.940 1,706 1,830
Procegds from forward purchase agreement - - - -
ther - - - -
Talal other financing sources fuses) 5 47 355 $ 3337309 $ 226638 3 103,645
Net change tn fund balances § (142701 $ 224603 3  B5437 3 10,060
Debt service as a prercenlage of
npncapikal expendilures 5.8% 6.0% 11 5% 6.5%

SOURCE: The Schoot Board of Mami-Dade County - Sice of the Controller
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TABLE 4

2006 2007 2008 200 2010 2011
1,414,057 § 1,639,072 § 1.848,733 $ 1.888,838 5 1,770.558 $ 1586242
37.318 40,285 38,366 36.164 31,902 70,647
53,821 69,371 65,641 30.251 4,443 4.490
(860} 2,405 ug2 (351 {120 25
100,773 56.899 83.430 94 635 83,526 86.541
1.605.109 1,638,132 2,027,152 2,049,537 1,890,307 1,706.054
934,884 832,521 690,734 240,202 451,375 603,780
26,734 41,443 40,825 25.049 5,178 14,895
2,781 2.723 2,630 2,418 2,249 2,136
512,963 537 161 U917 613,238 528,514 537,531
1,477,362 1,463,848 1.431.106 1.080,905 987,318 1.158.342
341.552 353,155 346.045 363,618 521,840 572,850
86,108 B7.367 87,357 91,036 104,107 110,212
427 660 440522 434,302 455,554 625,947 B63,062
3.510.131 $ 3,742.502 5 3,802,560 $ 3,585,996 $ 2,503,570 § 3,548.358
1,797,236 % 1.961.556 5 2.054,535 $ 1.813,023 § 1,926,447 $ 2.005.289
318,918 342,653 356,938 01,314 307,703 282,397
£5,502 91,462 92.800 26,022 54,186 53,906
401,684 417,112 430515 391,532 70,137 350.357
165,264 175,793 168,959 174,184 164,967 165,147
103.215 111,470 115,339 95,427 97,421 86.156
139.40% 136,856 147,588 135.864 138,740 142,045
663,538 1,110.737 967.355 618,251 105,287 231,541
104,445 282 434 130,634 272,654 144,900 152.360
82.037 109,169 127,725 145 064 162,567 135.572
4,773 8.285 9,299 5.181 3.899 4,575
30,963 41,473 41.224 34,701 32.511 32,363
2.807,145 § 4,768,000 3 4.666.021 § 4176217 § 3,726,785 5 5.680.711
{307,014} $(1,046,468) $ {773.461) $ (590.221) $ (223.215] § [132.353)
245,153 549922 568,455 680,332 534.579 366,201
[245,153) {549,922) {568.455) {BA0 332} (534,579) {366.201)
152,895 688,209 1,058,545 367,825 231,345 303.275
16,748 33.823 32,181 - 203 8,536
- {11,300) [246,279) (1,926) (27,380 (284,294}
353 1,234 350 345 257 3,650
63,808 169,008 40 586 77,499 507 102
- - (278,415) (57.440) {1.862) -
543,805 $_ 880,071 608,248 §  386.293 3 203.070 § 31268
146,791 S {165,527} $ (185.213) $ ({203,028) §  {20,145) 5 (101,084)
5.7% 10.4% B.8% 11.4% B.6% 8 2%
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THE SCHOQOL BOARD OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA TABLE &
ASSESSED VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY
Last Ten Fiscal Years
{amounts expressed in thousands)
(Unavudited)
Total Total
Assessed Value Net Assessed Direct
Fiscal Residential Non-Residential Personal Less: Taxable Tax
Year Property Property Property Exemptions Value Rate”
2002 87 248074 30,978 G86 12.474 6821 25.956 951 104,744 430 9376
2003 98 268 789 30,744 521 13,976,717 28,044 422 114,845 605 9.252
2004 112.025 262 31,687 262 14,006 959 30,523,350 127,186,133 2100
2005 131,935,540 31,532 460 T4 066 893 32544 925 144,990,958 B.687
2006 134,652,718 62,168 087 15,295,926 38,328,690 173,758,042 8.438
2007 134,007 433 102, 574,422 14,957 660 42 709,825 208,823 590 8,908
2008 158 899,568 113322122 15,318,056 42,266,762 241 272 877 7.943
2009 166,864,820 115,518,645 15.883.145 48,207 243 250,159 367 7.797
2010 148 033 436 101,993 192 15512732 41.438,793 224 100,566 7.985
2011 130.122,357  * 1006220587 15,043,385 =~ 42588075 ™ 204199734 = 2249

* Total Destrict Direct Overlapping Rates found on Table 7.

™" Prelimingry assessed value provided by Miami-Dade County Property Appraiser is

subjert to changes pending final Value Adjustment Board hearings,

NOTE: Projected assessed valuation as of lanuary 1 reflacts 100% of actual value.

SQURCE: Miami-Dade County Property Appraiser and Finance Department.
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Taxpayer

Flurida Power & Light

Bellsouth Telecommunications, Inc.

Turnberry Associates

SDG Dadeland Associates

The Graham Corporation

SRI Miami Venture

Falls Shopping Center Associates
Bakery Associates

Pro Player Stadium Corporation
5.F. Whitman/Bal Harbouwr Shops
COMCAST

WRC Properiics

Avantura dall Yenture

200 35 Biscayne TIC L LLC

2201 Collins Fee LLC

Fountainbleau Florida Hotel LLC

THE SCHOOGL BOARD CF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA TABLE G
PRINCIFAL PROPERTY TAX PAYERS
Last Year and Ten Years Ago
famounts expressed in thousands)
(Unaudited)
2001 2011
Percentage Percentage
2001 of Total 2011 of Total
Taxable Taxable Taxable Taxable
Assessed Assessed Assessed Assessed
Value” Rank Vaiue* Value Rank Value
% 1.696.006 1 162 % $ 3,059,886 1 1.50 %
1,131,681 Z2 1.08 542 032 4 027
306,767 3 .29 - -
220,000 4 021 297 300 6 015
211,820 5 020 288,155 8 0.14
178.000 B 07 - -
132,663 7 013 - -
120.000 ] .11 - -
107,700 9 010 - -
106,400 10 0.10 - .
- - 1,334,175 2 .65
- 416,363 ) 0.20
- - 741,600 3 039
- - 270,000 10 013
- 291,828 7 0.14
- - 273,680 a9 013
$ 4211037 4.01 % 5 V.566,018 3.70 %

Total

* Awvailable data as of October 2001,

NOTES: See Table & for Total Taxable Value for Miami-Dade County.
Fy 2001-2002 was $104,.724.420. FyY 2010-11 was $204,19%9.734.

SOURCE: Miami-Dade County Finance Department, Tax Coltector's Division
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THE SCHOOL BOARD OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLLORIDA
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING PROPERTY TAX RATES

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Unaudited}

The School Board of Miami-Dade County

General Fund
Deht Service Funds
Capttal Project Funds
Total District Direct Tax Rates

Overlapping Tax Rates
Aventura

Bal Harbour

Bay Harhor Isfand
Biscayne Park

Coral Gables

Cutler Bay (4}

Doral {3)

Dovntown Devalopment Authority
El Portal

Flarida City

SGolden Beach
Hialeah

Hialeah Gardens
Homestead

Indian Creek

Islandia

Key Biscayne

Medley

Miami

Miami Beach
WB-Mormandy Shores
Miami Gardens {2}
Miami Lakes

Miami Shores

Miami Spiings

Morth Bay Village
Morth Miami

Morth Miami Beach
Opa Locka

Palmetto Bay (1)
Pinecrast

South Mami

Sunny Isles Beach
Surfside

Sweetwater

Virginia Gardens
West Miami
Unincorporated County

NOTE:

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
5525 6.482 6.418 5090 5847
0.848 0.770 0.682 0.597 0.491
2.000 2.000 2.080 2.000 2.000
9.376 8.252 9.100 8887 8.438
2.227 2227 2227 2.227 2227
3.230 2860 2.802 2.902 2.902
5.000 5.000 5.000 5.000 4.900
8.700 g.200 7.900 7.800 8.200
5.841 5,841 5.990 5.990 6.150
- - - - 2.447
- - - 2.447 2.447
8.700 8.700 8.700 8.700 5.700
8.800 £.900 §.9500 5.900 8.900
8.980 §.580 8.520 £.590 8,590
7 528 7.528 7.528 7100 §.800
6.480 5.120 B.120 £6.120 6120
8.500 8.500 8.250 7.750 B.750
9.661 10700 10.575 10.450 10.200
10.000 10.000 9821 9482 9123
3606 3.606 3606 3.608 3806
7923 7.800 7.450 7.250 7.150
10.713 10568 10.343 0,166 9765
©.286 9.516 9.206 8,298 8.887
- - - 3648 3638
3.057 3.057 2.968 2412 2825
8515 8.265 8265 §.375 9180
8.412 8744 B.687 3.6 B.242
5.281 5212 6.212 6.212 6212
8.823 3.771 8.758 8732 5893
9,290 8.095 5.856 B.7E1 §.608
8.800 9800 8.800 9.800 9.800
- - 2.447 2.447 2.447
2100 2.400 2.400 2.400 2.400
§.373 6.373 7.373 7.213 6.631
2.650 3.350 3,350 3350 2950
5.603 2.603 5.603 5.603 5.803
3.449 3.449 3.949 3.948 3.949
4. 843 4.843 4.843 4. 843 4.750
£.485 §.485 £.495 B.495 8,495
2.447 2.447 2.447 2.447 2.447

Milfage rate represents $1.000 of taxable assessed valuation.
(1) Palmette Bay was incorporated as a municipalily on September 10, 2002,
therefore ne millage rates are reflected through fiscal year 2003,

{2) Miami Gardens was incorporated as a municipality an May 13, 2003,

therefore no millage rates are reflected through fiscal year 2004,

SQURCE: The School Board of Miami-Dade Counky, Miami-Dade Counly Finance Department,

Tax Collector's Division
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TABLEY

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011*
5681 8.570 5.783 5908 314
C.414 0378 0.264 Q297 0.385
2.000 2.000 1.750 1.700 1.580
8105 7.548 7787 7.985 8.249
2.227 1.7268 1.726 1726 1726
2.802 2320 2527 2.557 2.447
4.750 3626 4.412 5297 5247
9200 8340 8.8%0 8.993 5.993
G150 5.250 6.243 G 072 5.869
2.447 2.447 3.0 2,589 2.803
2447 2.447 2.657 2447 2438

- 0.500 0.500 0.500 ER=Ta
8700 7.031 7.844 7.8900 8300
2800 77580 7.750 7.780 7740
8,500 g 80l g 089 7.014 7.643
6.800 g 540 5 540 6 540 & 540
5.120 4.808 4800 5.460 5588
5.250 5.15%9 §.500 6.292 6.292
8700 6.950 6 950 1.804 2720
£8.193 1.887 B 401 - -
3,450 3200 3200 8.693 3200
5.900 5.751 5650 8850 5850
9 495 8.378 89.060 7674 7.671
&.01 £.822 6912 8.216 £8.216

- - 0.857 1.038 6.218
5149 5149 5373 2.714 6.582
2,740 2.480 2480 2.370 2.380
2106 7.816 8705 8.000 2.000
788l 5.658 7.385 5.471 8.880
098 4799 5.492 4777 5.800
8.463 6832 7.870 8 195 B.158
8.409 T.478 7573 & 504 8,420
8.800 8008 8.5d7 8.800 8.153
2374 2374 2 447 2.447 2.447
2.400 1 950 2104 2104 2.367
5.881 4818 5279 4853 4 666
2.950 2.298 2 B50 2.586 2.588
o2.800 4.250 4.733 5603 5.500
3.548 3.279 3.925 4,662 2820
4 800 4.081 4.423 5749 5423
§ 495 6738 7.142 5.886 0 886
2.447 2.042 2.245 2.295 2.008

3) Doral was ingurperated @s @ municpalty on June 24, 2003, therefore no
millage rates are reflected through fiscal year 2004,

(4] Culler Bay was incorporated as a municipality on Mavember 8, 2005
therefore no millage rates are reflected through fiscal year 2005.

" District millage rates are actual. All other millage rates are proposed
from tha Office of the Property Appraiser.
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THE SCHOQL BOARD OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA TABLE B
PROFPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLEGTHINS - PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
Last Ten Fiscal Years
{amounts expressed in thousands)
{Unaudited)

Collected within the

Fiscal Year of the Levy Total Collections to Date
Collections
Taxes Levied in

Fiscal for the Percentage Subsequent Percentage
Year Fiscal Year Amount of Levy Years * Amount of Levy
2002 5 995383 $ o815 98.5 % 3 15,756 ¥ 977347 98.1 %
2003 1,065,018 1,030,705 96.8 15,605 1,048,310 98.2
2004 1,168,782 1.129.023 06.6 7,222 1,136,245 972
2005 1,268,957 1.230,305 g7.0 2,210 1,232,515 ar.1
2006 1,466,589 1,414,057 06.4 9,535 1,423.592 971
2007 1,695,415 1,639,072 L7 8.66% 1,647,741 a7z
2008 T.919.331 1,850,835 96 .4 13,638 1,864,473 87.1
2009 1,958,007 1,888,838 o6.4 21,819 1,910,657 u7.5
2010 1.805,589 1,770.657 981 39.855 1,770,657 08.1
2011 1,674,693 1.586,242 an.2 47.047 1,586,242 98.2

* Collections are applicable to the year collected, not the year assessed.

SOURCGE: Minmi-Dade County Finance Department. Tax Callecior's Division
and Miami-Dade County Public Schools - Office of the Controller
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THE SCHCOL EQARD OF MIAME-DADE CQUNTY, FLORIDA

RATIOS OF QUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE - PRIMARY GOVERNMENT TABLE 9
Last Ten Fiscal Years
{amounts expressed in thousands)
{Unzudited)
Goverhment Activities
State Board
of Education General Cerificates Capital Total Parcent of Total

Fiscal Capital Qutlay Cbligation of Leases Primary Outstanding Debt to Fer
Year Bonds Bonds Participation Payable Government Personal Income Capita
2002 kS 134710 I 0735 B 821,365 $ 2,163 S 1.668973 267 % b 722
2003 128,070 562130 1,116,602 2472 1,908 274 285 815
2004 122,335 611,135 1,140,552 2611 1,836,633 2.68 774
2005 119,945 857,545 1.131.970 3,008 1,812 466 330 7hS
2006 112,020 501,100 1,555,970 £5,334 2.232.47%8 4.05 a07
2007 a7.205 444,320 2,023,295 a7.154 2,661,973 462 1.076
2008 97,560 381,880 2.508,445 132,751 3,120,636 5.28 1,262
2009 £88.785 316,285 2,768,125 188 670 3,359,865 592 1,362
20114 BO,74A{ 267.360 2,935,354 157,500 3,445,003 £5.30 1.398
2011 72,715 216,005 2,994,934 125,213 3.408.867 G168 1,377
SOURCE  Population as of April of sach year on Table 10 - US Bureau of Cersus.

Personal ncome - The Beacon Council. Rescarch Developmen: on Table 13
Al other inforrration - The Schoal Board of Miami Dade Counly - Ofice of the Comroller
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THE SCHOOL BOARD OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA
RATIOS OF NET GENERAL BONDED DEBT QUTSTANDING
l.ast Ten Fiscal Years
{amounts expressed in thousands)

(Unaudited)
Ratio of
Less Amounts Net Banded
Available Met Net Debf to Net
Seneral in Debt General Assesserd Assessed
Fiscal Bonded Service Bonded Property Property
Year Debt Funds Debt Value Value
2002 $ 845445 ] 653,493 781,052 S 104,744,430 0.75
2003 790,200 64,782 725418 114 945 605 0.63
2004 750,606 65,003 635,603 127,196,133 0.54
2005 621135 66,008 625127 144,990 968 0.43
2006 622,374 651,800 560,574 173,788,042 .32
2007 541,525 65,606 475,919 208,829,550 0.23
2008 479,440 70,685 408,745 241272 977 017
2009 405,070 48,075 356,992 250,158,367 014
2010 348,100 48,150 299,950 224 100 566 013
2011 288,720 55,660 233,060 204,199 734 ¢ 0.11

" Preliminary assessed value provided by Miami-Dade County Property Appraiser is
subject to changes pending final Value Adjustment Board hearings.

SQURCE: Population as of Aprit of each year on Table 1§ - US Bureau of Census,
Property values - Miarmi-Dade Property Apprafser's Oifice,
All sther information - The School Board of Miami-Dade County - Office of the Controller
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TABLE 10

Net Net

Bonded Bonded

Debt Per Pupii Debt Per
Population Capita Enroliment Pupil
2,313,047 5 338 374,725 $ 2087
2342739 310 371,482 1,953
2,372,418 289 369,578 1,855
2,402,105 260 305,784 1,708
2.464 452 227 361,550 1,550
2,474,342 192 353,283 1,347
2473332 227 347774 1,175
2,487 618 136 345,150 1.034
2,463,726 122 345 458 868
2,475,239 94 347,133 671
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THE §CHOCL BOARD OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA

LEGAL DEBT MARGIN INFORMATION
Last Ten Fiscal Years
{amounts expressed in thousands)
{Unauditad}

2002 2003 2004 2005
Delat [imit 510.474.442 $11.494,561 $12.719.613 $ 14,499,097
Total net debt applicable to the
limit 781,952 725418 685,603 625127
Legal debt margin $ 9692481 310,769,143 $12,034,010 $13,873970
Total net debt applicable to the
limit as a percentage of debt 747% 6.31% 5.39% 4.31%

SOURCE: Miami-Dade County Property Appraisers
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TABLE 11

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
$17,378,804 3 20882959  § 24127208  § 250159837  $ 22410057  § 20419973
560,574 475,919 408,745 356,992 299,950 233,060
$16.818,230 _$ 20407,040 $ 23718553 § 24658945 § 22110107 _$ 20,186,913
3.23% 2.24% 1.69% 1.43% 1.34% 1.14%

LEGAL DEBT MARGIN CALCULATION

FOR FISCAL YEAR 2011

Met Assessed Taxable Property
Walue - January 2011

Limit on Bond fndebtedness,
104% of net assessed
taxable propery value

Total Bonded Debt 5 288,720
Less: Met Aszels in
Deht Senvice Funds 55,660

Cebt applicable to Limit

Legal Debt Limit

-

5 204,199,734

) 20,419,973
§233.0601
T 20,186,913

* Preliminary assessed value provided by Miami-Dade County Praperty Appraiser i5

subject to changes pending final Value Adjusiment Board hearings.
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THE SCHOOL BOARD OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA TABLE 12
PLEDGED-REVENUE COVERAGE
Last Ten Fiscal Years
{(amounts expressed in thousands)
{Unaudited)
Local Optienat Millage Levy
Debt Service Coverage

Fiscal Year Revenue Principal Interest Total Ratio
2002 $ 201411 $25 565 $ 36,789 § 627364 3.23
2003 220,818 27,215 38,286 85,501 3.37
2004 245944 25,795 41,503 67,300 3.85
2005 281,030 29,350 44 774 74,124 3.79
2008 333570 38,895 48.435 87.330 3.82
2007 402,181 50,563 73,869 124,432 323
2008 461,813 58,895 97,829 156,824 2.94
2009 419,758 73,078 116,174 189,252 2.22
2010 368,334 85,724 132,260 217,984 1.69
2011 289,618 90,463 119,636 216,099 1.38

Coverage Ratio: Revenue divided by Debt Service Total {Principal and Interest}

SOURCE: The Schoot Board of Miami-Dade County -Office of the Controller
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THE SCHOOL BOARD OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA

DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS

Last Ten Fiscal Years

{Unaudited)

TABLE 13

Personal Per

Income Capita
Fiscal (thousands Personal Unemployment
Year Population of dollars}) Income Rate
2002 2,313,047 § 62440704 5 26985 6.6 %
2003 2,342.739 84,643,197 27.593 6.0
2004 2,372,418 68,582 602 29,076 5.8
2005 2,402 105 53,420,363 21,922 5.1
2006 2,464 452 55,186,474 22,393 4.5
2007 2,474,342 57,649,694 23,298 41
2008 2,473,332 59,068,115 23,882 &.0
2009 2,467,618 56,779,890 23,010 11.3
2010 2,463,726 53,879,224 21,869 14 4
2011 2475235 55,371,096 22370 12,5

¥ Based on estimated calucuations.

S50URCE: The Beacon Council, Research Development
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THE SCHOOL BOARD OF MIAMKADADE COUNTY, FLORIDA
PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS

Employer

tMiami-Dade County Public Schools
Miami-Dade Counly

Federal Governmerit

Slale of Florida

Jackson Memorial Hospital
Amarican Airlines

University of Miami, ng.

Baptist Health Systems of Soulh Florida
Frecision Response Corparalion
BelSouth/ATET

Publix Super Market

Florida International University

Total Civilian Labor Force Employment:

SQURCE: The Bezcon Council

Last Year and Nine Years Ago
{Unaudited)

2002
Percentage
of Total
Employees Rank Empleyment Employees Rank

45,886 T 4,28 % 48,571 t
30,000 z 2.78 25,000 2
18,276 3 1.89 18,500 3
18,100 4 1.68 17,100 4
10,000 3 0.93 12,571 T
9,000 6 0.83 9,000 9
8,001} T 0.74 16,000 5
7.500 8 0.63 13.376 (&)
4.346 2] 0.440 - -
4,240 10 0.39 - -
- - 10,800 8

- - 8,000 10

1,305,117

1,074,850
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TABLE 14

2010
Percantage
of Total
Employment

3.72 %
222
1.49
1.31%
0.96
(.68
1.23

1.02

0.83
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THE SCHOQL BOARD OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA TABLE 15
NUMBEFR, OF PERSONNEL
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Unaudited)

Ratio of
Instructional
and
{1 {2) 3} {4} Administrative
Fiscal Administrative Other Other Non-  Part-Time Personnel
Year Instructional and Technmical Instructional Instructional  Howrly Total to Pupils®
2002 21932 2,118 2727 10,9186 10,636 48 327 0.06
2003 21,780 1,932 2,478 10,73 10,283 47,204 .06
2004 21701 1,916 2,338 10,485 10,424 46,864 Q.06
2005 22570 1,983 2457 10,643 10.754 48,417 0.07
2006 23,386 2.01%9 2475 10617 10978 49 475 007
2007 24,308 2103 2504 10,648 10,707 50.271 007
2008 24710 2,186 2,500 10,666 10,393 50,455 0.08
2009 23,397 2047 2.277 11.0948 9.292 48,111 07
2010 22 540 1,919 2,174 1514 8417 45,569 0.07
2011 22,209 1.889 2. 118 10,055 T 44,132 0.07

* Bee Table 17 for pupi enroliment informstios

(1) Elementary and Secondary Teachers, Excepbonal Student Teachers, Othe: Teachers,
GuadancesPsychological, Licrarians, Other Professional Inslructiona, Stafl

12} (Hficials, Administrators and Managers (Instructional and Men-nsiructons ), Consuitangs,
Supervisors of Instruchomal, Principals, Assistant Pincigels, Communly Sonocl Cocinaatars
Otner ProfessionalTechnical Stalf, Man-Instructional

{3} Taacher Audes

{4] Technicigns. Inveshgators. Patrol Officers, Clencal and Secrotarial Stall. Servize Waorkers

[including fulltime Feod Service Warkers} ang Skilled Crafars and Laborers

SOQURCE: The Schaol Board of Miami-Dade County - Office of Evaluation ang Research
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THE SCHCOL BOARD OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA TAEBLE 16
TEACHER BASE SALARIES
Last Ten Fiscal Years

{(Unaudited)

County Statewide
Fiscal Minimum Maximum Average Average
Year Salary Salary Salary Salary
2002 ¥ 32,425 3 84775 $ 44964 § 39275
2003 33,275 65,625 45,379 40,275
2004 33,275 67,426 46,264 40,598
2005 33,275 68,325 47,300 41578
2006 34,200 69,225 A7 AT 42,702
2007 37,000 72,225 49,191 45 296
2008 38,000 74,425 50,737 465,922
2009 38,000 74425 49 555 46,838
2010 38,500 75.425 50,745 46,696
2011 38500 75,425 52,440 45723

SOURCE: The School Board of Miami-Dade County - Department of Research and
Evaluatian, Florida Department of Education

190



THE SCHOOL BOARD OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA

CPERATING STATISTICS
Last Ten Fiscal Years

TABLE 17

{Unaudited)

Cost Pupil Percentage of Students
Fiscal Operating per Instructional Teacher Receiving Free or
Year Enrollmeant Expenditures Pupit Staff Ratio Reduced-Price Meals
2002 374,725 S 2,544,575,000 $ 6791 21,932 17.09 81.84 %%
2003 371,482 2,578,612,000 6,041 21,780 17.06 §2.52
2004 369578 2,679,710,000 7,251 21,701 17.03 81.33
2005 365,784 2.871,448,000 ¥.850 22,570 16.21 80.70
2006 361,550 3.051,401.000 8,440 23,3586 15.46 7824
2007 353,283 3,278,375.000 9,280 24,308 14.53 78.31
2008 347,774 3.431,008,000 9.066 24,710 14.07 76.27
2009 345,750 3,132,067,000 9,075 23,397 1475 79.68
2010 345 453 3,120,112,000 9,032 22.540 15.33 83.13
2011 347133 3,157 663,000 S.095 22,299 1567 87.55

SOURCE: The School Board of Miarmi-Dade County - Office of the Conteoller and Department of Research Services
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THE SCHOOL BOARD OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA
CAPITAL ASSET INFORMATION
Last Ten Fiscal Years
[(Unaudited)

2002 2003 2004 2005 2008

Schools
Elementary

Buildings 1,845 1,822 1.859 1.988 1.958

Square Feet 14,386,397 149686248 15573163 161388653 16221552

Capacity 139,934 146 227 151,260 143,007 144,538

Enraliment 176,743 171,866 168,733 161,127 167,740
Middle

Buildings 340 402 411 418 420

Square Feet 5,756,250 6880136  7.035.883 7.166.818 7,198,138

Capacity - - - - -

Enrolimant 81,518 80,520 78,022 75,457 68,053
Senior

Buildings 299 344 363 371 372

Square Feet 8. 756,120 8,731,313 9,530 843 8 788 822 9,783 532

Capacity - - - - -

Enrocliment 100,025 102,287 104,189 101,420 1M, 388
Other

Buitdings 186 204 187 187 194

Sguare Feat 2871.733 3.015554 2,879,387 2,788,683 3,052 883

Capacity 16,055 158,994 15,436 13,525 16,288

Enrolimeant 3,309 38186 4133 4,031 3,028
Administrative

Buildings 76 84 80 a0 90

Square Feet 994 579 1,041,484 1,068,387 1,066,780 1.068.849
Transportation

Garages 7 8 8 3 ]

Buses 1,815 1,798 1.761 1.722 1,630
Athletics

Football fields 35 37 37 37 38

Soccer fields 4 § 5 5 5

Running tracks 15 16 16 16 16

Baseball/Softhall 34 36 36 3B 38

Swimming Pools 1 1 1 1 1

SQURCE: Flonda Inventory of Schoel Houses Report, Permanent Buildings Only
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MIAMI-DADE COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS ANTI-DISCRIMINATION POLICY
Federal and State Laws

The School Board of Miami-Dade County, Florida adheres to a policy of nondiscrimination in employment
and educational programs/activities and strives affirmatively to provide equal opportunity for all as required
by:

Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 - prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color,
religion, or national origin.

Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 as amended - prohibits discrimination in employment on
the basis of race, color, religion, gender, or national origin.

Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972 - prohibits discrimination on the basis of gender.

Age Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967 (ADEA) as amended - prohibits discrimination

on the basis of age with respect to individuals who are at least 40.

The Equal Pay Act of 1963 as amended - prohibits gender discrimination in payment of wages to
women and men performing substantially equal work in the same establishment.

Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 - prohibits discrimination against the disabled.

Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (ADA) - prohibits discrimination against individuals with
disabilities in employment, public service, public accommodations and telecommunications.

The Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993 (FMLA) - requires covered employers to provide up

to 12 weeks of unpaid, job-protected leave to “eligible” employees for certain family and medical
reasons.

The Pregnancy Discrimination Act of 1978 - prohibits discrimination in employment on the basis
of pregnancy, childbirth, or related medical conditions.

Florida Educational Equity Act (FEEA) - prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, gender,
national origin, marital status, or handicap against a student or employee.

Florida Civil Rights Act of 1992 - secures for all individuals within the state freedom from
discrimination because of race, color, religion, sex, national origin, age, handicap, or marital status.

Title II of the Genetic Information Nondiscrimination Act of 2008 (GINA) - Prohibits

discrimination against employees or applicants because of genetic information.

Veterans are provided re-employment rights in accordance with P.L. 93-508 (Federal Law) and Section
205.07 (Florida Statutes), which stipulate categorical preferences for employment.

In Addition:

School Board Policies 1362, 3362, 4362, and 5517 - Prohibit harassment and/or discrimination against
students, employees, or applicants on the basis of sex, race, color, ethnic or national origin, religion, marital
status, disability, genetic information, age, political beliefs, sexual orientation, gender, gender identification,
social and family background, linguistic preference, pregnancy, and any other legally prohibited basis.
Retaliation for engaging in a protected activity is also prohibited.

Revised: (07-11)






